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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q
[X] QUARTERLY REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period endedNovember 30, 2012
[ ] TRANSITION REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from _____ to _____
Commission File Number:000-50907

HANDENI GOLD INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Nevada 98-0430222
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

228 Regent Estate
Dar es Salaam, Republic of Tanzania N/A
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

011-255-222-70-00-84
(Registrant��s telephone number, including area code)

Indicateby checkmark whetherthe registrant(1) hasfiled all reportsrequiredto be filed by Section13 or 15(d) of the ExchangeAct
duringthepast12months(or for suchshorterperiodthattheregistrantwasrequiredto file suchreports),and(2) hasbeensubjectto such
filing requirements for the past 90 days.
Yes [X] No [ ]
Indicateby checkmarkwhethertheregistranthassubmittedelectronicallyandpostedon its corporateWebsite,if any, everyInteractive
DataFile requiredto besubmittedandpostedpursuantto Rule405of RegulationS-T (¤232.405of thischapter)duringthepreceding12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).
Yes[X] No [ ]
Indicateby checkmarkwhethertheregistrantis alargeacceleratedfiler, anacceleratedfiler, anon-acceleratedfiler, or asmallerreporting
company. Seethedefinitionsof ��largeacceleratedfiler,�� ��acceleratedfiler,�� ��non-acceleratedfiler,�� and��smallerreportingcompany��
in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filer [] Accelerated filer [ ]
Non-accelerated filer[ ]
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Smaller reporting company [X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Yes [ ] No [X]
State the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer��s classes of common equity, as of the latest practicable date.
308,416,654 shares of common stock as of January 8, 2012.
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FORWARD-LOOKING ST ATEMENTS
ThisquarterlyreportonForm10-Qcontainsforward-lookingstatementsthatinvolverisksanduncertainties.Forward-lookingstatements
in this quarterlyreport include,amongothers,statementsregardingour capitalneeds,businessplansandexpectations.Suchforward-
looking statementsinvolve risks anduncertaintiesregardingthe marketprice of copper, availability of funds,governmentregulations,
permitting, commonshareprices,operatingcosts,capital costs,outcomesof ore reservedevelopment,recoveriesand other factors.
Forward-lookingstatementsare made, without limitation, in relation to operatingplans, property exploration and development,
availability of funds, environmentalreclamation,operatingcostsand permit acquisition.Any statementscontainedherein that are
not statementsof historical factsmay be deemedto be forward-lookingstatements.In somecases,you can identify forward-looking
statementsby terminologysuchas��may��,��will��, ��should��,��expect��,��plan��,��intend��,��anticipate��,��believe��,��estimate��,��predict��,
��potential��or ��continue��,the negativeof suchtermsor othercomparableterminology. Actual eventsor resultsmay differ materially.
In evaluatingthesestatements,you shouldconsidervariousfactors,including the risksoutlinedin our annualreporton Form10-K for
the yearendedMay 31, 2012,and,from time to time, in otherreportsthat we file with the SecuritiesandExchangeCommission(the
��SEC��).Thesefactorsmaycauseour actualresultsto differ materiallyfrom any forward-lookingstatement.Given theseuncertainties,
readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements.
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PART I ���� FINANCIAL INFORMA TION
Item 1. Financial Statements
The following unauditedinterim consolidatedfinancial statementsof HandeniGold Inc. (sometimesreferredto as��we��, ��us�� or ��our
Company��) are included in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q:
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 4

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss 5

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 6

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7
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Handeni Gold Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)

November 30, 2012 May 31, 2012
(Unaudited) (Audited)

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 297,001 $ 886,889
Amounts receivable 667,450 602,286
Prepaid expenses and deposits (Note 4) 160,333 189,937

Total Current Assets 1,124,784 1,679,112

Restricted cash equivalent (Note 5) 57,724 56,531
Restricted marketable securities (Note 3) 160,000 1,160,000
Mineral licenses (Note 7 and 8(a)) 1,650,000 1,650,000
Property and equipment, net (Note 6) 345,522 463,521

TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,338,030 $ 5,009,164

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 75,023 $ 134,066
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - Related Parties (Note 8) 117,045 30,000

Total Current Liabilities 192,068 164,066

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 1, 7 and 12)

Stockholders' Equity
Common stock (Note 9)

Authorized: 500,000,000 shares, $0.001 par value
Issued and outstanding: 308,416,654 shares
(May 31, 2012 �� 307,416,654 shares) 308,417 307,417

Additional paid-in capital (Note 9) 115,777,824 115,289,842
Subscriptions received (Note 9) 650,000 150,000
Donated capital 109,000 109,000
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,000,000 ) (1,600,000 )
Deficit accumulated during the exploration stage (112,699,279 ) (109,411,161)
Total Stockholders' Equity 3,145,962 4,845,098

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND ST OCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 3,338,030 $ 5,009,164
(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements)
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Handeni Gold Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Interim Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)
(Unaudited)

January 5, 2004
(Date of Inception)

For the Three Months Ended, For the Six Months Ended, to November 30,
November 30, 2012 November 30, 2011 November 30, 2012 November 30, 2011 2012

Revenue $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Expenses
Consulting fees 209,680 486,478 496,250 958,000 23,971,366
Depreciation 50,839 33,588 102,677 69,582 342,560
Exploration expenses 175,345 2,579,561 406,559 3,301,037 7,803,416
General and administrative 205,321 261,580 459,288 306,145 2,850,445
Impairment of mineral property - - - - 77,492,074
Professional 29,626 265,065 111,991 496,807 2,480,350
Rent 14,868 39,668 46,157 72,399 393,739
Travel and investor relations 13,052 114,600 65,509 190,688 1,954,795

Total Expenses 698,731 3,780,540 1,688,431 5,394,658 117,288,745
Loss From Operations (698,731 ) (3,780,540 ) (1,688,431 ) (5,394,658 ) (117,288,745 )

Other Income (Expenses)
Gain on write-down of accrued

liabilities - 99,246 - 99,246 458,058
Impairment of marketable securities(1,600,000 ) - (1,600,000 ) - (1,600,000 )
Interest income 245 143 313 143 1,103
Loss on sale of investment securities- - - - (57,071 )
Loss on write-down of amounts

receivable - - - - (81,641 )
Mineral property option payments

received - - - - 3,616,017
Recovery of mineral property costs

for stock not issuable - - - - 2,253,000
(1,599,755 ) 99,389 (1,599,687 ) 99,389 4,589,466

Net Loss (2,298,486 ) (3,681,151 ) (3,288,118 ) (5,295,269 ) (112,699,279 )
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable
securities (420,000 ) 160,000 (1,000,000 ) 200,000 (1,000,000 )

Comprehensive Loss $ (2,718,486 ) $ (3,521,151 )$ (4,288,118 ) $ (5,095,269 )$ (113,699,279 )

Net Loss per Share - Basic and Diluted$ (0.01 ) $ (0.01 )$ (0.01 ) $ (0.02 )
Basic and Diluted Weighted Average
Number of Common Shares
Outstanding 308,416,654 292,581,489 308,121,572 292,498,621

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements)
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Handeni Gold Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Interim Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)
(Unaudited)

Accumulated from
January 5, 2004

For the Six Months Ended, (Date of Inception) to
November 30, 2012 November 30, 2011 November 30, 2012

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS PROVIDED BY (USED IN):
Operating Activities:

Net loss $ (3,288,118 ) $ (5,295,269 )$ (112,699,279 )
Adjustments for non-cash items in net loss:

Depreciation 102,677 69,582 342,560
Donated services and rent - - 9,000
Impairment of marketable securities 1,600,000 - 1,600,000
Impairment of mineral property acquisition costs - - 77,492,074
Loss on sale of investment securities - - 57,071
Mineral property option payments - - (156,017 )
Stock-based compensation 488,982 599,704 20,275,633
Gain on unrealized foreign exchange (1,193 ) - (1,193 )
Gain on write-down of accrued liabilities - (99,246 ) (458,058 )
Loss on write-down of amounts receivable - - 81,641
Loss on disposal or write-down of equipment 2,687 6,741 21,740
Recovery of mineral property costs for stock not issuable - - (2,253,000 )
Shares received from mineral property option payment - - (2,760,000 )

Changes in non-cash operating working capital:
Amount receivable (65,164 ) 409,334 (749,091 )
Prepaid expenses and deposits 29,604 1,555,993 (160,333 )
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (59,043 ) 735,046 (165,877 )
Due to related parties 87,045 (1,112 ) 970,988

Cash Used in Operating Activities (1,102,523 ) (2,019,227 ) (18,552,141 )

Investing Activities:
Mineral property acquisition costs - - (697,677 )
Proceeds from mineral property options - - 600,000
Proceeds from disposal of equipment 21,578 - 21,578
Purchase of restricted cash equivalent - (27,853 ) (56,531 )
Purchase of property and equipment (8,943 ) (144,278 ) (731,400 )

Cash Provided (Used) in Investing Activities 12,635 (172,131 ) (864,030 )

Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock - - 20,384,363
Proceeds from stock subscriptions 500,000 13,814 650,000
Share issuance costs - - (1,321,191 )

Cash Provided by Financing Activities 500,000 13,814 19,713,172

(Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equivalents (589,888 ) (2,177,544 ) 297,001

Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of the period 886,889 6,795,474 -

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of the period $ 297,001 $ 4,617,930 $ 297,001

Supplemental Cash Flow Information (Note 15)
(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements)
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Handeni Gold Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements as of November 30, 2012
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)
(Unaudited)
1. Nature of Operations and Continuance of Business

The Companywas incorporatedin the Stateof Nevadaon January5, 2004.On February14, 2012, the Companychangedits
namefrom DouglasLakeMineralsInc. to HandeniGold Inc. (the��Company��).TheCompanyis anExplorationStageCompany,
asdefinedby Statementof FinancialAccountingStandardsBoard(��FASB��) AccountingStandardsCodification(��ASC��) 915,
DevelopmentStageEntities. TheCompany��sprincipalbusinessis theacquisitionandexplorationof mineralresourceslocatedin
Tanzania,Africa. TheCompanyhasnotpresentlydeterminedwhetherits propertiescontainmineralreservesthatareeconomically
recoverable.

Theseconsolidatedfinancialstatementshavebeenpreparedon a goingconcernbasis,which implies theCompanywill continue
to realizeits assetsand discharge its liabilities in the normal courseof business.The Companyhasnevergeneratedrevenues
since inceptionand hasneverpaid any dividendsand is unlikely to pay dividendsor generateearningsin the immediateor
foreseeablefuture.Thecontinuationof theCompanyasa goingconcernis dependentuponthecontinuedfinancialsupportfrom
its shareholders,the ability of the Companyto obtain necessaryequity financing to continueoperationsand to determinethe
existence,discoveryandsuccessfulexploitationof economicallyrecoverablereservesin its resourceproperties,confirmationof
the Company��sinterestsin the underlyingproperties,and the attainmentof profitable operations.As at November30, 2012,
the Companyhasnot generatedany revenuesandhasaccumulatedlossesof $112,699,279sinceinception.Thesefactorsraise
substantialdoubtregardingtheCompany��sability to continueasa goingconcern.TheCompanyplansto raiseequityand/or debt
financingto fund its operations.Theseconsolidatedfinancialstatementsdo not includeanyadjustmentsto therecoverabilityand
classificationof recordedassetamountsandclassificationof liabilities thatmight benecessaryshouldtheCompanybeunableto
continue as a going concern.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of Presentation

Theseconsolidatedfinancialstatementsandrelatednotesarepresentedin accordancewith accountingprinciplesgenerally
acceptedin the United States,and are expressedin U.S. dollars. Theseconsolidatedfinancial statementsinclude the
accountsof the Companyandits subsidiariesdescribedasfollows. In June2011, the Companyincorporatedin Tanzania
a new wholly-owned subsidiary, HG Limited (formerly DLM TanzaniaLimited), which undertakesmineral property
explorationactivities in Tanzania.The Companyalsohasa wholly-ownednon-operatingTanzaniansubsidiary(Douglas
Lake Tanzania Limited).

All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. The Company��s fiscal year-end is May 31.

b) Interim Financial Statements

Theinterimunauditedfinancialstatementshavebeenpreparedin accordancewith accountingprinciplesgenerallyaccepted
in the United Statesfor interim financial informationandwith the instructionsto SecuritiesandExchangeCommission
(��SEC��)Form10- Q. Theydo not includeall of the informationandfootnotesrequiredby generallyacceptedaccounting
principlesfor completefinancial statements.Therefore,thesefinancial statementsshouldbe readin conjunctionwith the
Company��sauditedconsolidatedfinancial statementsandnotestheretofor theyearendedMay 31, 2012,includedin the
Company��s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on August 27, 2012 with the SEC.

The interim financial statementsincludedhereinareunaudited;however, they containall normal recurringaccrualsand
adjustmentsthat, in the opinion of management,are necessaryto presentfairly the Company��sfinancial position at
November30,2012,andtheresultsof its operationsandcashflows for theinterim periodendedNovember30,2012.The
resultsof operationsfor thethreeandsix monthsendedNovember30,2012arenot necessarilyindicativeof theresultsto
be expected for future quarters or the full year.

c) Use of Estimates
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The preparationof consolidatedfinancial statementsin accordancewith United Statesgenerallyacceptedaccounting
principlesrequiresmanagementto makeestimatesandassumptionsthataffect thereportedamountsof assetsandliabilities
at the dateof the consolidatedfinancial statementsand the reportedamountsof revenueand expensesin the reporting
period.The Companyregularlyevaluatesestimatesandassumptionsrelatedto the recoverabilityanduseful life of long-
lived assets,mineralprospectinglicenses,stock-basedcompensation,deferredincometax assetvaluationallowancesand
contingentliabilities. TheCompanybasesits estimatesandassumptionson currentfacts,historicalexperienceandvarious
other factorsthat it believesto be reasonableunderthe circumstances,the resultsof which form the basisfor making
judgmentsaboutthe carrying valuesof assetsand liabilities and the accrualof costsand expensesthat are not readily
apparentfrom othersources.Theactualresultsexperiencedby theCompanymaydiffer materiallyandadverselyfrom the
Company��sestimates.To theextenttherearematerialdifferencesbetweentheestimatesandtheactualresults,futureresults
of operations will be affected.
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Handeni Gold Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements as of November 30, 2012
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)
(Unaudited)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

d) Basic and Diluted Net Income (Loss) Per Share

The Companycomputesnet income(loss) per sharein accordancewith ASC 260, Earningsper Share which requires
presentationof bothbasicanddilutedearningspershare(EPS)on thefaceof theincomestatement.BasicEPSis computed
by dividing net income(loss)availableto commonshareholders(numerator)by the weightedaveragenumberof shares
outstanding(denominator)duringtheperiod.Diluted EPSgiveseffect to all dilutive potentialcommonsharesoutstanding
during the period using the treasurystock methodand convertiblepreferredstock using the if-convertedmethod.In
computingdilutedEPS,theaveragestockprice for theperiodis usedin determiningthenumberof sharesassumedto be
purchasedfrom theexerciseof stockoptionsor warrants.DilutedEPSexcludesall dilutive potentialsharesif theireffect is
anti-dilutive.

e) Comprehensive Income (Loss)

ASC 220, ComprehensiveIncomeestablishesstandardsfor the reporting and display of comprehensiveloss and its
componentsin the financial statements.As at November30, 2012,the Company��scomponentsof othercomprehensive
income(loss)andaccumulatedothercomprehensiveincome(loss)areanunrealizedfair valuegain(loss)on availablefor
sale marketable securities.

f) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cashandcashequivalentsarecarriedat fair valueandthey comprisecashon hand,depositsheld with banksandother
highly liquid investments.Highly liquid investmentsarereadilyconvertibleto cashandgenerallyhavematuritiesof three
monthsor lessfrom the time acquired.The Companyplacesits cashand cashequivalentswith high quality financial
institutions which the Company believes limits credit risk.

g) Marketable Securities

The Companyreports investmentsin marketableequity securitiesat fair value basedon quoted market prices. All
investmentsecuritiesaredesignatedasavailablefor salewith unrealizedgainsandlossesincludedin stockholders��equity.
Unrealizedlossesthatareotherthantemporaryarerecognizedin earnings.Realizedgainsandlossesareaccountedfor on
the specific identification method.

TheCompanyperiodicallyreviewstheseinvestmentsfor other-than-temporarydeclinesin fair valuebasedon thespecific
identificationmethodandwritesdowninvestmentsto their fair valuewhenanother-than-temporarydeclinehasoccurred.
Whendeterminingwhethera declineis other-than-temporary, theCompanyexamines(i) the lengthof time andtheextent
to which the fair valueof an investmenthasbeenlower thanits carryingvalue:(ii) the financial conditionandnear-term
prospectsof the investee,includinganyspecificeventsthatmay influencetheoperationsof the investeesuchaschanges
in technologythat may impair the earningspotentialof the investee:and(iii) the Company��sintent andability to retain
its investmentin the investeefor a sufficient periodof time to allow for any anticipatedrecoveryin marketvalue.The
Companygenerallybelievesthat an other-than-temporarydeclinehasoccurredwhenthe fair valueof the investmentis
below the carrying value for one year, absent of evidence to the contrary.

h) Property and Equipment

Propertyandequipmentconsistsof office equipment,automobilesandcomputersoftwarerecordedat costanddepreciated
on a straight-line basis as follows:

Automobiles 3 years
Camp and equipment 3 years
Computer software 1 year
Office furniture and equipment 3 years
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i) Mineral Property Costs

TheCompanyhasbeenin theexplorationstagesinceits inceptiononJanuary5, 2004andhasnotyet realizedanyrevenues
from its plannedoperations.It is primarily engagedin theacquisitionandexplorationof miningproperties.Mineralproperty
explorationcostsareexpensedasincurred.Mineralprospectinglicensesandmineralpropertyacquisitioncostsareinitially
capitalized.The Companyassessesthe carryingcostsfor impairmentunderASC 360,Property, Plant, and Equipmentat
eachfiscal quarterend.Whenit hasbeendeterminedthata mineralpropertycanbeeconomicallydevelopedasa resultof
establishingprovenandprobablereserves,thecoststhenincurredto developsuchproperty, arecapitalized.Suchcostswill
beamortizedusingtheunits-of-productionmethodovertheestimatedlife of theprobablereserve.If mineralpropertiesare
subsequently abandoned or impaired, any capitalized costs will be charged to operations.
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Handeni Gold Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements as of November 30, 2012
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)
(Unaudited)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

j) Long-Lived Assets

In accordancewith ASC 360, Property Plant and Equipmentthe Companytestslong-lived assetsor assetgroupsfor
recoverabilitywhen eventsor changesin circumstancesindicate that their carrying amountmay not be recoverable.
Circumstanceswhich could trigger a review include,but arenot limited to: significantdecreasesin the marketprice of
theasset;significantadversechangesin thebusinessclimateor legal factors;accumulationof costssignificantly in excess
of the amountoriginally expectedfor the acquisitionor constructionof the asset;currentperiodcashflow or operating
lossescombinedwith a historyof lossesor a forecastof continuinglossesassociatedwith theuseof theasset;andcurrent
expectationthat theassetwill morelikely thannot besoldor disposedsignificantlybeforetheendof its estimateduseful
life. Recoverabilityis assessedbasedon thecarryingamountof theassetandits fair valuewhich is generallydetermined
basedon thesumof theundiscountedcashflows expectedto resultfrom theuseandtheeventualdisposalof theasset,as
well asspecificappraisalin certaininstances.An impairmentlossis recognizedwhenthecarryingamountis notrecoverable
and exceeds fair value.

k) Asset Retirement Obligations

The Companyaccountsfor assetretirementobligationsin accordancewith the provisionsof ASC 440 AssetRetirement
andEnvironmentalObligationswhich requirestheCompanyto recordthefair valueof anassetretirementobligationasa
liability in theperiodin which it incursa legalobligationassociatedwith the retirementof tangiblelong-livedassetsthat
resultfrom theacquisition,construction,developmentand/or normaluseof theassets.TheCompanydid nothaveanyasset
retirement obligations as of November 30, 2012 and May 31, 2012.

l) Financial Instruments

ASC 825,Financial Instrumentsrequiresanentity to maximizetheuseof observableinputsandthefair valueof financial
instruments,which include cashand cashequivalents,restrictedcashequivalent,restrictedmarketablesecurities,and
accountspayablewereestimatedto approximatetheircarryingvaluesdueto theimmediateor short-termmaturitiesof these
financial instruments.

The Company��soperationsarein CanadaandAfrica, which resultsin exposureto marketrisks from changesin foreign
currencyrates.Thefinancial risk is therisk to theCompany��soperationsthatarisefrom fluctuationsin foreignexchange
ratesandthe degreeof volatility of theserates.Currently, the Companydoesnot usederivativeinstrumentsto reduceits
exposure to foreign currency risk.

m) Income Taxes

TheCompanyaccountsfor incometaxesusingtheassetandliability methodin accordancewith ASC 740,IncomeTaxes.
The assetandliability methodprovidesthat deferredtax assetsandliabilities arerecognizedfor the expectedfuture tax
consequencesof temporarydifferencesbetweenthe financial reportingand tax basesof assetsand liabilities, and for
operatinglossandtax credit carry-forwards.Deferredtax assetsandliabilities aremeasuredusingthe currentlyenacted
tax ratesandlaws that will be in effect whenthe differencesareexpectedto reverse.The Companyrecordsa valuation
allowance to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that is believed more likely than not to be realized.

n) Foreign Currency Translation

The functional and reporting currency of the Company is the United Statesdollar. Monetary assetsand liabilities
denominatedin foreign currenciesaretranslatedto United Statesdollarsin accordancewith ASC 740 Foreign Currency
Translation Matters, using the exchangerate prevailing at the balancesheetdate.Non-monetaryassetsand liabilities
denominatedin foreigncurrenciesaretranslatedat ratesof exchangein effect at thedateof the transaction.Averagerates
are used to translate revenues and expenses.
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Gainsandlossesarisingon translationor settlementof foreigncurrencydenominatedtransactionsor balancesareincluded
in the determinationof income.The Companyhasnot, to the dateof thesefinancial statements,enteredinto derivative
instruments to offset the impact of foreign currency fluctuations.

To theextentthattheCompanyincurstransactionsthatarenot denominatedin its functionalcurrency, theyareundertaken
in Canadiandollars (��Cdn$��) andTanzanianshillings. The Companyhasnot, to the dateof thesefinancial statements,
entered into derivative instruments to offset the impact of foreign currency fluctuations.
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Handeni Gold Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements as of November 30, 2012
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)
(Unaudited)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

o) Stock-based Compensation

TheCompanyrecordsstock-basedcompensationin accordancewith ASC718,Compensation�� StockBasedCompensation
andASC505,EquityBasedPaymentsto Non-Employees, whichrequiresthemeasurementandrecognitionof compensation
expensebasedonestimatedfair valuesfor all share-basedawardsmadeto employeesanddirectors,includingstockoptions.

ASC 718requirescompaniesto estimatethefair valueof share-basedawardson thedateof grantusinganoption-pricing
model.TheCompanyusestheBlack-Scholesoption-pricingmodelasits methodof determiningfair value.This modelis
affectedby theCompany��sstockpriceaswell asassumptionsregardinganumberof subjectivevariables.Thesesubjective
variablesinclude,but arenot limited to the Company��sexpectedstockprice volatility over the term of the awards,and
actualandprojectedemployeestockoption exercisebehaviours.The valueof the portion of the awardthat is ultimately
expected to vest is recognized as an expense in the statement of operations over the requisite service period.

All transactionsin which goodsor servicesare the considerationreceivedfor the issuanceof equity instrumentsare
accountedfor basedon the fair value of the considerationreceivedor the fair value of the equity instrumentissued,
whichever is more reliably measurable.

p) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

TheCompanyhasimplementedall newaccountingpronouncementsthatarein effect andthatmayimpactits consolidated
financial statementsanddoesnot believethat thereareany othernew accountingpronouncementsthat havebeenissued
that might have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations.

q) Reclassification

Certain reclassificationshavebeenmadeto the prior period��sfinancial statementsto conform to the currentperiod��s
presentation.

3. Restricted Marketable Securities

November 30, 2012 May 31, 2012
Fair Value Other-than- Fair Value
Based On temporary Accumulated Based On Accumulated
Quoted Impairment Unrealized Quoted Unrealized

Cost Market Price Loss Gain (Loss) Market Price Gain (Loss)
$ $ $ $ $ $

Ruby Creek Resources Inc.,
4,000,000 shares 2,760,000 160,000 (1,600,000 ) (1,000,000 ) 1,160,000 (1,600,000 )

The four million restrictedsharesof commonstock of Ruby CreekResourcesInc. (��RCR��) were issuedto the Companyon
December16,2010aspartialconsiderationto purchasethemineralpropertyinterestsundertheagreementsbetweenRCRandthe
Company. The initial fair marketvalueof theseshareswas$2,760,000basedon RCR��squotedstockpriceon the issuancedate.
Referto Note 7b for detailson the agreementswith RCR.As of November30, 2012,the fair marketvalueof theseshareswas
$160,000(May 31,2012:$1,160,000)basedonRCR��squotedstockpriceandrecordedasnon-currentassets.As of November30,
2012,theCompanydeterminedthat$1,600,000of unrealizedlosseswereotherthantemporaryandwererecognizedasanother
expense in net loss and were removed from accumulated other comprehensive loss.

4. Prepaid Expenses and Deposits

The components of prepaid expenses and deposits are as follows:

November 30, May 31,
2012 2012
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$ $

Exploration expenses - 44,500
General and administrative 23,791 9,423
Professional fees - 2,066
Rent 122,292 128,670
Travel and investor relations 14,250 5,278

160,333 189,937
9
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Handeni Gold Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements as of November 30, 2012
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)
(Unaudited)
5. Restricted Cash Equivalent

As of November30, 2012,theCompanyhaspledgeda $57,724of GICs (May 31, 2012:$56,531)assecurityheldon corporate
credit cards. The $1,193 difference compared to May 31, 2012 was gain on unrealized Canadian dollar exchange.

6. Property and Equipment

November 30, May 31,
2012 2012

Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value
$ $ $ $

Automobile vehicles 349,283 201,801 147,482 222,528
Camp and equipment 197,011 56,263 140,748 173,583
Office furniture and equipment 102,824 48,406 54,418 67,283
Software 6,391 3,517 2,874 127

655,509 309,987 345,522 463,521

7. Mineral Pr operties and Licenses

a) Handeni Properties, Tanzania, Africa

On September21,2010,theCompanycompleteda Mineral PropertyAcquisitionAgreementwith IPPGold Limited (��IPP
Gold��), and the Companyacquiredfour prospectinglicencestotalling approximately800 squarekilometres,locatedin
the HandeniDistrict of Tanzania(the ��HandeniProperties��).IPP Gold retaineda 2.5% net smelterroyalty (��NSR��) on
the HandeniPropertiesandthe Companyhasthe option to reducethe NSR to 1.25%by paying$5,000,000.If the NSR
is reducedto 1.25%the maximumNSR for any yearis cappedat $1,000,000.In any yearthe NSR paymentis lessthan
$1,000,000thedifferencebetweentheactualNSRpaymentand$1,000,000will becarriedforwardto subsequentyears.In
additionif theLondonspotprice for gold is equalto or greaterthan$1,500thentheNSRwill increasefrom 2.5%to 3%.
TheCompanyissued133,333,333restrictedsharesof commonstockto IPPGold to acquiretheHandeniPropertiesandno
further payments to IPP Gold in shares or cash is required.

On September1, 2010,the Companyenteredinto a TransactionFeeAgreementwith a consultantfor servicesrelatedto
soliciting offers from andin assistingin thenegotiationwith potentialCompanyfinanciers,purchasers,acquisitiontargets
and/or joint venturedevelopmentpartners(eachsuchpartybeinga ��PotentialInvestor��).Theinitial termof theagreement
is a periodof 60 daysandautomaticallyrenewsmonthly unlessotherwisespecificallyrenewedin writing by eachparty
or terminatedby theCompany. Pursuantto theagreement,theCompanyagreedto paytheconsultanta transactionfeefor
eachcompletedpropertyacquisitiontransactionin Tanzania(a ��CompletedTransaction��).Thetransactionfeeis 12.5%of
the sharesissuableundereachCompletedTransaction,payablein restrictedcommonsharesat the lowestpricedsecurity
issuableundereachCompletedTransaction.On September30, 2010,theCompanyissued16,666,667restrictedsharesof
common stock pursuant to the Transaction Fee Agreement in relation to the acquisition of the Handeni Properties.

Thefair valueof the133,333,333sharesof theCompany��scommonstockissuedto IPPGold pursuantto theAcquisition
Agreementandthe16,666,667sharesof theCompany��scommonstockissuedpursuantto theTransactionFeeAgreement
totalled $60,000,000.

On November30, 2010, the capitalizedacquisitioncostsof the HandeniPropertieswere testedfor impairmentby the
Company��smanagementasrequiredby ASC 360.Managementdeterminedthatno positivecashflows from theHandeni
Propertiescould be identified or supportedand a full impairmentloss was recognizedin expensesfor the $60,000,000
acquisition cost.
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On August5, 2011, theCompanyentereda Mineral PropertyAcquisitionAgreement(the��2011 AcquisitionAgreement��)
with HandeniResourcesLimited (��HandeniResources��),a limited liability companyregisteredunderthelawsof Tanzania.
TheChairmanof theBoardof Directorsof theCompanyhasanexistingownershipand/or beneficialinterest(s)in Handeni
Resources.Pursuantto the 2011 Acquisition Agreement,the Companyhadan exclusiveoption to acquirefrom Handeni
Resourcesa 100% interestin mineral licensescoveringan areaof approximately2.67 squarekilometresto the eastof
MagambaziHill, which is adjacentto the areacoveredby the Company��sfour existing prospectinglicenses(totalling
approximately 800 square kilometres) in the Handeni District.

10
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Handeni Gold Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements as of November 30, 2012
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)
(Unaudited)
7. Mineral Pr operties and Licenses (continued)

a) Handeni Properties, Tanzania, Africa (continued)

On November30, 2011, the Companycompletedthe 2011 Acquisition Agreementand issued15,000,000restricted
commonsharesto HandeniResourcesas payment.As at November30, 2011, the fair marketprice of the Company��s
commonstock was $0.11 per share;accordingly, the Companyrecordeda total fair marketvalue of $1,650,000as the
mineral licenses acquisition cost.

To comply with the laws andregulationsof the Republicof Tanzaniawherebyforeign companiesmay not own primary
mining licenses(��PMLs��), on July 19, 2012,theCompanyenteredinto anAddendumagreementto the2011 Acquisition
AgreementwherebyHandeniResources,on behalfof theCompany, administersthe32 PMLs until suchtime asa mining

licenseon the32 PMLs (2.67km2 ) havebeenallocated.During this periodHandeniResourcesis conductingexploration
and mining activities on the PMLs as directed by the Company.

b) Mkuvia Alluvial Gold Project, Tanzania, Africa

On June27, 2008, the Companyenteredinto a Joint VentureAgreementthat grantsthe Companythe right to explore
for mineralson propertiesin Liwale andNachigweaDistrictsof TanzaniaknownastheMkuvia Alluvial Gold Project,in
considerationfor the paymentof $1,000,000(paid) uponsigningthe agreementand$540,000over five yearsbeginning
July 15, 2008.The$540,000is payablein stageson a quarterlybasisof which $80,000mustbepaid in the first year, and
$460,000 over the next five years. The holder of the property licenses retains a net smelter royalty return of 3%.

On June5, 2009,theCompanyenteredinto a newjoint venturewhich reducedtheareacoveredby theoriginal agreement
to approximately380 squarekilometres.Pursuantto the new joint ventureagreement,the Companywasrequiredto pay
$40,000uponthesigningof thenewagreement.In addition,thejoint venturepartneris still entitledto receivea perpetual
net smelterroyalty return of 3% from any product realizedfrom the propertyunderlyingthe prospectinglicenses.By
enteringinto the new joint ventureagreement,the Companyis no longer requiredto pay the balanceof the $460,000
previouslydueundertheprior joint ventureagreement.Thenewjoint ventureagreementcoversprospectinglicensesNo.
5673/2009,No. 5669/2009,No. 5664/2009,andNo. 5662/2009,all of which wererenewedon June12, 2009for a period
of three years.

On November7, 2009,the Companyenteredinto its first agreementwith Ruby CreekResourcesInc. (��RCR��) in which
RCRhastheright to acquirea70%interestin 125squarekilometresof theCompany��sinterestin the380squarekilometres
coveredby the four prospectinglicensesin the Mkuvia Alluvial Gold Projectin considerationfor $3,000,000payableas
follows:

i) $100,000 within 5 business days of signing the agreement (received).

ii) $150,000 within 15 business days of signing the agreement (received).

iii) $100,000 upon satisfactory completion of RCR due diligence (received).

iv) $400,000 upon closing and receipt the first mining license.

v) $750,000 payable within 12 months of closing.

vi) $750,000 payable within 24 months of closing, and

vii) $750,000payablewithin 36 monthsof closing.This paymentmaybemadein commonsharesof RCR.Theshares
will be valued at the 10 day average trading price of RCR��s common stock prior to the payment date.

During fiscal 2010 the Company recognized $350,000 in other income for the receipt of option payments.
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On May 24, 2010,in a secondagreement(fully executedon June16, 2010)betweenRCRandtheCompany, RCRhasto
theright to earna 70%interestin theremaining255squarekilometresof the380squarekilometreMkuvia Alluvial Gold
Project by making additional payments totalling $6,000,000 to the Company.
The schedule by which RCR is to pay such $6,000,000 to the Company is as follows:
i) $200,000duewithin sevendaysof executionof theAgreement(received)with $100,000appliedtowardscostsof

environmental permitting and the initial mining license (applied);

ii) $150,000(received)plus the issuanceof four million restrictedsharesof commonstockof RCR, with an agreed
uponvalueof $0.80per sharefor a deemedvaluationof $3,200,000,within 30 daysof the receiptof Certificates
of Acknowledgementfor all underlyingandrelatedAgreementsfrom the Commissionerfor Minerals in Tanzania
asrequiredby theMining Act of Tanzania(Certificatesof AcknowledgementreceivedAugust12, 2010).Thefour
million restrictedsharesof commonstockof RCRwereissuedto theCompanyonDecember16,2010andhadafair
market value totaling $2,760,000 based on RCR��s quoted stock price on that date.

iii) $450,000 on June 1, 2011 (unpaid);

iv) $1,000,000 on June 1, 2012 (unpaid); and

v) $1,000,000 on June 1, 2013 (which may be satisfied by the issuance of stock by RCR).
11
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Handeni Gold Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements as of November 30, 2012
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)
(Unaudited)
7. Mineral Pr operties and Licenses (continued)

b) Mkuvia Alluvial Gold Project, Tanzania, Africa (continued)

Thus, the combinedpaymentsunder the November7, 2009 and the May 24, 2010 agreementsprovide for a total
commitmentof $9,000,000payableto theCompanyby RCRto purchasea 70%interestin theentire380squarekilometre
Mkuvia Alluvial Gold Project.Theownershipstructureof theinterestin theMkuvia Alluvial Gold Projectshallbea 70%
interestRCR,a25%interestfor theCompany, anda5%interestfor Mr. Mkuvia Maita,theoriginalownerof theunderlying
prospecting licenses. In addition, Mr. Maita retains a 3% net smelter royalty.

OnJune3, 2010,theCompanyandRCRincorporatedRubyCreekResources(Tanzania)Limited (��RubyCreekTanzania��)
to managetheminingoperationsin theMkuvia GoldProjectin Tanzania.RubyCreekResources(Tanzania)Limited,a joint
venturecompany(the��JointVentureCompany��),is ownedby RubyCreekResources(70%),theCompany(25%)andMr.
Mkuvia Maita (5%).

During fiscal2011 theCompanyrecognizedatotalof $3,110,000in otherincomefor thereceiptof thesharesat fair market
valueandtheoptionpayments(i) and(ii). TheCompanyhasnotyetreceivedthe$450,000optionpayment(iii) norreceived
the$1,000,000optionpayment(iv) whichareoverdueandtheagreementis in default.Prospectinglicensesnumbered5664/
2009and5669/2009,which form apartof thejoint ventureproject,wereregisteredto a third partywithout theCompany��s
approval.

RCR filed a lawsuit againstthe Companyin the SupremeCourt, Stateof New York, on February8, 2012, alleging
the Company��sinvolvementin a fraudulenttransferand breachof agreements.The Companyis of the view that such
allegationsare without merit and intendsto vigorously contestthe action.On February23, 2012, the Companyfiled a
lawsuitagainstRCRin theSupremeCourtof British Columbia,seekingrelief for RCR��sbreachof its paymentobligations
undertheseagreementsandseekinganorderthatRCRremovetheU.S. restrictivelegendfrom RCRsharesissuedto the
Company under the agreements (see Note 12c).

c) On April 27, 2006,theCompanyenteredinto a StrategicAlliance Agreementwith CanacoResourcesInc. (��Canaco��),a
Canadianpublic company. Underthe termsof the agreement,Canacopaid $350,000(receivedduring fiscal 2007)to the
Company. In connectionwith this agreement,the Companywas requiredto issue200,000restrictedsharesof common
stockwith a fair valueof $88,000.As at May 31 andNovember30,2011, the200,000shareswerenot issuedand$88,000
was includedin commonstock subscribed.During fiscal 2012 it was determinedthat the Companyno longer hasany
obligationsunderthisagreement,includingtheobligationto issuesuch200,000shares,andtherefore$88,000wasrecorded
as a recovery of mineral property costs for stock no longer issuable.

d) OnNovember17,2006,theCompanyenteredinto anAssetPurchaseAgreementwith Atlas to acquireProspectingLicense
No. 3920/2006known as ��Shinyanga��or ��Magembe,��which coversan areaof approximately46 squarekilometresin
Tanzania.TheLicensesweretransferredto theCompany��snameonsigningtheagreementfor anaggregatepurchaseprice
of $200,000(paid)and4,500,000restrictedsharesof commonstock.TheCompanydeterminedthefair valueof theshares
to be$3,172,500.As at May 31,2007,theCompanyissued1,500,000sharesat thefair valueof $1,057,500.During fiscal
2010,the Companydecidedto focuson otherpropertiesandhaslet the Magembeprospectinglicenselapse.As at May
31 2011, theremaining3,000,000sharesat thefair valueof $2,115,000wasincludedin commonstocksubscribed.During
fiscal2012it wasdeterminedthattheCompanynolongerhasanyobligationsunderthisagreement,includingtheobligation
to issuesuch3,000,000shares,andthereforethe$2,115,000wasrecordedduringthefiscal yearendedMay 31, 2012asa
recovery of mineral property costs for stock no longer issuable.

e) On November17, 2006, the Companyenteredinto an Asset PurchaseAgreementwith Hydro Geos to acquire six
ProspectingLicenses,whichcoveredanareaof approximately2,388.79squarekilometresin Tanzania.ProspectingLicense
No.��s3868/2006,3671/2005,3398/2005,3105/2005,3211/2005,and2961/2004hadbeentransferredto the Company��s
nameon signingtheagreementfor a thenaggregateandproposedpurchasepriceof $600,000(the��CashPayments��)and
the proposedissuanceof 4,000,000restrictedsharesof the Company��scommonstockat a fair valueof $2,820,000.An
initial CashPaymentof $150,000wasmadeon the signingof the agreement,however, no further CashPaymentswere
madeandno commonsharesof the Companywereissueddueto the fact that the underlyingProspectingLicenseswere
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allowedto lapseby HydroGeos.As atMay 31,2011 andNovember30,2011, $250,000wasincludedin accruedliabilities.
During fiscal 2012it wasdeterminedthat theCompanyno longerhasanyobligationsunderthis agreement,includingthe
obligationto paysuch$250,000,andthereforetheaccrued$250,000liability waswritten off during the fiscal yearended
May 31, 2012.
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Handeni Gold Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements as of November 30, 2012
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)
(Unaudited)
8. Related Party Transactions and Balances

a) On August5, 2011, theCompanyentereda Mineral PropertyAcquisitionAgreement(the��2011 AcquisitionAgreement��)
with HandeniResourcesLimited (��HandeniResources��),a limited liability companyregisteredunderthelawsof Tanzania.
The Chairmanhas an existing ownershipand/or beneficial interest(s)in Handeni Resources.Pursuantto the 2011
Acquisition Agreement,the Companyhad an exclusiveoption to acquirefrom HandeniResourcesa 100% interestin
minerallicensescoveringanareaof approximately2.67squarekilometresto theeastof MagambaziHill, which is adjacent
to the areacoveredby the Company��sfour existingprospectinglicenses(totalling approximately800 squarekilometres)
in theHandeniDistrict. On November30,2011, theCompanycompletedsuchacquisitionandissued15,000,000sharesof
restrictedcommonstockat a fair marketpriceof $0.11 pershareto HandeniResourcesin connectionwith theacquisition
(see Note 7a).

b) During the six monthsendedNovember30, 2012, the Companypaid $57,000(2011 - $72,000)and incurred$15,000
payables(2011 - $Nil) of administrationand professionalservicesfees to a director, the current Presidentand Chief
ExecutiveOfficer (��CEO��).In addition,theCompanypaid$23,000(2011 - $16,000)andincurred$7,000payables(2011 -
$Nil) of geological and investor relations service fees to a private company controlled by a person who is related to CEO.

c) During the six monthsendedNovember30, 2012, the Companypaid $48,000(2011 - $90,000)of administrationand
consultingfeesandincurred$5,000payables(2011 - $Nil) of directorfeesto a former PresidentandCEO who resigned
effective on November 22, 2011 and continued to provide consulting services and is presently a director.

d) During the six monthsendedNovember30, 2012, the Companypaid a total of $58,217(2011 - $30,032)and incurred
$12,094payables(2011 - $Nil) of administrationandprofessionalservicesfeesplusHST of $1,451to a privatecompany
controlled by the Company��s current Chief Financial Officer (��CFO��).

e) During thesix monthsendedNovember30,2012,theCompanypaidconsultingfeesof $Nil (2011 - $15,441)to theformer
CEOwho resignedeffectiveon June21, 2011. During thesix monthsendedNovember30, 2012,theCompanyalsopaid
$Nil (2011 - $19,926) of investor relations service fees to a person related to the former CEO.

f) During thesix monthsendedNovember30, 2012,theCompanypaid$Nil (2011 - $39,720)of consultingfeesto a former
CFO who resigned effective on December 12, 2011.

g) During the six monthsendedNovember30, 2011, the Companypaid $20,092of officer feesand$25,782of continuing
consulting fees to a former CFO who resigned effective on September 22, 2011.

h) During the six monthsendedNovember30, 2012,the Companypaid $54,000(2011 - $Nil) to independentdirectorsfor
directorsandmeetingattendancefees,of which $30,000waspaid for independentdirectorsfeesincurredduring theyear
endedMay 31,2012.During thesix monthsendedNovember30,2012,theCompanyalsopaid$20,000annualfeesto the
Vice Chairmanof the Boardof Directorsfor the annualservicesto April 2013.As of November30, 2012,the Company
had$76,500(May 31, 2012- $30,000)of unpaidindependentdirectors��feesrecordedin accountspayableandaccrued
liabilities.

9. Common Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital

Theauthorizedcommonstockof theCompanyconsistsof 500,000,000shares,with $0.001parvalue.Thefollowing is asummary
of the Company��sissuedandoutstandingcommonstockduring the six monthsendedNovember30, 2012andthe fiscal year
ended May 31, 2012:
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Handeni Gold Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements as of November 30, 2012
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)
(Unaudited)
9. Common Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital (continued)

Common Stock Additional Paid-In
Shares Par Value Capital

# $ $

Balance as at May 31, 2011 292,416,654 292,417 111,925,974

Shares Issued for Mineral Licenses 15,000,000 15,000 1,635,000
Value Assigned to Options Granted or Vested - - 1,728,868
Balance as at May 31, 2012 307,416,654 307,417 115,289,842

Shares Issued for Independent Directors Fees 1,000,000 1,000 39,000
Value Assigned to Options Granted or Vested - - 448,982

Balance as at November 30, 2012 308,416,654 308,417 115,777,824

For the Six Months Ended November 30, 2012

Pursuantto theBoardof Directorsapprovedcompensationpackageto its independentdirectors(five of theCompany��sdirectors),
the Companygrantedeach independentdirector on July 4, 2012, as fully paid and non-assessable,200,000sharesof the
Company��scommonstockwith a fair valueof $0.04persharefor a total of 1,000,000sharesasstock-basedcompensation.Such
shares were granted under the Company��s November 2010 Stock Incentive Plan.

During thesix monthsendedNovember30,2012,theCompanyreceived$500,000(for theyearendedMay 31,2012:$150,000)
for subscriptionsreceivedin advanceof theclosingof theCompany��sprivateplacements.As of November30,2012,theseprivate
placements have not yet closed.

For the Year Ended May 31, 2012

Pursuantto the termsof the mineral licenseacquisitionagreementon November30, 2011, the Companyissued15,000,000
restrictedcommonsharesto HandeniResourcesatafair marketpriceof $0.11 persharefor atotal fair marketvalueof $1,650,000.

During theyearendedMay 31,2012,theCompanyreceived$13,814from theformerCEOrelatedto a shareissuanceduringthe
fiscal year ended May 31, 2011.

During theyearendedMay 31,2012,theCompanydeterminedit no longerhasanyobligationsto issue$2,203,000in sharesfor
lapsedmineralpropertyagreementsand$50,000in sharesfor an expiredmineralpropertyconsultingagreement.Therefore,in
fiscal year 2012, a total of $2,253,000 was recorded as a recovery of mineral property costs for stock not issuable.

10. Stock Options

TheCompanyadoptedanStockOptionPlan,datedNovember29,2010(the��November2010StockIncentivePlan��),underwhich
theCompanyis authorizedto grantstockoptionsto acquireup to a totalof 40,000,000sharesof commonshares.OnJuly4, 2012,
theCompanygrantedstockoptionsto its independentdirectorsto acquirea total of 1,000,000commonsharesatanexerciseprice
of $0.08pershareexercisablefor 10yearsandduringtheperiodendedNovember30,2012,600,000vestedoptionswereforfeited.
At November30, 2012,theCompanyhad11,300,000sharesof commonstockavailableto be issuedundertheNovember2010
Stock Incentive Plan.

Therewereno stockoptionsexercisedduring the six monthsendedNovember30, 2012and2011, andtherewereno intrinsic
valuesof outstandingoptionsatNovember30,2012andMay 31,2012.Thetotal intrinsicvalueof stockoptionsexercisedduring
the six months ended November 30, 2012 and 2011 was $Nil.
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The following table summarizes the continuity of the Company��s stock options:

Weighted
Average

Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Number of Average Contractual Intrinsic
Options Exercise Price Term Value
# $ (years) $

Outstanding, May 31, 2011 36,493,333 0.21 8.93 8,824,000
Granted 6,250,000 0.40 7.61 -
Forfeited (14,443,333 ) 0.23 6.60 -

Outstanding, May 31, 2012 28,300,000 0.24 8.53 -
Granted 1,000,000 0.08 9.60 -
Forfeited (600,000 ) 0.20 8.00 -

Outstanding, November 30, 2012 28,700,000 0.23 8.08 -

Exercisable, November 30, 2012 28,700,000 0.23 8.08 -
14
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Handeni Gold Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements as of November 30, 2012
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)
(Unaudited)
10. Stock Options (continued)

Thestockoptionsoutstandingareexercisablefor cashor onacashlessexercisebasisusingaproratedformulawherebythenumber
of sharesissuableis equalto (a) theaverageclosingpricefor thefive daysprior to exercisedate(��ACP��) in excessof theexercise
price,dividedby (b) theexercisepricemultipliedby (c) thenumberof optionsexercised.During thesix monthsendedNovember
30, 2012 and 2011, no cashless stock options were exercised.

As at November30, 2012,all non-vestedstockoptionswerevested.A summaryof the Company��snon-vestedstockoptions
changes during the six months ended November 30, 2012 and the year ended May 31, 2012 are presented below:

Weighted
Non-vested stock options Average

Number of Grant Date
Options Fair Value
# $

Non-vested at May 31, 2011 20,100,000 0.36
Granted 5,500,000 0.45
Forfeited (5,920,000 ) 0.33
Vested (12,990,000 ) 0.24

Non-vested at May 31, 2012 6,690,000 0.23
Granted 1,000,000 0.08
Vested (7,690,000 ) 0.02

Non-vested at November 30, 2012 - -

11. Common Stock Purchase Warrants

During thesix monthsendedNovember30, 2012,therewereno stockpurchasewarrantsgrantedand20,162,262stockpurchase
warrants expired.

Pursuantto a releaseandindemnificationagreement,the Companygranted300,000stockpurchasewarrantson July 7, 2011 to
acquire300,000commonsharesatapriceof $0.30pershareexercisablefor oneyearperiod.Thefair valueof thegrantedwarrants
was$81,158estimatedat the dateof grantusing the Black-Scholesoption-pricingmodel.The following tablesummarizesthe
continuity of the Company��s share purchase warrants:

Weighted
Average Weighted Average

Number of Exercise Remaining
Warrants Price Contractual Life
# $ (years)

Balance, May 31, 2011 53,416,417 0.33 1.68
Issued 300,000 0.30 0.10

Balance, May 31, 2012 53,716,417 0.33 0.67
Expired (20,162,262 ) 0.45 -

Balance, November 30, 2012 33,554,155 0.25 0.40
15
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Handeni Gold Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements as of November 30, 2012
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)
(Unaudited)
11. Common Stock Purchase Warrants (continued)

As at November 30, 2012, the following common share purchase warrants were outstanding:

Remaining
Number of Exercise Contractual
Warrants Price Life (years)

# $

20,000,000 0.075 0.11
13,554,155 0.52 0.83

33,554,155 0.40

12. Commitments and Contingency

a) The Companywas committedto the paymentof a cashfee of 7% within 48 hours of the receipt of proceedsfrom
the exerciseof any warrantsattachedto the 17,757,777units sold by Rodman& Renshawin the March 2011 private
placements.During the six monthsendedNovember30, 2012,5,446,667stock purchasewarrantsrelatedto suchunits
expired.Theremaining12,311,110stockpurchasewarrantsrelatedto suchunitsareexercisableonor beforeSeptember29,
2013.

b) TheCompanyis committedto thepaymentof a cashfeeof 7% of thepurchasepriceandtheissuanceof warrantsequalto
7% of thesharesissuedwith respectto anypublic or privatefinancingprovidedby investorswhomRodman& Renshaw
introduced,directly or indirectly, in theMarch2011 privateplacementswithin 24 monthsof theclosingof theMarch2011
private placements.

c) On February8, 2012,RCRfiled a lawsuitagainsttheCompanyin theSupremeCourt,Stateof New York, in which RCR
allegesthattheCompanyparticipatedin afraudulenttransferof certainmineralpropertyinterestsin TanzaniathatRCRhad
the right to purchase pursuant to a series of agreements with the Company (see Note 7b).

On February23,2012,theCompanyfiled a lawsuitagainstRCRin theSupremeCourtof British Columbia,seekingrelief
for RCR��sbreachof its paymentobligationsundertheseagreementsand seekingan order that RCR removethe U.S.
restrictivelegendfrom RCRsharesissuedto theCompany(seeNote3) undertheagreements.As of August31,2012,RCR
is in default with respect to $1.45 million in scheduled payments due to the Company under the agreements.

TheCompanyis of theview thatRCR��sallegationsarewithout merit andintendsto continueto vigorouslydefendagainst
theRCRlawsuitandto pursueits claimsagainstRCR.No futurelegalcoststhatmaybeincurredhavebeenaccruedasan
expense and no loss or gain from the lawsuit and claim can be reasonably estimated or recorded at this time.

13. Fair Value Measurements

ASC820requiresanentity to maximizetheuseof observableinputsandminimizetheuseof unobservableinputswhenmeasuring
fair value.ASC820establishesa fair valuehierarchybasedonthelevelof independent,objectiveevidencesurroundingtheinputs
usedto measurefair value.A financialinstrument��scategorizationwithin thefair valuehierarchyis baseduponthelowestlevelof
input thatis significantto thefair valuemeasurement.ASC820prioritizestheinputsinto threelevelsthatmaybeusedto measure
fair value:

Level 1applies to assets or liabilities for which there are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level2 appliesto assetsor liabilities for which thereareinputsotherthanquotedpricesthatareobservablefor theassetor
liability suchasquotedpricesfor similarassetsor liabilities in activemarkets;quotedpricesfor identicalassetsor liabilities
in marketswith insufficient volumeor infrequenttransactions(lessactivemarkets);or model-derivedvaluationsin which
significant inputs are observable or can be derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data.
Level 3 appliesto assetsor liabilities for which there are unobservableinputs to the valuation methodologythat are
significant to the measurement of the fair value of the assets or liabilities.
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Handeni Gold Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements as of November 30, 2012
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)
(Unaudited)
13. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Pursuantto ASC820,thefair valueof ourcashandcashequivalents,restrictedcashequivalentandrestrictedmarketablesecurities
are determinedbasedon ��Level 1�� inputs,which consistof quotedpricesin active marketsfor identical assets.Management
believesthattherecordedvaluesof all of theCompany��sotherfinancialinstrumentsapproximatetheircurrentfair valuesbecause
of their nature and respective maturity dates or durations.

As at November30, 2012, therewere no liabilities measuredat fair value on a recurringbasispresentedon the Company��s
consolidated balance sheet.

Assetsmeasuredat fair valueon a recurringbasiswerepresentedon theCompany��sbalancesheetasof November30, 2012,as
follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
For Identical Observable Unobservable Balance as of
Instruments Inputs Inputs August 31,
(Level 1 ) (Level 2 ) (Level 3 ) 2012

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 297,001 $ �� $ �� $ 297,001
Restricted cash equivalent 57,724 �� �� 57,724
Restricted marketable securities 160,000 �� �� 160,000

Total assets measured at fair value $ 514,725 $ �� $ �� $ 514,725
Assetsmeasuredat fair valueonarecurringbasiswerepresentedontheCompany��sbalancesheetasof May 31,2012,asfollows:

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
For Identical Observable Unobservable Balance as of
Instruments Inputs Inputs May 31,
(Level 1 ) (Level 2 ) (Level 3 ) 2012

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 886,889 $ �� $ �� $ 886,889
Restricted cash equivalent 56,531 �� �� 56,531
Restricted marketable securities 1,160,000 �� �� 1,160,000

Total assets measured at fair value $ 2,103,420 $ �� $ �� $ 2,103,420
Managementbelievesthat the recordedvaluesof all of our other financial instrumentsapproximatetheir current fair values
because of their nature and respective maturity dates or durations.
TheCompanyhasoperationsin Tanzania,which resultsin exposureto marketrisks from changesin foreigncurrencyrates.The
financial risk is the risk to the Company��soperationsthat arisefrom fluctuationsin foreign exchangeratesand the degreeof
volatility of theserates.Currently, the Companydoesnot usederivativeinstrumentsto reduceits exposureto foreign currency
risk.
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Handeni Gold Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements as of November 30, 2012
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)
(Unaudited)
14. Stock-based Compensation

Thefair valuesfor stockoptionsgrantedwereestimatedat thedateof grantusingtheBlack-Scholesoptionpricing modelunder
the following weighted average assumptions:

For Stock Options For Stock Purchase Warrants
Six Months Ended November 30, Six Months Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2012 2011
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% Nil 0%
Risk-free interest rate 2.32% 2.18% Nil 0.20%
Expected volatility 164% 158% Nil 136%
Expected option life (in years) 8.89 5.81 Nil 1.00
The weightedaveragefair valueof stockoptionsgrantedor vestedduring the six monthsendedNovember30, 2012was$0.03
pershare(2011 - $0.10).During thesix monthsendedNovember30,2012and2011, theCompanyexpensedthefollowing stock-
based compensation as consulting fees or general and administrative fees.

Six Months Ended November 30,
2012 2011

Fair value for stock options $ 448,982 $ 518,546
Fair value for stock purchase warrants - 81,158
Fair value for common stock shares granted to independent directors 40,000 -
Total stock based compensation $ 488,982 $ 599,704

15. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Investingandfinancingactivitiesthatdonothaveadirectimpactoncurrentcashflows areexcludedfrom thecashflow statements.
A summaryof non-cashtransactionsandothercashinformationfor theaccumulatedfrom January5, 2004,thedateof inception,
to November 30, 2012, and for the six months ended November 30, 2012 and 2011 is as follow:

Accumulated from
January 5, 2004 (Date

For the Six Months Ended, of Inception) to
November 30, 2012 November 30, 2011 November 30, 2012

Changes in non-cash financing and investing activities:
Amount owing pursuant to mineral license acquisition

agreements included in accrued liabilities $ - $ - $ 250,000
Common stock issued to settle related party payable - - 619,306
Common stock subscribed for mineral licenses acquired - - 2,203,000
Common stock issued for independent directors' compensation40,000 - 40,000
Common stock issued for mineral licenses acquired - 1,650,000 76,446,750
Common stock gifted to the Company to settle liabilities - - 100,000
Investment securities - - 79,603

Other cash flow information:
Interest paid $ - $ - $ -
Taxes paid - - -
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Handeni Gold Inc.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements as of November 30, 2012
(Expressed in U.S. dollars)
(Unaudited)
16. Segment Disclosures

The Companyoperatesin one reportablesegment,being the acquisitionand explorationof mineral properties.Segmented
informationhasbeencompiledbasedon the geographicregionsthat the Companyandits subsidiaryregisteredandperformed
exploration and administration activities.

Assets by geographical segment as at November 30, 2012 and May 31, 2012 are as follows:

Canada Tanzania, Africa Total
Current assets $ 520,345 $ 604,439 $ 1,124,784
Restricted cash equivalent 57,724 - 57,724
Restricted marketable securities 160,000 - 160,000
Mineral licenses - 1,650,000 1,650,000
Equipment, net 10,572 334,950 345,522

Total assets, at November 30, 2012 $ 748,641 $ 2,589,389 $ 3,338,030

Canada Tanzania, Africa Total
Current assets $ 941,374 $ 737,738 $ 1,679,112
Restricted cash equivalent 56,531 - 56,531
Restricted marketable securities 1,160,000 - 1,160,000
Mineral licenses - 1,650,000 1,650,000
Equipment, net 10,141 453,380 463,521

Total assets, at May 31, 2012 $ 2,168,046 $ 2,841,118 $ 5,009,164

17. Subsequent Event

OnDecember7, 2012,theCompanyenteredinto afacility agreementwith IPPLtd., aprivatecompanycontrolledby thechairman
of HandeniGoldInc.Thefacility agreementensuresthattheCompanywill havesufficient fundingfor its keyexplorationactivities
up to June2013.Thefundingwill be in theform of aninterestfreeunsecuredloanto theCompanyof up to $720,000by way of
monthly drawdownsof a maximumamountof US$100,000per calendarmonthfrom December2012up to andincluding June
2013.Thetotal amountdrawndownby theCompanyis dueto berepaidon or beforeDecember31, 2013.As of thedateof this
report, the Company received a total of $245,683 from IPP Ltd.
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Item 2. Management����s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussionof our financial condition,changesin financial conditionandresultsof operationsfor the six monthsended
November30,2012and2011 shouldbereadin conjunctionwith our unauditedinterim financialstatementsandrelatednotesfor thesix
monthsendedNovember30,2012and2011 includedherewithandourauditedconsolidatedfinancialstatementsasatMay 31,2012,May
31,2011 andfor theperiodfrom inception(January5, 2004)to May 31,2012includedin ourAnnualReportonForm10-K for our fiscal
yearendedMay 31,2012asfiled with theSEC.All financial informationin this Management��sDiscussionandAnalysis(��MD&A�� or
the ��discussion��)is expressedandpreparedin conformitywith U.S.generallyacceptedaccountingprinciples.All dollar referencesare
to theU.S.dollar, theCompany��sreportingcurrency, unlessotherwisenoted.Somenumbersin this MD&A havebeenroundedto the
nearest thousand for discussion purposes.

FORWARD-LOOKING ST ATEMENTS
This MD&A containsforward-looking statementsthat involve risks, uncertaintiesand assumptionswith respectto the Company��s
activitiesandfuturefinancial results,whicharemadebaseduponmanagement��scurrentexpectationsandbeliefs.Theseforward-looking
statementsinvolverisksanduncertainties,includingstatementsregardingtheCompany��scapitalneeds,businessplansandexpectations.
Our actualresultsmaydiffer materiallyfromthoseanticipatedin theseforward-lookingstatementsasa resultof manyfactors,including,
butnot limited to, thosesetforth under��RiskFactors�� andelsewhere in thisannualreport.Anystatementscontainedherein thatarenot
statementsof historical factsmaybedeemedto beforward-lookingstatements.Managementdisclaimsanyobligationto publicly update
thesestatements,or discloseanydifferencebetweenits actual resultsandthosereflectedin thesestatements.Giventheseuncertainties,
readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements.
Overview
We arean explorationstagecompanyengagedin the acquisitionandexplorationof mineralproperties.We haveinterestsin mineral
claimsknownastheHandeniDistrict ProjectandtheMkuvia Alluvial Gold Project(of which the licenseshavelapsed),locatedin the
Republic of Tanzania in East Africa, through prospecting licenses issued by the government of the Republic of Tanzania.
Noneof our mineralclaimscontainanysubstantiatedmineraldeposits,resourcesor reservesof mineralsto date.Explorationhasbeen

carriedout on theseclaims,in particularthe 4 PLs (prospectinglicenses)of 800 km2 in the HandeniDistrict. Accordingly, additional
explorationof thesemineral claims is requiredbeforeany conclusioncan be drawn as to whetherany commerciallyviable mineral
depositmayexiston anyof our mineralclaims.Our planof operationsis to continueexplorationanddrilling work in orderto ascertain
whetherourmineralclaimswarrantfurtheradvancedexplorationto determinewhethertheypossesscommerciallyexploitabledepositsof
minerals.We will not beableto determinewhetheror not anyof our mineralclaimscontaina commerciallyexploitablemineraldeposit,
resourceor reserve,until appropriateexploratorywork hasbeencompletedandan economicevaluationbasedon that work concludes
economic viability.
Weareconsideredanexplorationor exploratorystagecompany, becauseweareinvolvedin theexaminationandinvestigationof landthat
webelievemaycontainvaluableminerals,for thepurposeof discoveringthepresenceof ore,if any, andits extent.Thereis noassurance
that a commerciallyviable mineral depositexistson the propertiesunderlyingour mineral claim interests,and considerablefurther
exploration will be required before a final evaluation as to the economic and legal feasibility for our future exploration is determined.
Our Mineral Claims
Handeni District Prospecting Licenses
Currently, ourprimaryfocusis ontheHandeniDistrict Project.EffectiveSeptember21,2010,ourBoardof Directorsratifiedtheentering
into andimmediateclosingof a certainMineral PropertyAcquisition Agreement(the ��Acquisition Agreement��)datedSeptember15,
2010with IPPGold Limited (��IPPGold��), pursuantto which we acquiredanundivided100%legal,beneficialandregisterableinterest
in andto four prospectinglicences(the��PLs��),totalingapproximately800squarekilometres,locatedin theHandeniDistrict of Tanzania
and which were owned or controlled by IPP Gold and its affiliates.
In accordancewith thetermsof theAcquisitionAgreement,effectiveSeptember21,2010,IPPGoldhasnowbecomeamajorstakeholder
in our Company. Pursuantto the termsof theAcquisitionAgreement,we issued133,333,333restrictedsharesof commonstockto IPP
Gold in exchange for 100% interest in the four PLs of the Handeni Project, with no further payments in shares or cash required.
TheCommissionerfor Mineralsof Tanzaniahasconfirmedtherecordingin theCentralRegisterandthetransferof 100%of eachof the
ProspectingLicenseNos.6742/2010,6743/2010,6744/2010and6779/2010,which comprisetheHandeniProject,from IPPGold to our
Company, and that such transfer has been duly recorded on the terms and conditions contained in such Prospecting Licenses.
We obtaineda TechnicalReporton the HandeniProperty(the ��HandeniReport��),datedApril 25, 2011, as preparedat our request
by Avrom E. Howard,MSc, FGA, PGeol(Ontario),PrincipalConsultantat NebuConsultingLLC. Mr. Howardis a Qualified Person
in accordancewith CanadianNational Instrument43-101��Standardsfor Disclosureof Mineral Projects��and its CompanionPolicy
(collectively, ��NI 43-101��)andis a PracticingProfessionalGeologistregisteredwith the Associationof ProfessionalGeoscientistsof
Ontario(registrationnumber0380).TheHandeniReportfollows on theheelsof adetailedgeologicalcompilationandexplorationreport
preparedin 2010by Dr. ReynoScheepers,a SouthAfrican professionalgeologistwho hasbeena directorof our Companysince2010
andis ourcurrentChiefExecutiveOfficer. Uponindependentreviewby, andto thesatisfactionof Mr. Howard,muchof thecontentfrom
Dr. Scheepers��s report has been referred to and referenced in the Handeni Report.
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On August5, 2011, theCompanyentereda Mineral PropertyAcquisitionAgreement(the��2011 AcquisitionAgreement��)with Handeni
ResourcesLimited (��HandeniResources��),a limited liability companyregisteredunderthe laws of Tanzania.The Chairmanof the
Boardof Directorsof theCompanyhasanexistingownershipand/or beneficialinterest(s)in HandeniResources.Pursuantto the2011
Acquisition Agreement,the Companyhadan exclusiveoption to acquirefrom HandeniResourcesa 100%interestin mineral licenses
coveringan areaof approximately2.67squarekilometersto the eastof MagambaziHill, which is adjacentto the areacoveredby the
Company��s four existing prospecting licenses (totaling approximately 800 square kilometers) in the Handeni District.
On November30, 2011, the Companycompletedthe 2011 Acquisition Agreementandissued15,000,000restrictedcommonsharesto
HandeniResourcesaspayment.As at November30, 2011, thefair marketpriceof theCompany��scommonstockwas$0.11 pershare;
accordingly, the Company recorded a total fair market value of $1,650,000 as the mineral licenses acquisition cost.
To complywith thelawsandregulationsof theRepublicof Tanzaniawherebyforeigncompaniesmaynot own primarymining licenses
(��PMLs��), on July 19, 2012, the Company:

(1) enteredinto an Addendumagreementto the 2011 Acquisition Agreementwhereby Handeni Resourceswill

administerthe32PMLsuntil suchtimeasamining license(��ML��) onthe32PMLs(2.67km2 ) havebeenallocated;
and

(2) duringthis periodHandeniResourceswill beconductingexplorationandmining activitieson thePMLs asdirected
by the Company.

Much of the information regardingthe HandeniDistrict Projectas providedbelow is basedon informationprovidedin the Handeni
Report.
Theauthorof theHandeniReportvisitedtheHandenipropertyon February26,2011, accompaniedby Dr. Scheepers.Giventhealmost
total absenceof outcropacrossthepropertyarea,on theonehand,andtheabundanceof district to regionalscalegeologicaldata,recent
explorationdata,intensiveartisanalmining activity in the boundaryareabetweenthe Company��sHandenipropertyandthe adjacent
Magambazipropertybelongingto CanacoResourcesInc. andtheir well-publicizednewsreleasesanddevelopments,on the other, the
authorof theHandeniReportdeterminedthathewasableto completeameaningfulpropertyvisit within thetimeframeof asingledayto
his technical satisfaction sufficient for the purpose of preparing the Handeni Report.
Location and Access
TheHandenipropertylies within thehistoricHandeniartisanalgold mining district, locatedin TangaProvince,roughly175kilometers
northwestof Tanzania��slargestcity, Dar EsSalaam,and100kilometerssouthwestof themorenortherlycoastalcity of Tanga.Theroad
from Dar EsSalaamto Tangais paved;thesecondaryroadthatheadsnorthwestfrom this roadto thetown of Handeni,a distanceof 65
kilometers,is currentlybeingupgradedandpaved.TheHandenipropertyis locatedroughly35kilometerssouthof thetownof Handeni.
Fromthis point, a numberof dirt roadsheadsouthacrossvariousportionsof theHandenipropertyandbeyond.Driving time from Dar
Es Salaam is approximately five hours, depending on traffic and the weather.
Accessduringthedry seasonis not difficult anddoesnot evenrequirea 4X4 vehicle.Roadswithin thelicensesaremostlytracks,some
of whicharenotaccessibleduringtherainyseason.Theareaexperiencestwo rainyseasons,namelyashortwetperiodduringNovember
andDecemberandthe main rain seasonlasting from April to June.Explorationconditionsduring the rainy periodsmay be difficult,
specificallyduringtheApril to Juneperiod.Fuel is availableat a numberof pointsalongthenorth- southportionof thejourneyandin
Handeni town itself.
Theaverageelevationin theCompany��slicenseareais 450metersabovesealevel.Theareais denselyvegetatedwith tall treesandgrass
overundulatinghills of gneissthatcomprisethemaintopographicfeaturein thearea.Muddy, slow movingriversandcreekscrisscross
the valleys and plains; some of the larger streams may experience high flow during intense rainfalls.
Theareais scarcelypopulatedwith occasionalsmallvillageswherepeopleareengagedin smallscalemixedfarmingandartisanalgold
mining. Handenitown is a communityof severalthousandinhabitantshaphazardlyspreadover a seriesof small, roundedhills, where
basic services and accommodation are available.
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LOCATION MAP: HANDENI PROPER TY IN T ANZANIA

Property Description
The property comprises four PLs encompassing nearly 800 square kilometers, all of which are in good standing.
The following table provides details about each PL.

List of Prospecting Licenses, Handeni Property

PL No. Ar ea
(Sq Km)

Issue Date Original
Recipient

Transfer Date
(To IPP
Gold)

Transfer Date
(To Handeni

Gold)

Expiry
Date

Renewal
Date

6742/2010 197.98 05/10/10
Diamonds
Africa Ltd.

18/11/10 12/12/10 04/10/13 05/10/13

6743/2010 195.48 13/10/10
Gold Africa
Ltd.

18/11/10 12/12/10 12/10/13 13/10/13

6744/2010 198.70 13/09/10
M-Mining
Ltd.

18/11/10 12/12/10 12/09/13 13/09/13

6779/2010 197.74 13/09/10
Tanzania Gem
Center Ltd.

18/11/10 12/12/10 12/09/13 13/09/13

Within thepropertyareseveral,smallerareasthatbelongto smallscaleartisanalminers,all of which areindicatedin red in the license
map presentedbelow. The areasfound within PL 6742/2010 predatethe arrival of IPP Gold and remain in the handsof the local
artisanalminersto whom PrimaryLicenses,or what areinformally known as��PrimaryMining Licenses��or PMLs havebeenissued.
Therectangularareain redon PL6743/2010belongedto HandeniResourcesasdiscussedbelow. Artisanalgold mining activity remains
ongoing in some of these areas.
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License Map, Handeni Property Prospecting Licenses, showing excluded areas in red

Towardthewesternedgeof PL 6743/2010areseveralmorePMLs thatdo not belongto theCompany. Theareacoloredin greenin the
figure below is a unitizedblock of four PMLs that wereacquiredby CanacoResourcesInc. (��CRI��) from their owners;this is where
themostintensiveartisanalgold mining activity is currentlytakingplace,with laborersworking at a varietyof mining andmilling sites
adjacentto andup thehill from a shantytown of hutsthatis foundjust northof Magambazihill. It is theCompany��sunderstandingthat
CRI hasreachedanagreementwith theoriginal ownersof thesePMLs andthepeoplecurrentlyworking therewhich will leadto their
ceasing artisanal operations and vacating the site.
Ownershipof a single, isolatedclaim block, depictedin fuchsiabelow remainsuncertain;andwhich is somethingthat IPP Gold and
theCompanyareattemptingto ascertain.Ownershipof thesmaller, rectangularredblock thatoverliestheCRI-Companyboundaryalso
remainsunknown;andwhich againis anothermatterthatIPPGold andtheCompanyarecurrentlypursuing.Theremainingblock of 32
PMLs, shown as a grid of blue lines below, belongs to the Company as described above.
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History
General.Mining in Tanzaniain the moderneradatesbackover onehundredyears,first underGermancolonial rule; during the First
World War a numberof military engagementstook place there.After the war endedcontrol of the areawas cededto the British,
underwhosecolonial authoritymining andotheractivitiescontinuedandexpanded.Mining focusedon gold, diamondsanda variety
of coloredgemstones,notablyincludingthediscoveryanddevelopmentof theworld��s largestdiamondiferouskimberlitepipe(to date)
by CanadiangeologistJohnWilliamson,a depositthatremainsin productionto this day. Shortlyafterachievingindependencefrom the
British in 1961,Tanzanianationalizedmostprivatesectorindustries,in turn resultingin the exodusof foreign investmentandprivate
capitaland the consequentdeclinein economicactivity in all sectors,including mining. Finally, beginningin the 1990s,in line with
manyotherdevelopingcountriesaroundtheworld, theTanzaniangovernmentinstitutedseveralreformsto movetowardsa freemarket
economy, privatize the mining industry and encourageboth domesticand foreign investmentin all economicsectors.In the caseof
themining industry, this wassupplemented,in 1998,throughthepassageof a new, moreindustry-friendlymining code.This codehas
beenstreamlinedundertheMining Act of 1998(revised2010)(the��Mining Act��) currentlycontrollingexploration,mining andrelated
activities in the country.
Tanzaniais asignificantproducerof gold,diamondsandavarietyof coloredgemstonesincludingtanzanite;thetradenamefor generally
heattreated,bluish-purplezoisite.The MerelaniHills, eastof Arusha,is the only placeo n e a r t h wherethis gemstonevariety of
V-rich zoisiteis found in commercialquantities.A recentlydiscovereduraniumdepositis currentlyunderdevelopment,aswell, in the
southeastareaof the country. Tanzaniais Africa��s third leadinggold producer, after GhanaandSouthAfrica, with severalmajor and
junior companiesproducingandexploringfor gold,mostlyin northwesternTanzania,southof LakeVictoria,in anareainformally known
as the Lake Victoria gold belt.
TheHandeniProperty. Goldhasbeenknownin theHandeniareafor manyyearswith someattributingits discoveryto theGermansprior
to World War One;however, it wasthe increasein gold pricesandconsequentincreasein artisanalgold mining activity in theHandeni
areathatled to thediscoveryof largerdepositsof placergold, in turn leadingin 2003to aclassicgold rush.Thediscoveryandminingof
lode deposits followed, soon after, along with the growth of a shanty mining town at the northern base of Magambazi Hill.
In 2005, the Company��smajority shareholder, IPP Gold, enteredinto negotiationswith a group of 34 local artisanalminers that
collectively controlledfour PMLs on andnearMagambaziHill, site of the area��sknown lode mineralization,anduponfailing in this

endeavoracquireda numberof PMLs eastof MagambaziHill from other local owners.A portion of a large (1,200km2) Prospecting
Reconnaissance License (��PLR��) which belonged to Midlands Minerals Tanzania Limited was also acquired by IPP Gold.
Between2005and2010,IPPGold carriedout explorationover its PLR leadingto theupgradingof its holdingsfrom onePLR to four
PLs of 800 km2, in August 2010.Explorationwork includedairbornemagneticand radiometricsurveys,groundmagneticsurveys,
reconnaissancegeologicalmapping,soil sampling,pitting andtrenching.It is thesefour PLs thatwereacquiredby theCompanyfrom
IPP Gold.
Geological Setting
RegionalGeology. The geologicalframeworkof Tanzaniareflectsthe geologichistory of the African continentasa whole. Its present
appearanceis a resultof a seriesof eventsthat beganwith the evolutionof the Archeanshield,followed by its modificationthrough
metamorphicreworkingandaccretionof othercontinentalrocks,in turncoveredby continentallyderivedsediments.Pre-riftmagmatism
followed by active rifting has also left a major mark upon the Tanzanian landscape.
Severalregionalgeologicalmappingprogramshavebeencarriedout acrossthecountryoverthepastonehundredplusyears,which has
led to the recognitionof severalmajor litho-structuralprovincesfrom Archeanto recentage.The Archeancratoncoversmostof the
westerntwo thirdsof thecountry, roughlyboundedto theeastby theEastAfrican Rift. Archeanrockshostall of thecountry��skimberlite
pipesandcontainedlodediamonddeposits,andmostof its lodegold deposits.TheArcheanbasementterrainis boundedto theeastand
westby a seriesof Proterozoicmobilebelts;this area,particularlythat to theeast,hostsmostof thecountry��swide varietyof colored
gemstonedeposits.Somerecentresearchsuggeststhatportionsof thisassumedProterozoicterranemayactuallyconsistof Archeancrust
that has undergone a later phase of higher grade metamorphism.
The Phanerozoicis representedby a seriesof sedimentaryunits of Paleozoicto Mesozoicage,in turn followed by a pre-rift periodof
kimberlitic andrelated,alkalic, mantle-derivedintrusiveandextrusiveactivity that presagedactiverifting. Rocksrelatedto this event
intrudeup to UpperMesozoicandLower Cenozoicsedimentaryformations.Next camea periodof rift-relatedintrusiveandextrusive
activity concentratedin theArushaarea�� to thenortheastandMbeyaarea�� to thesouthwest,which is responsiblefor volcanoessuchas
Mt. MeruandMt. Kilimanjaro.Finally, awidevarietyof recentandlargelysemi-to un-consolidatedwind, waterandweathering-derived
recent formations are found across the country, a number of which host placer gold, diamond and colored gemstone deposits.
Property Geology. The geology of the Handeni area comprisesamphibolite to granulite facies metamorphicrocks interpretedto
originally have formed a sequenceof ultramafic to felsic volcanic flows, black shalesand quartz-bearingsedimentaryrocks. High
grademetamorphismhasconvertedtheseoriginal lithologies to a variety of metamorphicequivalents,including biotite-hornblende-
garnet-pyroxenegneiss,migmatiticaugengarnet-hornblende-pyroxenegneiss,quartzo-feldspathichornblende-biotite-pyroxenegneiss,
pyroxene-hornblende-biotite-garnetgranulite and others.The entire assemblagehas beenfolded into a synform with a northwest-
southeast axis, complicated by numerous faults, some of which are spatially associated with gold mineralization.
Recentresearchby geologistsfrom the University of WesternAustraliasuggeststhat muchof what haspreviouslybeenconsideredto
be of Proterozicage(UsagaranSystem)may in fact be overprintedArcheancrust.This hypothesishasbeeninvokedto help interpret
the geologywithin which gold in this areais found andasthe basisfor an analogybetweenthis gold mineralizationandthat found in
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lessmetamorphosed,bonafide Archeanrocksin theLakeVictoria gold district, a few hundredkm to thenorthwest.However, this is a
hypothesis, only, one that may be used for exploration modeling purposes but one that still requires more work.
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Mineralization
TheHandenipropertyis at anearlystageof exploration.Thereareno knownmineralresourcesor reserveson theHandeniproperty, nor
are there any known deposits on the property.
Insufficient work hasbeencompletedon the Company��spropertyto be ableto commentto any significantextentaboutthe natureof
gold mineralizationfound andthat may be found therein.However, commentsregardingmineralizationmay be madeuponthe basis
of informationreleasedby CRI, the companythat ownsthe immediatelyadjacentMagambazigold deposit,a depositthat remainsthe
subjectof anongoingdrilling programandgeologicalstudiesandwhich is consideredto bethetypeoccurrence/depositfor theevolving
Handeni district. The hill within which this deposit is found extends southeast onto the Company��s property.
Accordingto theaforementionedreportpreparedby Dr. Scheepers,gold is foundwithin garnet-amphibolitezoneswithin biotite-feldspar
gneissat threelocationsin theCompany��sproperty, locationswherehistoricallodegoldoccurrenceshavebeendocumented.Goldoccurs
in quartzveinsaswell aswithin thegarnetamphibolitesadjacentto thequartzveins.Proofof this associationis informally corroborated
by thetestimonyof local,artisanalminers,whoapparentlyrecovergoldbothfrom quartzveinsandgold-bearinggneissthatis notquartz
vein bearing. Gold in the Company��s property has also been documented in soils and placers, at a variety of locations, as well.
Exploration Activities
Whereasgold wasknownin theHandeniareaprior to thearrival in 2005of theCompany��spredecessor, IPPGold, thereis no historyof
anyformal explorationin theareaasidefrom limited work at MagambaziHill itself. IPPGold��sinitial work consistedof soil sampling
anda groundmagneticsurveyover an areaof 200 squarekilometerscoveringthe areanow locatedwithin PL6743/2010immediately
eastof MagambaziHill. Over the five yearsthatensued,this wasfollowed by a seriesof explorationcampaignsinvolving a varietyof
explorationmethods,in turn followedby interpretationandfurtherwork in aniterativefashion.A tablesummarizingthework completed
by IPP Gold (much of which was completed under the supervision of Dr. Scheepers) may be found below.

Summary of Historical Exploration Work, Handeni Property

Work Year Location(s) Worker

Trenching, Pitting & Sampling 2009 Magambazi Hill IPP Gold

Stream Sediment
Sampling

2008 Northeast quadrant of PL6744/2010 IPP Gold

Soil Sampling 2009
2010

East of Magambazi Hill
Over geophysically delineated zones
in PL6779/2010 & PL6742/2010

IPP Gold
IPP Gold
IPP Gold

Airborne Magnetic &
Radiometric Survey

2009 PL6744/2010, PL6744/2010 & PL6779/2010
South African Council
for Geoscience

Geological Mapping
2008
2010

Over geochemically anomalous and
artisanal mining areas

IPP Gold
IPP Gold

Ground Magnetic
Survey

2009
2010

PL6743/2010 IPP Gold

Regional Structural
Interpretation

2009
2010

Entire property
IPP Gold
The Company

Severalexplorationtargetsweredelineatedon thebasisof theaforementionedwork eitherbaseduponanomalousgold soil geochemical
resultsalone,or otherfeaturessingly or in combination,thatbasedupongold depositmodelshavebeendeemedsignificant.Paramount
amongthesearestructuralfeaturesarefolds,shearzones,faultsandthrustfaultsthathavebeeninterpretedon thebasisof themagnetic
andradiometricdata,particularlywherethey havebeenseento be coincidentwith anomalousgold in soils or locationsof historical
artisanalmining. Regardlessof the gold depositmodelone favors,structureis of fundamentalsignificanceasa conduit for andhost
to gold bearingsolutionsand, in this light therefore,all locationswhereanomalousgold hasbeenfound coincidentwith interpreted
structuresmustbeconsideredsignificant,particularlyat this earlystageof explorationon theHandenipropertyandin thedistrict asa
whole.
Conclusions and Recommendations
The author of the Handeni Report indicated that the most important conclusions to be derived at this juncture are:

1. BaseduponCRI��s public disclosure,it appearsasif a bonafide gold deposithasbeendiscoveredat MagambaziHill, a
deposit where ongoing drilling is finding more gold;

2. The southeastextensionof MagambaziHill and, presumably, gold mineralizationfound within, continuesonto the
Company��s PL6743/2010;
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3. Historical placer and lode artisanal mining was a guide to Magambazi��s potential;

4. Thereare a numberof other locationswhereintensiveplacerand artisanalgold mining took placewithin the Handeni
property, notably the Kwandege and Mjembe areas;

5. Processedairbornemagneticandradiometricdatahavedelineatedlinear featuresthathavebeeninterpretedto representa
variety of structures such as shears, thrust faults and cross faults;

6. Limited soil geochemicalsurveying,carriedout acrosssomeof theseinterpretednorthwest-southeasttrendingstructural
features,hasrevealedseverallocationshostinganomalousgold in soils(statisticallyestablishedto begoldvaluesexceeding
10 parts per billion);

7. G old appearsto befurtherconcentratedat theintersectionbetweenthenorthwest-southeasttrendingstructuralfeaturesand
northeast-southwest trending structural features, interpreted to represent later cross faults; and

8. Theseassociationssuggesta relationshipbetweenstructuresand gold, in turn providing a basisupon which to select
additional areas within the Handeni property for more detailed gold exploration.

Exploration conducted 2011/2012.
During our fiscal year ended May 31, 2012, we achieved the following:
a) A helicopterbasedTEM electromagneticand radiometricaerial survey programwas completedby FUGRO over the entire

Companylicencearea(800 km2 ) at 200 meterspacedflight lines in a north-southdirection.Electromagnetic(TEM) aswell as
radiometricdatafor K (Potassium),U (Uranium),andTh (Thorium),aswell astotal countwascollectedsimultaneouslyfor the
4740 line kilometres flown. Selected areas were flown at a line spacing of 100 meters.

The interpreteddataclearly delineatedsubsurfacegeologicalfeaturesof importanceto gold and basemetal mineralizationin
this high grademetamorphicterrain.The dataprovedto be invaluablein the definition of structurallyimportantsitesandtarget
definition.

b) An intensivegroundbasedgeophysicalprogramon the MagambaziEastaswell asthe Kwandegetarget zoneswascompleted.
This data(combinedwith geochemicalresults)wereusedto createdrill targetson thetwo selectedareas,theresultsof which are
reported below.

c) A multi-elementsoil geochemicalprogramwascompletedon the Kwandegetarget delineatingthe extentof the mineralization
zone and assisting the interpretation of the geophysical data to locate drill positions.

d) A large soil sampling program of two targets in PL6743/2010 was initiated and is still continuing.

e) 28 diamondcoreholes(5,347meters)weredrilled on the MagambaziEastandrelatedtargets(figure below).20 of theseholes
(4228m or 79.1%of thetotal 5347metersof drilling) weredrilled on themaingeophysicalandgeochemicalanomalyconsidered
to be an extensionof the main MagambaziHill mineralizationzone.A singlehole (MZD 28; 159 m or 3.0%)wasdrilled on a
potentialmineralizationzonenorth of the main Magambazimineralizationtrendandonehole (MZD 25; 201 m or 3.8%) was
drilled on a potentialmineralizationzonesouthof the main mineralizationzone.Both thesezonesweredelineatedby ground
geophysicsandsoil geochemistryproducingwell defineddrill targets.Six holes(MZD 05,MZD 12,MZD 13,MZD 15,MZD 26
andMZD 27 totaling445m or 14.2%)weredrilled on targetspotentiallyrelatedto theMagambaziHill mineralizationzonesby
faulting and / or folding.

Drill hole positions for the 28 drilled Magambazi core drill holes.
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The drilling program on the Magambazi East targets outlined the following:
i) A gold enrichedmineralizationzoneextendsfor a distanceof approximately500 m to the southeastof the Magambazi

Hill mineralizationas defined by CRI. Gold mineralizationalong the zone is relatedto a folded sequenceof garnet
amphiboliteandconsistsof freegold closelyrelatedto quartzveinsaswell asgold relatedto sulphideswithin this zone.
Themineralizationis structurallycomplexandis mostlikely partof a synclinalstructureplungingto thenorthwestwith
highergradegold zonesconfinedto the fold axisof steeplynorthwestplungingsecondaryfold structureson the limbs of
the syncline.The repetitiondistancesof thesestructuresareunpredictablebasedon the currentresultsanddrill spacing
andanintensiveanddirecteddrilling programwill beneededto investigatetheir economicpotential.Thebestintersection
achieved on the main zone was 4.2 g/t over 5 meters.

ii) A mineralizationzoneto thenorthof themainzone(theNorth easternZone)showsgold potential.Thestrikedistanceof
this zoneon theHandeniGold propertyis approximately330m. Threemineralizedintersectionswereobtained.Thezone
maybeinterpretedasrefoldedmainzoneonthenortheasternflank of thesynclineor a��loweramphibolitezone��ata lower
level of the main Magambazi synclinal structure. The most promising intersection on this zone was 3.75 g/t over 1 meter.

iii) A mineralizationzonewith astrikedistanceof approximately450m to thesouthof themainzone(theSouthwesternZone)
wasintersected.Thegeologicalinterpretationis thesameasfor theNortheasternzone.Fourmineralizedintersectionswere
obtained in this zone of which 1.31 g/t over 1 meter was the intersection obtained.

Evaluationof theeconomicpotentialof thethreemineralizationzoneswill only bepossiblewith closelyspaceddirectional
drilling to follow out themineralization.We will continueits evaluationof theMagambaziEastprojectbasedon a detailed
interpretationof theavailabledrill coreandanintensiveprogramof closespacedgroundgeophysics.Theprojectwill finally
berankedagainst15 otheralreadyidentifiedtargets(thedecisionto continuedrilling on its Kwandegeprojecthasalready
beentaken)beforeadecisiononapossiblecontinuationof thedrilling programonMagambaziEastwill betaken.Intercepts
werereportedasdrilling widthsdueto extremefolding of layers.More drilling will beneededto confirm truewidths.For
theholesreportedfor this phaseof theassayprogramsamplingwasconductedalongonemetercontinuousintervalsof the
core.

f) 37 drill holes(4,989metersin total) havebeendrilled on the Kwandegemineralizedzone,completingthe first phasedrilling
programon this project.The total numberof drill holeson the main Kwandegetarget for the first phasedrilling phasewere
33, including a singlehole abandoneddueto baddrilling ground.26 of the 32 drill holeson the main Kwandegetarget yielded
gold assayvaluesof morethan0.5 g/t overa one-meterintervalor thicker intersection,whereasfour of theremainingholeshad
anomalousgold valuesof up to 0.49 g/t. Threeholesweredrilled on a chargeability and radiometrictarget southof the main
Kwandege target and one on a potential south eastern extension of the main Kwandege target (Figure below).

Kwandege drill hole positions.
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Blue dots represent positions of current artisanal workings and the area outlined in purple is an

approximately 1km2 sulphide and radioelement enriched zone. Hole KW2_10 was drilled on a potential
south eastward extension of the main Kwandege mineralized zone.

Of the threedrill holesdrilled on the chargeability zone(outlinedin purpleon figure above(KW3_01,KW3_02 andKW3_03)
(Fig.1),all threeintersectedthezoneassociatedwith goldmineralizationin theHandeniareabutonly KW3_01yieldedanomalous
goldvaluesof 0.24g/t over1 m intersections.Thus,despitelargepercentagesof pyrite,aswell assomearsenopyritebeingpresent
in mostof thecoreintersectedon thechargeabilityanomalyasoutlined,generalgold valuesover this anomalyareunexpectedly
low. The potential for gold on the perimeter of the chargeability zone however remains high and further drilling is required.
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Anomalousgoldvalueswereinterceptedoverlargeportionsof drill corein KW2_10,drilled onapotentialsoutheasternextension
of the main Kwandegemineralizationzone.Although no valuesof economicgradeare presentin this single drill hole, the
garnetamphibolite(the favourablezonefor gold mineralization)was intersected.The lower valuesare most likely due to an
unfavourablesub-surfacestructuralintersectionandfurtherdrilling is necessaryto assessthe(new)southeasternextensionof the
main Kwandege target.
The best intersections obtained on the first phase of the Kwandege drilling project (32 holes) were:

i) KW2_01 with 4.40 g/t over 12 meters, including 29.5 g/t over 1 m as well as 3.54 g/t over 1 m;
ii) KW2_07 with 6.20 g/t over 5 m including 29.60 g/t over 1 m;
iii) KW1_08 with 1.1 g/t over 9 m including 5.67 g/t over 1 m;
iv) KW1_14 with 1.74 g/t over 6 m including 2.45 g/t over 2m and 3.51 g/t over 1m;
v) KW1_07 and KW4_03 each with 2.11 g/t over 1 m, and
vi) KW2_08 with 3.70 g/t over 1 m.

An importantfeatureof theKwandegetargetis thefact thatlow level gold values(0.5g/t to 1 g/t) wereencounteredin numerous
intersectionsin the drill holesandalsoconfirmedby the latestassayresults.Anomalousgold with somepotentiallyeconomic
intersectionshavebeenencounteredin anE - W (strike)directionof 1,501meters(basedon theresultsof thecompletedphase1
drilling program). The open ended nature of the mineralization in an E-W direction was confirmed.

The structuralcontrol on the gold mineralizationis an importantfeatureof mineralizationat Kwandege.Basedon the current
results,gold is particularlyenrichedin the upperof two garnetamphibolitelayersseparatedby a felsic gneissunit. Within the
garnetamphibolite,gold is mostlikely concentratedin theproximity of fold noses.Thepackageof garnetamphiboliteaswell as
felsic gneiss units are contained within a SSW towards NNE thrust unit.

g) A confinedalluvial mining evaluationprogramwasinitiatedto investigatethepotentialto economicallyminealluvial gold on the
prospecting licenses.

The Company is currently focusing its exploration efforts on:
a) the ranking of its seventeen identified targets and upgrading of the most promising targets to drill target status;
b) detailed work on the Kwandege project to plan the second phase of drilling; and
c) the evaluation of selected alluvial targets.
The estimated budget for the completion of these exploration programs is provided below:

EXPLORATION WORK BUDGET (US$)

Ground Geophysics 250,000

Mapping, trenching, sampling, etc. 250,000

Drilling 950,000

Geologists, field personnel and general exploration 550,000

Sundry & contingencies 500,000

TOTAL $2,500,000

The Company��s Recent Exploration Activities
During the quarter ended August 31, 2012, we:

a) Collecteda total of 5,050soil samples(including blanksandstandards)from targetsin PL6743that arecurrentlybeing
analysedby XRF andpreparedfor submissionto assaylaboratories.In collaborationwith theTanzanianGeologicalSurvey
a soil sampling program is currently being undertaken on Target 6 on PL6779/2010.

b) Receivedtheresultsof thesoil samplingprogramonTarget5 which to datearehighly encouragingwith gold in soil values
of up to 200ppbencountered.Au (gold) assayresultswerereceivedfor 2,331samples.Thegeochemicaltargetcoincides
with a magneticandelectro-magneticgeophysicalanomalyon surfaceoveranareaof approximately1.8km (N-S) by 900
m (E-W). Theanomalousgold zoneapparentlydipsE - SEaspartof a largefold structure.High Au valuescoincidewith
topographic highs. The evaluation of this target will be continued by pitting, trenching and ground IP.

c) Are evaluatingthe ��alluvial�� gold potentialof an areaproximal to our MagambaziEast target area.The drilling of 3
successfulRCholesfor watersolvedtheconstantwatershortageproblemandis nowprovidingthewashingandseparation
operationswith a sustainable15,000liters perhourfrom two of theholescurrentlybeingutilized.This wateralsosecured
a water sourcefor future drilling operationson our licenses.Approximately32% of a pitting, trenchingand separation
exercise on the area targeted for the evaluation of a potential ��alluvial�� gold operation is currently completed.
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Other exploration related activities currently under way on the companies Handeni licenses include:
a) Identificationof potentialalluvial mining areasotherthanthosecurrentlyknow andbeingevaluatedby utilizing

remote sensing activities.
b) A detailed geophysical interpretation of already collected geophysical data.
c) A petrological,geochemicalandmineralogicalinvestigationof theKwandegedrill coreto understandthestyleof

gold mineralization at this locality.
d) XRF (hand held) analysesof soil samplestaken to produce an algorithm to relate Au anomaliesto soil

geochemistry. The aim is to reduceassaycost as well as to characterizethe two main stylesof mineralization
identified on the HNDI properties.

During the quarter ended November 30, 2012, the Company:
a) Completedthe soil samplingprogramon Target 6 in collaborationwith the TanzanianGeologicalSurvey. Thesesamples

are currently being prepared for gold analyses.
b) Completedthefield work to evaluatethealluvial potentialof theareaselectedin thevicinity of ourMagambaziEasttarget.
c) Completed the geophysical evaluation of our four (4) prospecting licenses (PL��s).
d) Completed a detailed structural investigation into structural controls on gold mineralization on our 4 prospecting licenses.

A major focusof the companyat this stageis target prioritization andselectionof areason the propertyto retain.The first draft of
recommendationsin this regardis to befinalizedby theCompany��stechnicalcommittee.Thefinal draft of thedocumentis expectedto
be handed in by middle March 2013.
Mkuvia Alluvial Gold Project
Our otherpropertyof interestis theMkuvia Alluvial Gold Project.On June27, 2008but effectiveon August4, 2008whenratified by
ourBoardof Directors,weenteredinto aJointVentureAgreementwith Mkuvia Maita(��Mr. Maita��), theregisteredholderof certainPLs
over certainareascoveringapproximately430 squarekilometerslocatedin the Liwale andNachigweaDistricts of Tanzania.Pursuant
to this agreementwe hadtheright to enter, sample,drill andotherwiseexplorefor mineralson thepropertyunderlyingtheprospecting
licensesasgrantedby theGovernmentof TanzaniaundertheMining Act, subjectto aperpetualnetsmelterroyalty returnof 3%payable
to Mr. Maita.
Effectiveon July 14,2009,our Boardof Directorsratified,confirmedandapprovedour enteringinto of a newJointVentureAgreement
(the��NewMkuvia Agreement��)with Mr. Maita.TheNewMkuvia Agreementcoversaslightly smallerareathantheoriginalagreement,
covering an areaof approximately380 squarekilometers located in the Liwale and NachigweaDistricts of Tanzania,and more
particularly described as follows:

¥ Prospecting License No. 5673/2009;
¥ Prospecting License No. 5669/2009;
¥ Prospecting License No. 5664/2009; and
¥ Prospecting License No. 5662/2009.

The New Mkuvia Agreement,which is datedfor referenceJune5, 2009,supersedesandreplacesthe prior joint ventureagreementas
enteredinto by andbetweenourCompanyandMr. Maita (the��PriorAgreement��)regardingprior prospectinglicensesheldby Mr. Maita
over substantially the same area, known as the ��Mkuvia Project��, which is the focus of our current exploration and development efforts.
Pursuantto thetermsof theNew Mkuvia Agreementwe shallcontinueto havetheright to enter, sample,drill andotherwiseexplorefor
mineralson thepropertyunderlyingthenewPLsasgrantedby theGovernmentof TanzaniaundertheMining Act andanyotherrights
covered by the PLs listed above.
In considerationfor the entry into of the New Mkuvia Agreement,we wererequiredto pay Mr. Maita US$40,000uponsigningof the
New Mkuvia Agreement.In addition,anduponcommencementof anyproductionon thepropertyunderlyingtheprospectinglicenses,
Mr. Maita is still entitledto receivea perpetualnetsmelterroyalty returnof 3% from anyproductrealizedfrom thepropertyunderlying
thePLsundertheNew Mkuvia Agreement.By enteringinto theNew Mkuvia Agreement,we areno longerrequiredto payMr. Maita
thebalanceof approximatelyUS$460,000in aggregateyearlycashpaymentspreviouslydueunderthePriorAgreementin consideration,
in part, of our Companyreducingthe currentunexploredpropertyareaunderlyingthe prospectinglicensesunder the New Mkuvia
Agreement by approximately 50 square kilometers.
TheCompanyis awarethatthefour PLsexpiredduringMay andJuneof 2012.TheCompanyis alsoinformedthatrenewalapplications
weresubmitted(50%of eachof thefour properties)by theowner, Mr. Maita,asrenewallicenses,andthatapplicationsfor theremaining
50%of eachof thefour licensesweresubmitted.If thereareotherapplicantsfor theremaining50%of eachof thefour PLs,theCompany
understandsthat therewill be a tenderprocessfor thesePLs. At this time the Companyis consideringits interestin thesePLs going
forward but no final determination has been made as of yet.
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Thepropertyhasseveraloverlyingprimarymining licenses(againPMLs) thathavemineralrights that lie within theboundariesof the
Mkuvia property. Generally, PMLs representlimited mining rightswhich allow thesmall scaleexplorationof mineralsby local miners
andmustpredatetheestablishmentof aprospectinglicense.PMLsareretainedexclusivelyfor Tanzaniancitizens.Themaximumsizeof
thedemarcatedareafor aPML for all mineralsotherthanbuildingmaterialsis 10hectares.ThePML is grantedfor aperiodof five years,
renewableonceuponrequest.Whena PML expires,themineralrightssucceedto theunderlyingPL andcannotberenewedor re-staked
thereafter, solong asthePL remainsvalid. Specifically, thePMLs on theMkuvia propertyconsistof approximately115 licensesowned
by Mr. Maita,andhavebeenprovidedfor in theNew Mkuvia Agreement.Upona successfulmining permitapplicationandreceipt,the
PMLs will be collapsed and superseded by the PL rights.
We obtaineda Technicaland RecourseReporton the Mkuvia Alluvial Gold Project,datedJuly 24, 2009,as preparedby Laurence
Stephenson,P. Eng.,andRossMcMaster, MAusIMM. This reportwaspreparedin accordancewith NI 43-101.Much of theinformation
regarding the Mkuvia Alluvial Gold Project as provided below is based on information provided in that NI 43-technical report.
EffectiveNovember7,2009,weenteredinto apurchaseagreement(the��PurchaseAgreement��)with RubyCreekResources,Inc. (��Ruby
Creek��),pursuantto which Ruby Creekhasthe right to purchasea 70 percentinterestin 125 squarekilometresof our 380 square
kilometreMkuvia Alluvial Gold Projectuponpaymentof $3,000,000overa three-yearperiod.Thescheduleby which RubyCreekis to
pay such $3,000,000 to our Company is as follows:

¥ $100,000 within five business days of signing of the Purchase Agreement (received);
¥ $150,000 within 15 business days of signing of the Purchase Agreement (received);
¥ $100,000 upon satisfactory completion of Ruby Creek��s due diligence (received);
¥ $400,000 upon closing under the Purchase Agreement and receipt of the first mining license;
¥ $750,000 within 12 months of closing;
¥ $750,000 within 24 months of closing and
¥ $750,000within 36 monthsof closing(this final paymentmaybemade,in RubyCreek��sdiscretion,in cashor sharesof Ruby

Creek).
In a furtherpurchaseagreementbetweenourCompanyandRubyCreekdatedfor referenceMay 19,2010andfully executedonJune16,
2010(the��FurtherPurchaseAgreement��),RubyCreekagreedto purchase70%of theremaining255sqkm of theMkuvia Alluvial Gold
Projectin accordancewith the termsof suchFurtherPurchaseAgreement.Underthe termsof the FurtherPurchaseAgreement,Ruby
Creekwill earna 70 percentinterestin theremaining255squarekilometresof our 380squarekilometreMkuvia Alluvial Gold Project
by making payments totaling $6,000,000 to us. The schedule by which Ruby Creek is to pay such $6,000,000 to us is as follows:

¥ $200,000 due within seven days of execution of the Further Purchase Agreement (received);
¥ $150,000(received)plustheissuanceof 4 million restrictedsharesof commonstockof RubyCreek,with anagreeduponvalue

of $0.80per sharefor a statedvaluationof $3.2 million, within 30 daysof the receiptof Certificatesof Acknowledgement
for all underlyingandrelatedAgreementsfrom theCommissionerfor Mineralsin Tanzaniaasrequiredby theMining Act of
Tanzania (Certificates of Acknowledgement received August 12, 2010, and shares issued on December 16, 2010);

¥ $450,000 on June 1, 2011 (unpaid);
¥ $1,000,000 on June 1, 2012 (unpaid); and
¥ $1,000,000 on June 1, 2013 (which may be satisfied by the issuance of stock by Ruby Creek).

Thus, the combinedpaymentsunder the November2009 and the June2010 PurchaseAgreementand FurtherPurchaseAgreement
providefor a totalcommitmentof $9,000,000payableto ourCompanyby RubyCreekto purchasea70%interestin theentire380square
kilometre Mkuvia Alluvial Gold Project.
Theownershipstructureof the interestin theMkuvia Alluvial Gold Projectshall bea 70%interestfor RubyCreek,a 25%interestfor
our Companyanda 5% interestfor Mr. Mkuvia Maita, theoriginal ownerof theunderlyingPLs.In addition,Mr. Maita retainsa 3% net
smelterroyalty. However, the FurtherPurchaseAgreementalsoprovidesthat Ruby Creekmay increaseits ownershippositionfrom a
70% interest to 75%, reducing our position to 20%, by giving notice to us and paying $1,000,000 to us by June 1, 2011 (unpaid).
As indicatedin ��PART II �� OTHER INFORMATION, Item 1. �� Legal Proceedings��below, on February8, 2012,Ruby Creekfiled a
lawsuitagainsttheCompanyin theSupremeCourt,Stateof New York, in which RubyCreekallegesthattheCompanyparticipatedin a
fraudulenttransferof themineralpropertyintereststhatRubyCreekhadtheright to purchasepursuantto theabove-referencedPurchase
AgreementandFurtherPurchaseAgreementwith theCompany. TheCompanyis of theview thatsuchallegationsarewithout merit and
intendsto vigorouslycontesttheaction.On February23, 2012,theCompanyfiled a lawsuitagainstRubyCreekin theSupremeCourt
of British Columbia,seekingrelief for RubyCreek��sbreachof its paymentobligationsundertheabove-referencedPurchaseAgreement
andFurtherPurchaseAgreementandseekinganorderthatRubyCreekremovetheU.S.restrictivelegendfrom RubyCreeksharesissued
to theCompanyundertheagreements.To date,RubyCreekis in defaultwith respectto $1.45million in scheduledpaymentsdueto the
Company under the Purchase Agreement and Further Purchase Agreement.
We havenot receivedanyupdatefrom RubyCreekon its explorationactivitiesconductedon theMkuvia propertiesduringthefinancial
yearendedMay 31, 2012to date.The Companyis hopeful that it will be ableto receivesuchexplorationdatain orderto assistit in
determiningwhetherto makean applicationfor the remainingportion of the PLs throughwhat the Companyis informed is a tender
process to come.
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Compliance with Government Regulation
We aresubjectto local laws and regulationgoverningthe exploration,development,mining, production,importing andexportingof
minerals;taxes;laborstandards;occupationalhealth;wastedisposal;protectionof theenvironment;minesafety;toxic substances;and
othermatters.Werequirelicensesandpermitsto conductexplorationandminingoperations.Amendmentsto currentlawsandregulations
governingoperationsandactivitiesof mining companiesor morestringentimplementationthereofcouldhavea materialadverseimpact
on our Company. Applicable laws and regulationswill requireus to makecertaincapital and operatingexpendituresto initiate new
operations.Undercertaincircumstances,wemayberequiredto closeanoperationonceit is starteduntil aparticularproblemis remedied
or to undertake other remedial actions. This would have a material adverse effect on our results and financial condition.
Our mineral interestsin Tanzaniaareheld underPLs grantedpursuantto the Mining Act for an initial periodof threeyearsandare
renewablein two successiveperiodsof two yearsonly. The annualrental feesfollowing the first renewalwill be US$150per square
kilometerperyearandfollowing thesecondrenewaltherentalfeewill beUS$200persquarekilometerperyear. Thereis alsoaninitial
one-time��preparationfee�� of $200per license.Upon renewal,we pay a fee of $300per license.Renewalsof our PLs cantakemany
months and even years to process by the regulatory authority in Tanzania.
All PLsin Tanzaniarequiretheholderto employandtrain local residents,typically amountingto $5,000peryear, andmakeexploration
expenditures,assetout in theMining Act. At eachrenewal,at least50%of our licensedareamustberelinquished.If we wish to keep
the relinquished one-half portion, we must file a new application for the relinquished portion.
Thegeographicalareacoveredby a PL maycontainoneor morepreviouslygrantedPML. A PML is a mining licensegrantedonly to a
Tanzaniancitizenconsistingof anareaof not to exceed10 hectares.Oncea PL is granted,no additionalPMLs canbegrantedwithin the
geographicalareacoveredby thePL. ThePL is subjectto the rightsof previouslygrantedandexistingPMLs. Theholderof a PL will
haveto work aroundthegeographicalareaof thePML unlessthePL holderacquiresthePML andanyrightsto thelandcoveredby the
PML.
We musthold a mining licenseto carryon mining activities,which aregrantedonly to theholderof a PL coveringa particulararea.A
mining licenseis grantedfor a periodof 25 yearsor thelife of themine.It is renewablefor a periodnot exceeding15 years.Otherthan
thePMLsbeingheldunderHandeniResources,wedonotholdanymining licenses,only PLs.An applicationfor the32PMLsbeingheld
underagreementby HandeniResourcesto bechangedinto a mining license(ML) is underway. Prospectingandmining licenseholders
mustsubmitregularreportsin accordancewith mining regulations.Uponcommercialproduction,thegovernmentof Tanzaniaimposes
a royalty on thegrossvalueof all productionat the rateof 3% of all gold produced.Theapplicableregulatorybody in Tanzaniais the
Ministry of Energy and Minerals.
In July 1999,environmentalmanagementandprotectionregulationsunderthe Mining Act cameinto force.An environmentalimpact
statementandanenvironmentalmanagementplanmustaccompanyspecialmining license,mining licenseandgemstonemining license
applicationsfor mineralrights. In additionto the establishmentof environmentalregulations,the Tanzaniangovernmenthasimproved
managementproceduresfor effective monitoring and enforcementof theseregulationsby strengtheningthe institutional capacity,
especiallyin thefield offices.Thegovernmenthasprovidedrulesfor thecreationof reclamationfundsto reinstatelandto alternativeuses
aftermining andit hasdevelopedguidelinesfor mining in restrictedareas,suchasforestreserves,nationalparks,nearsourcesof water
and other designated areas. These regulations have not had any material effect on our operations to date.
Competition
We operatein a highly competitiveindustry, competingwith othermining andexplorationcompanies,andinstitutionalandindividual
investors,which are actively seekingmineralsexplorationpropertiesthroughoutthe world togetherwith the equipment,labour and
materialsrequiredto exploit suchproperties.Many of our competitorshavefinancial resources,staff andfacilities substantiallygreater
thanours.Theprincipalareaof competitionis encounteredin thefinancialability to costeffectively acquireprimemineralsexploration
prospectsand then exploit suchprospects.Competitionfor the acquisitionof mineralsexplorationpropertiesis intense,with many
propertiesavailablein a competitivebidding processin which we may lack technologicalinformationor expertiseavailableto other
bidders.Therefore,wemaynotbesuccessfulin acquiring,exploringanddevelopingprofitablepropertiesin thefaceof thiscompetition.
No assurancecan be given that a sufficient numberof suitablemineralsexplorationpropertieswill be available for acquisition,
exploration and development.
Employees
Otherthanourofficersanddirectors,wehadapproximately16 full-time equivalentemployeesandconsultantsasof November30,2012,
and14 of which were locatedin Tanzania.We retain independentgeologistsandconsultantson a contractbasisto conductthe work
programs on our mineral properties in order to carry out our plan of operations.
Research and Development Expenditures
We have not incurred any research or development expenditures since our incorporation.
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Subsidiaries
TheCompanyhastwo subsidiaries,bothof which areTanzaniancompanies:(i) HG Limited (formerly DLM TanzaniaLimited); and(ii)
Douglas Lake Tanzania Limited, which is inactive.
Patents and Trademarks
We do not own, either legally or beneficially, any patent or trademark.
Plan of Operations
Our plan of operationsfor the fiscal yearendingMay 31, 2013 is to focuson the explorationof our mineralpropertiesin Tanzania,
particularlyon the Handeniproperty. During this fiscal year, we anticipatean expenditureof approximately$2,500,000for our annual
plan of explorationwork mainly on groundgeophysics,mapping,trenchingandsampling($500,000),drilling ($950,000),sundryand
contingencies ($500,000) as well as payment of geologists, field personnel and general exploration (US$550,000).
We also estimateapproximately$1,500,000for our annualconsulting,generaland administration,professionaland other operating
expenses during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2013.
During thesix monthsendedNovember30,2012,wespent$407,000cashin explorationandapproximately$696,000in otheroperating
expenses.
At November30,2012,we hadcashof $297,000andworking capitalof $933,000.Our actualexpendituresmayexceedour estimations.
As such,we estimatedasof November30,2012thatwe will needa minimumof $1.96million in additionalfundsto coverour planned
operations through to our fiscal year ending May 31, 2013, either through the sale of capital stock or from borrowing.
During thesix monthsendedNovember30,2012,we havereceivedsubscriptionfundsin theamountof $500,000pursuantto proposed
privateplacementsrelatedto theCompany��sTanzanianandEastAfrican fund raising.On December7, 2012,theCompanyenteredinto
a facility agreementwith IPPLtd., a privatecompanycontrolledby thechairmanof HandeniGold Inc. The facility agreementensures
that theCompanywill havesufficient funding for its key explorationactivitiesup to June2013.The fundingwill be in the form of an
interestfreeunsecuredloanto theCompanyof up to $720,000by wayof monthlydrawdownsof amaximumamountof US$100,000per
calendar month from December 2012 up to and including June 2013.
Weanticipatethatwewill notgenerateanyrevenueduringthis fiscalyear. Accordingly, wewill berequiredto obtainadditionalfinancing
in orderto pursueour planof operations.We believethatexternaldebtfinancingwill not beanalternativefor fundingadditionalphases
of explorationaswe do not havetangibleassetsto secureanydebtfinancing.We anticipatethatadditionalfundingwill be in the form
of equity financingfrom the saleof our commonstock.We cannotprovideinvestorswith any assurancethat we will be ableto raise
sufficient fundingfrom thesaleof our commonstockto fund our acquisitionandexplorationprogramgoingforward.In theabsenceof
suchfinancing,we will not beableto continueacquisitionandexplorationof mineralclaimsandour businessplanwill fail. Evenif we
aresuccessfulin obtainingequityfinancingto fundouracquisitionandexplorationprogram,thereis noassurancethatwewill obtainthe
funding necessaryto pursueany advancedexplorationof any mineralclaims.If we do not continueto obtainadditionalfinancing,we
will be forced to abandon our mineral claims and our plan of operations.
Results of Operations
Wehavehadnooperatingrevenuessinceour inception(January5, 2004)to November30,2012.Weanticipatethatwewill notgenerate
any revenues for so long as we are an exploration stage company.
The following table sets out our loss for the periods indicated:
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January 5, 2004
(Date of Inception)

For the Three Months Ended, For the Six Months Ended, to November 30,
November 30, 2012 November 30, 2011 November 30, 2012 November 30, 2011 2012

Revenue $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Expenses
Consulting fees 209,680 486,478 496,250 958,000 23,971,366
Depreciation 50,839 33,588 102,677 69,582 342,560
Exploration expenses 175,345 2,579,561 406,559 3,301,037 7,803,416
General and administrative 205,321 261,580 459,288 306,145 2,850,445
Impairment of mineral property- - - - 77,492,074
Professional 29,626 265,065 111,991 496,807 2,480,350
Rent 14,868 39,668 46,157 72,399 393,739
Travel and investor relations 13,052 114,600 65,509 190,688 1,954,795

Total Expenses 698,731 3,780,540 1,688,431 5,394,658 117,288,745
Loss From Operations (698,731 ) (3,780,540 ) (1,688,431 ) (5,394,658 ) (117,288,745 )

Other Income (Expenses)
Gain on write-down of accrued

liabilities - 99,246 - 99,246 458,058
Impairment of marketable

securities (1,600,000 ) - (1,600,000 ) - (1,600,000 )
Interest income 245 143 313 143 1,103
Loss on sale of investment

securities - - - - (57,071 )
Loss on write-down of

amounts receivable - - - - (81,641 )
Mineral property option

payments received - - - - 3,616,017
Recovery of mineral property

costs for
stock not issuable - - - - 2,253,000

(1,599,755 ) 99,389 (1,599,687 ) 99,389 4,589,466
Net Loss (2,298,486 ) (3,681,151 ) (3,288,118 ) (5,295,269 ) (112,699,279 )
Other Comprehensive Income
(Loss)

Unrealized gain (loss) on
marketable securities (420,000 ) 160,000 (1,000,000 ) 200,000 (1,000,000 )

Comprehensive Loss $ (2,718,486 ) $ (3,521,151 )$ (4,288,118 ) $ (5,095,269 )$ (113,699,279 )
Three Months Ended November 30, 2012 Compared to Three Months Ended November 30, 2011
Ourexpensesfor thethreemonthsendedNovember30,2012decreasedby $3,082,000to $699,000from $3,781,000for thethreemonths
ended November 30, 2011, as follows:

¥ Our consulting, general and administrative fees decreased approximately by $333,000 to $415,000 during the three months
ended November 30, 2012 (2011 - $748,000), primarily due to decreases in stock-based compensation and cash expenditures.
Included in consulting, general and administrative fees was $183,074 of the fair value of the stock-based compensation during
the three months ended November 30, 2012 (2011 - $421,947). Our cash expenditures in consulting, general and
administrative fees decreased approximately by $94,000 during the three months ended November 30, 2012 as compared to
the same period in 2011, primarily due to cost management;

¥ Our depreciation fees increased by $17,000 to $51,000 during the three months ended November 30, 2012 (2011 - $34,000)
mainly due to our increased expenditures on camp and equipment;

¥ Our exploration expenses decreased by $2,404,000 to $175,000 during the three months ended November 30, 2012 (2011 -
$2,580,000) due to our decreased exploration activities during the period;
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¥ Our professional fees decreased by $235,000 to $30,000 during the three months ended November 30, 2012 (2011 - $265,000)
primarily due to decreased legal and accounting service fees as a result of more work performed in-house by management and
significant changes in the management during 2011.

¥ Our travel and investor relations expenses decreased by $102,000 to $13,000 during the three months ended November 30,
2012 (2011 - $115,000) primarily due to less travel expenses and cost management.

Six Months Ended November 30, 2012 Compared to Six Months Ended November 30, 2011
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Our expensesfor thesix monthsendedNovember30,2012decreasedby $3,707,000to $1,688,000from $5,395,000for thesix months
ended November 30, 2011, as follows:

¥ Our consulting, general and administrative fees decreased approximately by $308,000 to $956,000 during the six months
ended November 30, 2012 (2011 - $1,264,000), primarily due to decreases in stock-based compensation and cash
expenditures. Included in consulting, general and administrative fees was $488,982 of the fair value of the stock-based
compensation during the six months ended November 30, 2012 (2011 - $599,704). Our cash expenditures in consulting,
general and administrative fees decreased approximately by $197,000 during the six months ended November 30, 2012 as
compared to the same period in 2011, primarily due to cost management;

¥ Our depreciation fees increased by $33,000 to $103,000 during the six months ended November 30, 2012 (2011 - $70,000)
mainly due to our increased expenditures on camp and equipment;

¥ Our exploration expenses decreased by $2,894,000 to $407,000 during the six months ended November 30, 2012 (2011 -
$3,301,000) due to our decreased exploration activities during the period;

¥ Our professional fees decreased by $385,000 to $112,000 during the six months ended November 30, 2012 (2011 - $497,000)
primarily due to decreased legal and accounting service fees as a result of more work performed in-house by management and
significant changes in the management during 2011.

¥ Our travel and investor relations expenses decreased by $125,000 to $66,000 during the six months ended November 30, 2012
(2011 - $191,000) primarily due to less travel expenses and cost management.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
The Companyhasbeenreviewing its budgetsfor its currentbusinessneedsand its further exploration.We estimatethat our total
expendituresfor our fiscal yearendingMay 31, 2013will be approximately$4 million, asoutlinedaboveunderthe heading��Planof
Operations��.During thesix monthsendedNovember30, 2012,we spent$407,000cashin explorationandapproximately$696,000in
otheroperatingexpenses.At November30,2012,wehadcashof $297,000andworkingcapitalof $933,000.As such,weestimatedasof
November30,2012thatwe needa minimumof $1.96million in additionalfundsto fund our plannedoperationsthroughMay 31,2013.
Althoughwehaveenteredinto a$720,000facility agreementsubsequentto November30,2012,asdescribedin thefollowing paragraph,
we will needa minimumof $1.34million in additionalfundsto fund our plannedoperationsthroughMay 31, 2013,eitherthroughthe
sale of capital stock or from borrowing.
During thesix monthsendedNovember30,2012,we havereceivedsubscriptionfundsin theamountof $500,000pursuantto proposed
privateplacementsrelatedto theCompany��sTanzanianandEastAfrican fund raising.On December7, 2012,theCompanyenteredinto
a facility agreementwith IPPLtd., a privatecompanycontrolledby thechairmanof HandeniGold Inc. The facility agreementensures
that theCompanywill havesufficient funding for its key explorationactivitiesup to June2013.The fundingwill be in the form of an
interestfree unsecuredloan to the Companyof up to $720,000by way of monthly drawdownsof a maximumamountof US$100,000
percalendarmonthfrom December2012up to andincludingJune2013.As of thedateof this report,theCompanyreceiveda total of
$245,683 from IPP Ltd.
We havenot generatedrevenuessincethedateof inceptionon January5, 2004,andour cashhasbeengeneratedprimarily from thesale
of our securities.During our fiscal yearendingMay 31,2013,we anticipatethatwe will not generateanyrevenue.Accordingly, we will
be requiredto obtainadditionalfinancingin orderto pursueour plan of operationsthroughthe endof our fiscal yearendingMay 31,
2013.Weanticipatethatadditionalfundingwill bein theform of equityfinancingfrom thesaleof ourcommonstock.Wecannotprovide
investorswith anyassurancethatwe will beableto raisesufficient funding from thesaleof our commonstockto fund our acquisition
andexplorationprogramgoing forward. In the absenceof suchfinancing,we will not be ableto continueacquisitionandexploration
of mineralclaimsandour businessplan will fail. Evenif we aresuccessfulin obtainingequity financingto fund our acquisitionand
explorationprogram,thereis no assurancethatwe will obtainthefundingnecessaryto pursueanyadvancedexplorationof anymineral
claims. If we do not continue to obtain additional funding, we will be forced to abandon our mineral claims and our plan of operations.
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities
Netcashusedin operatingactivitieswas$1,103,000duringthesix monthsendedNovember30,2012,ascomparedto $2,019,000during
thesameperiodendedNovember30,2011. Thelowercashexpenditureduringthesix monthsendedNovember30,2012wasmainlydue
to theCompanylower explorationandoperatingexpensesduringtheperiod.Net cashusedin operatingactivitiesfrom our inceptionon
January 5, 2004 to November 30, 2012 was $18,552,000.
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
Netcashusedin thepurchaseof equipmentwas$9,000andcashreceivedfrom disposalof equipmentwas$22,000duringthesix months
endedNovember30,2012.During thesix monthsendedNovember30,2011, netcashusedin thepurchaseof equipmentwas$144,000
for explorationactivitiesin Tanzania.Net cashusedin investingactivitiesfrom our inceptionon January5, 2004to November30,2012
was $864,000.
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Net Cash from Financing Activities
During the six months ended November 30, 2012, we received $500,000net cash from financing activities (receipt of stock
subscriptions),ascomparedto $14,000duringthesameperiodendedNovember30,2011. Wehavefundedourbusinessto dateprimarily
from salesof ourcommonstock.Fromour inceptiononJanuary5, 2004to November30,2012,netcashprovidedby financingactivities
was $19,713,000.
Thereareno assurancesthatwe will beableto achievefurthersalesof our commonstockor anyotherform of additionalfinancing.If
we areunableto achievethefinancingnecessaryto continueour planof operations,thenwe will not beableto continueour exploration
of the property underlying our mineral claim interest and our venture will fail.
Going Concern
We havenot attainedprofitableoperationsandaredependentuponobtainingfinancingto pursueany extensiveexplorationactivities.
For thesereasonsour auditorsstatedin their reporton our auditedfinancialstatementsfor theyearendedMay 31, 2012that theyhave
substantial doubt we will be able to continue as a going concern.
Futur e Financings
We anticipatecontinuingto rely on equitysalesof our commonsharesin orderto continueto fund our businessoperations.Issuancesof
additionalshareswill resultin dilution to ourexistingshareholders.Thereis noassurancethatwewill achieveanyadditionalsalesof our
equity securities or arrange for debt or other financing to fund our planned exploration activities.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Wehavenosignificantoff-balancesheetarrangementsthathaveor arereasonablylikely to haveacurrentor futureeffectonour financial
condition,changesin financialcondition,revenuesor expenses,resultsof operations,liquidity, capitalexpendituresor capitalresources
that is material to stockholders.
Related Party Transactions
Thedetailsof relatedpartytransactionsaredisclosedin footnote8 of ourcompany��sinterimunauditedconsolidatedfinancialstatements
for the fiscal quarter ended November 30, 2012 (Item 1, above).
Segment Disclosures
TheCompanyoperatesin onereportablesegment,locatedin TanzaniaAfrica, beingtheacquisitionandexplorationof mineralproperties.
Thedetailsof segmentdisclosuresaredisclosedin footnote16of ourcompany��sinterimunauditedconsolidatedfinancialstatementsfor
the fiscal quarter ended November 30, 2012 (Item 1, above).
Inflation
We do not believe that inflation has had a significant impact on our consolidated results of operations or financial condition.
Contractual Obligations
a) The Companywascommittedto the paymentof a cashfee of 7% within 48 hoursof the receiptof proceedsfrom the exercise

of anywarrantsattachedto the17,757,777unitssoldby Rodman& Renshawin theMarch2011 privateplacements.During the
six monthsendedNovember30,2012,5,446,667stockpurchasewarrantsrelatedto suchunitsexpired.Theremaining12,311,110
stock purchase warrants related to such units are exercisable on or before September 29, 2013.

b) The Companyis committedto the paymentof a cashfee of 7% of the purchaseprice andthe issuanceof warrantsequalto 7%
of thesharesissuedwith respectto anypublic or privatefinancingprovidedby investorswhomRodman& Renshawintroduced,
directlyor indirectly, in theMarch2011 privateplacementswithin 24monthsof theclosingof theMarch2011 privateplacements.

c) OnDecember7, 2012,theCompanyenteredinto afacility agreementwith IPPLtd., aprivatecompanycontrolledby thechairman
of HandeniGoldInc.Thefacility agreementensuresthattheCompanywill havesufficient fundingfor its keyexplorationactivities
up to June2013.Thefundingwill be in theform of aninterestfreeunsecuredloanof up to $720,000to theCompanyby way of
monthly drawdownsof a maximumamountof US$100,000per calendarmonthfrom December2012up to andincluding June
2013. The total amount drawn down by the Company is due to be repaid on or before December 31, 2013.

Critical Accounting Policies
Our financial statementsandaccompanyingnoteshavebeenpreparedin accordancewith United Statesgenerallyacceptedaccounting
principlesappliedon a consistentbasis.Thepreparationof financial statementsin conformitywith U.S.generallyacceptedaccounting
principlesrequiresmanagementto makeestimatesandassumptionsthataffect thereportedamountsof assetsandliabilities, thedisclosure
of contingentassetsandliabilities at thedateof the financialstatementsandthereportedamountsof revenuesandexpensesduring the
reporting periods.
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We regularlyevaluatetheaccountingpoliciesandestimatesthatwe useto prepareour financial statements.In general,management��s
estimatesarebasedon historicalexperience,on informationfrom third party professionals,andon variousotherassumptionsthat are
believed to be reasonable under the facts and circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates made by management.
We believethe following critical accountingpoliciesrequireus to makesignificant judgmentsandestimatesin the preparationof our
consolidated financial statements.
Basis of Presentation
The Company��sconsolidatedfinancial statementsandrelatednotesarepresentedin accordancewith accountingprinciplesgenerally
acceptedin theUnitedStates,andareexpressedin U.S.dollars.TheCompany��sconsolidatedfinancialstatementsincludetheaccounts
of the Companyandits subsidiariesdescribedasfollows. In June2011, the Companyincorporatedin Tanzaniaa new wholly-owned
subsidiary, DLM TanzaniaLimited (now knownasHG Limited), which undertakesmineralpropertyexplorationactivitiesin Tanzania.
The Company also has a wholly-owned non-operating Tanzanian subsidiary (Douglas Lake Tanzania Limited).
All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. The Company��s fiscal year-end is May 31.
Use of Estimates
Thepreparationof consolidatedfinancialstatementsin accordancewith UnitedStatesgenerallyacceptedaccountingprinciplesrequires
managementto makeestimatesandassumptionsthataffect thereportedamountsof assetsandliabilities at thedateof theconsolidated
financial statementsand the reportedamountsof revenueand expensesin the reporting period. The Companyregularly evaluates
estimatesand assumptionsrelated to the recoverability and useful life of long-lived assets,mineral prospectinglicenses,stock-
basedcompensation,deferredincometax assetvaluationallowancesandcontingentliabilities. The Companybasesits estimatesand
assumptionson currentfacts,historicalexperienceandvariousotherfactorsthat it believesto be reasonableunderthe circumstances,
theresultsof which form thebasisfor makingjudgmentsaboutthecarryingvaluesof assetsandliabilities andtheaccrualof costsand
expensesthat arenot readily apparentfrom othersources.The actualresultsexperiencedby the Companymay differ materiallyand
adverselyfrom theCompany��sestimates.To theextenttherearematerialdifferencesbetweentheestimatesandtheactualresults,future
results of operations will be affected.
Basic and Diluted Net Income (Loss) Per Share
The Companycomputesnet income(loss)per sharein accordancewith ASC 260,Earningsper Share which requirespresentationof
bothbasicanddilutedearningspershare(��EPS��)on the faceof the incomestatement.BasicEPSis computedby dividing net income
(loss)availableto commonshareholders(numerator)by the weightedaveragenumberof sharesoutstanding(denominator)during the
period.Diluted EPSgiveseffect to all dilutive potentialcommonsharesoutstandingduring theperiodusingthe treasurystockmethod
andconvertiblepreferredstockusingthe if-convertedmethod.In computingdilutedEPS,theaveragestockprice for theperiodis used
in determiningthenumberof sharesassumedto bepurchasedfrom theexerciseof stockoptionsor warrants.Diluted EPSexcludesall
dilutive potential shares if their effect is anti-dilutive.
Comprehensive Income (Loss)
ASC 220,ComprehensiveIncomeestablishesstandardsfor the reportinganddisplayof comprehensivelossandits componentsin the
financialstatements.As atNovember30,2012,theCompany��scomponentsof othercomprehensiveincome(loss)andaccumulatedother
comprehensive income (loss) are an unrealized fair value gain (loss) on available for sale marketable securities.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cashandcashequivalentsarecarriedat fair valueandthey comprisecashon hand,depositsheld with banksandotherhighly liquid
investments.Highly liquid investmentsarereadilyconvertibleto cashandgenerallyhavematuritiesof threemonthsor lessfrom thetime
acquired.TheCompanyplacesits cashandcashequivalentswith high quality financial institutionswhich theCompanybelieveslimits
credit risk.
Marketable Securities
TheCompanyreportsinvestmentsin marketableequitysecuritiesat fair valuebasedon quotedmarketprices.All investmentsecurities
aredesignatedasavailablefor salewith unrealizedgainsandlossesincludedin stockholders��equity. Unrealizedlossesthat areother
than temporary are recognized in earnings. Realized gains and losses are accounted for on the specific identification method.
TheCompanyperiodicallyreviewstheseinvestmentsfor other-than-temporarydeclinesin fair valuebasedon thespecificidentification
methodandwritesdowninvestmentsto their fair valuewhenanother-than-temporarydeclinehasoccurred.Whendeterminingwhether
adeclineis other-than-temporary, theCompanyexamines(i) thelengthof timeandtheextentto whichthefair valueof aninvestmenthas
beenlower thanits carryingvalue:(ii) thefinancialconditionandnear-termprospectsof theinvestee,includinganyspecificeventsthat
may influencetheoperationsof the investeesuchaschangesin technologythatmay impair theearningspotentialof the investee:and
(iii) theCompany��sintentandability to retainits investmentin the investeefor a sufficient periodof time to allow for anyanticipated
recoveryin marketvalue.TheCompanygenerallybelievesthatanother-than-temporarydeclinehasoccurredwhenthefair valueof the
investment is below the carrying value for one year, absent of evidence to the contrary.
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Property and Equipment
Equipmentconsistsof office furniture andequipment,automobiles,campandequipment,andcomputersoftwarerecordedat costand
depreciated on a straight-line basis as follows:
Automobiles 3 years
Camp and equipment 3 years
Computer software 1 year
Office furniture and equipment 3 years
Mineral Property Costs
The Companyhasbeenin the explorationstagesinceits inceptionon January5, 2004andhasnot yet realizedany revenuesfrom its
plannedoperations.It is primarily engagedin theacquisitionandexplorationof miningproperties.Mineralpropertyexplorationcostsare
expensedasincurred.Mineralpropertyacquisitioncostsareinitially capitalized.TheCompanyassessesthecarryingcostsfor impairment
underASC 360,Property, Plant, andEquipmentat eachfiscal quarterend.Whenit hasbeendeterminedthata mineralpropertycanbe
economicallydevelopedasa resultof establishingprovenandprobablereserves,the coststhenincurredto developsuchproperty, are
capitalized.Suchcostswill beamortizedusingtheunits-of-productionmethodovertheestimatedlife of theprobablereserve.If mineral
properties are subsequently abandoned or impaired, any capitalized costs will be charged to operations.
Long-Lived Assets
In accordancewith ASC360,PropertyPlantandEquipmenttheCompanytestslong-livedassetsor assetgroupsfor recoverabilitywhen
eventsor changesin circumstancesindicatethat their carryingamountmay not be recoverable.Circumstanceswhich could trigger a
review include,but arenot limited to: significantdecreasesin themarketpriceof theasset;significantadversechangesin thebusiness
climateor legalfactors;accumulationof costssignificantlyin excessof theamountoriginally expectedfor theacquisitionor construction
of theasset;currentperiodcashflow or operatinglossescombinedwith a historyof lossesor a forecastof continuinglossesassociated
with theuseof theasset;andcurrentexpectationthat theassetwill morelikely thannot besoldor disposedsignificantlybeforetheend
of its estimateduseful life. Recoverabilityis assessedbasedon the carryingamountof the assetand its fair valuewhich is generally
determinedbasedonthesumof theundiscountedcashflows expectedto resultfrom theuseandtheeventualdisposalof theasset,aswell
asspecificappraisalin certaininstances.An impairmentlossis recognizedwhenthecarryingamountis not recoverableandexceedsfair
value.
Asset Retirement Obligations
The Company accountsfor assetretirement obligations in accordancewith the provisions of ASC 440 Asset Retirement and
EnvironmentalObligationswhich requiresthe Companyto recordthe fair valueof an assetretirementobligationasa liability in the
periodin which it incursa legal obligationassociatedwith the retirementof tangiblelong-lived assetsthat resultfrom the acquisition,
construction,developmentand/or normaluseof theassets.TheCompanydid not haveanyassetsretirementobligationsasof November
30, 2012 and May 31, 2012.
Financial Instruments
ASC 825,Financial Instrumentsrequiresanentity to maximizetheuseof observableinputsandthefair valueof financial instruments,
which includecashandcashequivalents,restrictedcashequivalent,restrictedmarketablesecurities,andaccountspayablewereestimated
to approximate their carrying values due to the immediate or short-term maturities of these financial instruments.
TheCompany��soperationsarein CanadaandAfrica, which resultsin exposureto marketrisks from changesin foreigncurrencyrates.
Thefinancialrisk is therisk to theCompany��soperationsthatarisefrom fluctuationsin foreignexchangeratesandthedegreeof volatility
of these rates. Currently, the Company does not use derivative instruments to reduce its exposure to foreign currency risk.
Income Taxes
TheCompanyaccountsfor incometaxesusingtheassetandliability methodin accordancewith ASC 740,IncomeTaxes.Theassetand
liability methodprovidesthat deferredtax assetsandliabilities arerecognizedfor the expectedfuture tax consequencesof temporary
differencesbetweenthe financial reportingandtax basesof assetsandliabilities, andfor operatinglossandtax credit carry-forwards.
Deferredtax assetsandliabilities aremeasuredusingthecurrentlyenactedtax ratesandlawsthatwill be in effect whenthedifferences
areexpectedto reverse.The Companyrecordsa valuationallowanceto reducedeferredtax assetsto the amountthat is believedmore
likely than not to be realized.
Foreign Currency Translation
Thefunctionalandreportingcurrencyof theCompanyis theUnitedStatesdollar. Monetaryassetsandliabilities denominatedin foreign
currenciesaretranslatedto UnitedStatesdollarsin accordancewith ASC740,ForeignCurrencyTranslationMatters, usingtheexchange
rateprevailingat thebalancesheetdate.Non-monetaryassetsandliabilities denominatedin foreigncurrenciesaretranslatedat ratesof
exchange in effect at the date of the transaction. Average rates are used to translate revenues and expenses.
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Gains and lossesarising on translationor settlementof foreign currencydenominatedtransactionsor balancesare included in the
determinationof income.TheCompanyhasnot, to thedateof thesefinancialstatements,enteredinto derivativeinstrumentsto offsetthe
impact of foreign currency fluctuations.
To theextentthat theCompanyincurstransactionsthatarenot denominatedin its functionalcurrency, theyareundertakenin Canadian
dollarsandTanzanianshillings.The Companyhasnot, to the dateof thesefinancial statements,enteredinto derivativeinstrumentsto
offset the impact of foreign currency fluctuations.
Stock-based Compensation
The Companyrecordsstock-basedcompensationin accordancewith ASC 718,Compensation�� StockBasedCompensationandASC
505, Equity BasedPaymentsto Non-Employees, which requiresthe measurementandrecognitionof compensationexpensebasedon
estimated fair values for all share-based awards made to employees and directors, including stock options.
ASC 718 requirescompaniesto estimatethe fair valueof share-basedawardson the dateof grantusingan option-pricingmodel.The
CompanyusestheBlack-Scholesoption-pricingmodelasits methodof determiningfair value.Thismodelis affectedby theCompany��s
stockprice aswell asassumptionsregardinga numberof subjectivevariables.Thesesubjectivevariablesinclude,but arenot limited
to theCompany��sexpectedstockpricevolatility over the termof theawards,andactualandprojectedemployeestockoptionexercise
behaviours.The valueof the portion of the awardthat is ultimately expectedto vest is recognizedasan expensein the statementof
operations over the requisite service period.
All transactionsin which goodsor servicesaretheconsiderationreceivedfor theissuanceof equityinstrumentsareaccountedfor based
on the fair value of the consideration received or the fair value of the equity instrument issued, whichever is more reliably measurable.
Recent Issued Accounting Pronouncements
The Companyhasimplementedall new accountingpronouncementsthat are in effect and that may impact its consolidatedfinancial
statementsanddoesnotbelievethatthereareanyothernewaccountingpronouncementsthathavebeenissuedthatmighthaveamaterial
impact on its financial position or results of operations.
Reclassification
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years�� financial statements to conform to the current year��s presentation.
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Not required because we are a smaller reporting company.
Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
An evaluationwasperformedunderthesupervisionandwith theparticipationof theCompany��smanagement,includingtheCompany��s
Chief ExecutiveOfficer (��CEO��), Reyno Scheepers,and the Company��sChief Financial Officer (��CFO��), Melinda Hsu, of the
effectivenessof thedesignandoperationof theCompany��sdisclosurecontrolsandprocedurespursuantto Rules13a-15(b)and15d-15(b)
underthe ExchangeAct asof the endof the periodcoveredby this report.Baseduponthe evaluation,the Company��sCEO andCFO
haveconcludedthatour disclosurecontrolsandprocedures(asdefinedin Rules13a-15(e)and15d-15(e)undertheExchangeAct) were
not effectiveasof theendof theperiodcoveredby this report(that is, asof November30,2012),dueto thematerialweaknessesin our
internalcontroloverfinancialreportingasdisclosedin theCompany��sannualreportfor our fiscalyearendedMay 31,2012,whichhave
not been resolved as of November 30, 2012.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Therewereno changesto our internalcontrolover financial reportingthatoccurredduringour fiscal quarterendedNovember30,2012
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II ���� OTHER INFORMA TION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
Exceptasdisclosedbelow, managementis not awareof anylegalproceedingscontemplatedby anygovernmentalauthorityor anyother
partyinvolving usor ourproperties.As of thedateof thisquarterlyreport,nodirector, officer or affiliate is (i) apartyadverseto usin any
legalproceeding,or (ii) hasanadverseinterestto us in any legalproceedings.Managementis not awareof anyotherlegalproceedings
pending or that have been threatened against us or our properties.
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On February8, 2012,Ruby CreekResourcesInc. (��RCR��) filed a lawsuit againstthe Companyin the SupremeCourt, Stateof New
York, in which RCRallegesthat theCompanyparticipatedin a fraudulenttransferof certainmineralpropertyinterestsin Tanzaniathat
RCRhadtheright to purchasepursuantto a seriesof agreementswith theCompany. TheCompanyis of theview thatsuchallegations
are without merit and has and intends to vigorously contest the action.
On February23, 2012,the Companyfiled a lawsuit againstRCR in the SupremeCourt of British Columbia,seekingrelief for RCR��s
breachof its paymentobligationsunderthe above-referencedagreementsandseekingan order that RCR removethe U.S. restrictive
legendfrom RCR sharesissuedto the Companyunderthe agreements.To date,RCR is in defaultwith respectto over $1.3million in
scheduled payments due to the Company under the agreements.
OnOctober25,2012,CraigAlford filed alawsuitagainsttheCompanyin theSupremeCourtof British Columbiafor breachof analleged
employmentagreement.Mr. Alford claimstheagreementwasfor a termof threeyears,commencingon March1, 2011, with a monthly
salaryof $12,500.Mr. Alford claimsthattheCompanywrongfully terminatedtheagreementin October2011 andis seekingjudgmentin
the amount of $362,500. The Company is of the view that the allegation is without merit and intends to vigorously contest the action.
Item 1A. Risk Factors
Not required because we are a smaller reporting company.
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
None
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
None.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
Item 5. Other Information
None.
Item 6. Exhibits
Exhibit Number Description of Exhibit

3.1(1) Articles of Incorporation.

3.2(12) Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation.

3.3(21) Articles of Merger as filed with the Nevada Secretary of State.

3.3(3) Amended Bylaws, as amended on September 5, 2006.

10.1(4) Asset Purchase Agreement with KBT Discovery Group Tanzania Ltd.

10.2(4) Asset Purchase Agreement with Hydro-Geos Consulting Group Tanzania Ltd.

10.3(4) Asset Purchase Agreement with Megadeposit Explorers Ltd.

10.4(5) Amendment No. 1 to Asset Purchase Agreement with KBT Discovery Group Tanzania Ltd.
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10.5(5) Amendment No. 1 to Asset Purchase Agreement with Hydro-Geos Consulting Group Tanzania Ltd.

10.6(5) Amendment No. 1 to Asset Purchase Agreement with Megadeposit Explorers Ltd.

10.7(6) Amendment No. 2 to Asset Purchase Agreement with KBT Discovery Group Tanzania Ltd.

10.8(6) Amendment No. 2 to Asset Purchase Agreement with Hydro-Geos Consulting Group Tanzania Ltd.

10.9(6) Amendment No. 2 to Asset Purchase Agreement with Megadeposit Explorers Ltd.

10.10(7) Strategic Alliance Agreement between the Company and Canaco Resources Inc.

10.11(8) Option Agreement between the Company and Canaco Resources Inc.

10.12(9) Amendment No. 1 to Strategic Alliance Agreement between the Company and Canaco Resources Inc.

10.13(9) Kwadijava Option Agreement.

10.14(9) Negero Option Agreement.

10.15(10) Joint Venture Agreement with Mkuvia Maita.

10.16(11) 2007 Stock Incentive Plan.

10.17(14) 2008 Stock Incentive Plan.

10.18(11) Consulting Agreement with Harpreet Sangha.

10.19(11) Consulting Agreement with Rovingi.

10.20(13) Joint Venture Agreement with Mkuvia Maita dated June 5, 2009.

10.21(15) Agreement with Ruby Creek Resources, Inc. dated November 7, 2009.

10.22(16) Purchase Agreement with Ruby Creek Resources, Inc., dated for reference May 19, 2010.

10.23(17) August 2010 Stock Incentive Plan.

10.24(18) Mineral PropertyAcquisitionAgreementbetweentheCompanyandIPPGold Limited, datedSeptember15, 2010,
ratified by the Company��s Board of Directors on September 21, 2010.

10.26(19) November 2010 Stock Incentive Plan.

10.27(20) Mineral PropertyAcquisition Agreementbetweenthe CompanyandHandeniResourcesLimited, datedAugust5,
2011.
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10.28(22) ExecutiveConsultingServicesAgreementbetweentheCompanyandAmicaResourceInc.,datedFebruary28,2012.

10.29* Unsecured Term Loan Facility Agreement between the Company and IPP Ltd. dated December 7, 2012

14.1(2) Code of Ethics.

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant:
a. Douglas Lake Tanzania Limited (Tanzania); and
b. HG Limited (Tanzania) (formerly: DLM Tanzania Limited (Tanzania)).

31.1* Certifications of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2* Certifications of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1* Certifications of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2* Certifications of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002.

* Filed herewith.
(1) Incorporated by reference to Form SB-2 Registration Statement filed on July 22, 2004.
(2) Incorporated by reference to Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for year ended May 31, 2005.
(3) Incorporated by reference to Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for year ended May 31, 2006.
(4) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 4, 2005.
(5) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 21, 2005.
(6) Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-SB for quarterly period ended November 30, 2005.
(7) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 4, 2006.
(8) Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-SB for quarterly period ended August 31, 2006.
(9) Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-SB for quarterly period ended August 31, 2007.
(10) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 6, 2008.
(11) Incorporated by reference to Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for year ended May 31, 2007.
(12) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 27, 2009
(13) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 16, 2009
(14) Incorporated by reference to Registration Statement Form S-8 filed on December 30, 2008.
(15) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 13, 2009.
(16) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 21, 2010.
(17) Incorporated by reference to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2010.
(18) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 27, 2010.
(19) Incorporated by reference to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2011.
(20) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 10, 2011.
(21) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 15, 2012.
(22) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 80-K filed on March 2, 2012.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuantto therequirementsof theSecuritiesExchangeAct of 1934,theregistranthasduly causedthis reportto besignedon its behalf
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

HANDENI GOLD INC.
By: ��Reyno Scheepers��

Reyno Scheepers
President, Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive
Officer) and a director

By: ��Melinda Hsu��
Melinda Hsu
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer), Secretary and Treasurer

Date: January 8, 2013
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICA TION

I, Reyno Scheepers, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form10-Q for the quarterly period ended November 30, 2012 of Handeni Gold Inc.;

2. Basedon my knowledge,this report doesnot containany untruestatementof a material fact or omit to statea material fact
necessaryto makethestatementsmade,in light of thecircumstancesunderwhichsuchstatementsweremade,notmisleadingwith
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Basedon my knowledge,the financial statements,and other financial information includedin this report, fairly presentin all
materialrespectsthefinancialcondition,resultsof operationsandcashflows of theregistrantasof, andfor, theperiodspresented
in this report;

4. The registrant��sother certifying officer(s) and I are responsiblefor establishingand maintaining disclosurecontrols and
procedures(asdefinedin ExchangeAct Rules13a-15(e)and15d-15(e))andinternalcontrolover financial reporting(asdefined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designedsuchdisclosurecontrolsandprocedures,or causedsuchdisclosurecontrolsandproceduresto bedesignedunder
oursupervision,to ensurethatmaterialinformationrelatingto theregistrant,includingits consolidatedsubsidiaries,is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designedsuch internal control over financial reporting,or causedsuch internal control over financial reporting to be
designedunderour supervision,to provide reasonableassuranceregardingthe reliability of financial reportingand the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluatedthe effectivenessof the registrant��sdisclosurecontrols and proceduresand presentedin this report our
conclusionsaboutthe effectivenessof the disclosurecontrolsandprocedures,asof the endof the periodcoveredby this
report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosedin this reportany changein the registrant��sinternal control over financial reportingthat occurredduring the
registrant��smost recentfiscal quarter(the registrant��sfourth fiscal quarter in the caseof an annualreport) that has
materiallyaffected,or is reasonablylikely to materiallyaffect, theregistrant��sinternalcontroloverfinancialreporting;and

5. The registrant��sother certifying officer(s) and I havedisclosed,basedon our most recentevaluationof the internal control
over financial reporting,to the registrant��sauditorsand the audit committeeof the registrant��sboardof directors(or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) all significantdeficienciesandmaterialweaknessesin the designor operationof internalcontrol over financial reporting
which arereasonablylikely to adverselyaffect the registrant��sability to record,process,summarizeandreportfinancial
information; and

(b) any fraud, whetheror not material, that involves managementor other employeeswho have a significant role in the
registrant��s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: January 8, 2013
��Reyno Scheepers��
By: Reyno Scheepers
Title: President, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer,

and a Director
(Principal Executive Officer)
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICA TION

I, Melinda Hsu, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form10-Q for the quarterly period ended November 30, 2012 of Handeni Gold Inc.;

2. Basedon my knowledge,this report doesnot containany untruestatementof a material fact or omit to statea material fact
necessaryto makethestatementsmade,in light of thecircumstancesunderwhichsuchstatementsweremade,notmisleadingwith
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Basedon my knowledge,the financial statements,and other financial information includedin this report, fairly presentin all
materialrespectsthefinancialcondition,resultsof operationsandcashflows of theregistrantasof, andfor, theperiodspresented
in this report;

4. The registrant��sother certifying officer(s) and I are responsiblefor establishingand maintaining disclosurecontrols and
procedures(asdefinedin ExchangeAct Rules13a-15(e)and15d-15(e))andinternalcontrolover financial reporting(asdefined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designedsuchdisclosurecontrolsandprocedures,or causedsuchdisclosurecontrolsandproceduresto bedesignedunder
oursupervision,to ensurethatmaterialinformationrelatingto theregistrant,includingits consolidatedsubsidiaries,is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designedsuch internal control over financial reporting,or causedsuch internal control over financial reporting to be
designedunderour supervision,to provide reasonableassuranceregardingthe reliability of financial reportingand the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluatedthe effectivenessof the registrant��sdisclosurecontrols and proceduresand presentedin this report our
conclusionsaboutthe effectivenessof the disclosurecontrolsandprocedures,asof the endof the periodcoveredby this
report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosedin this reportany changein the registrant��sinternal control over financial reportingthat occurredduring the
registrant��smost recentfiscal quarter(the registrant��sfourth fiscal quarter in the caseof an annualreport) that has
materiallyaffected,or is reasonablylikely to materiallyaffect, theregistrant��sinternalcontroloverfinancialreporting;and

5. The registrant��sother certifying officer(s) and I havedisclosed,basedon our most recentevaluationof the internal control
over financial reporting,to the registrant��sauditorsand the audit committeeof the registrant��sboardof directors(or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) all significantdeficienciesandmaterialweaknessesin the designor operationof internalcontrol over financial reporting
which arereasonablylikely to adverselyaffect the registrant��sability to record,process,summarizeandreportfinancial
information; and

(b) any fraud, whetheror not material, that involves managementor other employeeswho have a significant role in the
registrant��s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: January 8, 2013
��Melinda Hsu��
By: Melinda Hsu
Title: Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICA TION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
The undersigned,ReynoScheepers,the Chief ExecutiveOfficer of HandeniGold Inc. (the ��Company��),herebycertifies,pursuantto
18 U.S.C.Section1350,asadoptedpursuantto Section906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyAct of 2002,that, to his knowledge,the Quarterly
Reporton Form 10-Q for the periodendedNovember30, 2012,fully complieswith the requirementsof Section13(a)or 15(d) of the
SecuritiesExchangeAct of 1934,asamended,andthat the informationcontainedin theQuarterlyReporton Form10-Qfairly presents
in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

��Reyno Scheepers��
Reyno Scheepers
President, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, and a director
(Principal Executive Officer)
Date: January 8, 2013

A signedoriginal of this written statementrequiredby Section906, or other documentauthenticating,acknowledging,or otherwise
adoptingthesignaturesthatappearin typedform within theelectronicversionof thiswrittenstatementrequiredby Section906,hasbeen
providedto the Companyandwill be retainedby the Companyandfurnishedto the SecuritiesandExchangeCommissionor its staff
upon request.

__________
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Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICA TION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
The undersigned,Melinda Hsu, the Chief FinancialOfficer of HandeniGold Inc. (the ��Company��),herebycertifies,pursuantto 18
U.S.C.Section1350,asadoptedpursuantto Section906of theSarbanes-OxleyAct of 2002,that,to hisknowledge,theQuarterlyReport
on Form10-Qfor theperiodendedNovember30,2012,fully complieswith therequirementsof Section13(a)or 15(d)of theSecurities
ExchangeAct of 1934,as amended,and that the information containedin the QuarterlyReporton Form 10-Q fairly presentsin all
material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

��Melinda Hsu��
Melinda Hsu
Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)
Date: January 8, 2013

A signedoriginal of this written statementrequiredby Section906, or other documentauthenticating,acknowledging,or otherwise
adoptingthesignaturesthatappearin typedform within theelectronicversionof thiswrittenstatementrequiredby Section906,hasbeen
providedto the Companyandwill be retainedby the Companyandfurnishedto the SecuritiesandExchangeCommissionor its staff
upon request.

__________
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6 Months EndedRelated Party Transactions
and Balances (Narrative)

(Details) (USD $)
Nov. 30, 2012

km
Related Party Transactions And Balances 1100.00%
Related Party Transactions And Balances 22.67
Related Party Transactions And Balances 3800
Related Party Transactions And Balances 415,000,000
Related Party Transactions And Balances 5$ 0.11
Related Party Transactions And Balances 6$ 57,000
Related Party Transactions And Balances 772,000
Related Party Transactions And Balances 815,000
Related Party Transactions And Balances 90
Related Party Transactions And Balances 1023,000
Related Party Transactions And Balances 1116,000
Related Party Transactions And Balances 127,000
Related Party Transactions And Balances 130
Related Party Transactions And Balances 1448,000
Related Party Transactions And Balances 1590,000
Related Party Transactions And Balances 165,000
Related Party Transactions And Balances 170
Related Party Transactions And Balances 1858,217
Related Party Transactions And Balances 1930,032
Related Party Transactions And Balances 2012,094
Related Party Transactions And Balances 210
Related Party Transactions And Balances 221,451
Related Party Transactions And Balances 230
Related Party Transactions And Balances 2415,441
Related Party Transactions And Balances 250
Related Party Transactions And Balances 2619,926
Related Party Transactions And Balances 270
Related Party Transactions And Balances 2839,720
Related Party Transactions And Balances 2920,092
Related Party Transactions And Balances 3025,782
Related Party Transactions And Balances 3154,000
Related Party Transactions And Balances 320
Related Party Transactions And Balances 3330,000
Related Party Transactions And Balances 3420,000
Related Party Transactions And Balances 3576,500
Related Party Transactions And Balances 36$ 30,000
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6 Months EndedSchedule of Common Stock
Purchase Warrants (Details)

(USD $) Nov. 30, 2012

Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Common Stock Purchase Warrants 1$ 20,000,000
Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Common Stock Purchase Warrants 20.075
Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Common Stock Purchase Warrants 30.11
Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Common Stock Purchase Warrants 413,554,155
Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Common Stock Purchase Warrants 50.52
Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Common Stock Purchase Warrants 60.83
Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Common Stock Purchase Warrants 7$ 33,554,155
Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Common Stock Purchase Warrants 80.40
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6 Months EndedSchedule of Prepaid
Expenses and Deposits

(Details) (USD $) Nov. 30, 2012

Prepaid Expenses And Deposits Schedule Of Prepaid Expenses And Deposits 1$ 0
Prepaid Expenses And Deposits Schedule Of Prepaid Expenses And Deposits 244,500
Prepaid Expenses And Deposits Schedule Of Prepaid Expenses And Deposits 323,791
Prepaid Expenses And Deposits Schedule Of Prepaid Expenses And Deposits 49,423
Prepaid Expenses And Deposits Schedule Of Prepaid Expenses And Deposits 50
Prepaid Expenses And Deposits Schedule Of Prepaid Expenses And Deposits 62,066
Prepaid Expenses And Deposits Schedule Of Prepaid Expenses And Deposits 7122,292
Prepaid Expenses And Deposits Schedule Of Prepaid Expenses And Deposits 8128,670
Prepaid Expenses And Deposits Schedule Of Prepaid Expenses And Deposits 914,250
Prepaid Expenses And Deposits Schedule Of Prepaid Expenses And Deposits 105,278
Prepaid Expenses And Deposits Schedule Of Prepaid Expenses And Deposits 11160,333
Prepaid Expenses And Deposits Schedule Of Prepaid Expenses And Deposits 12$ 189,937
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6 Months EndedSchedule of Assets at Fair
Value (Details) (USD $) Nov. 30, 2012May 31, 2012

Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 1 $ 297,001
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 2 0
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 3 0
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 2 297,001
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 3 57,724
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 4 0
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 5 0
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 6 57,724
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 7 160,000
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 8 0
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 9 0
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 10160,000
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 11514,725
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 140
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 150
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 12514,725
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 1 886,889
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 2 0
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 3 0
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 2 886,889
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 3 56,531
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 4 0
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 5 0
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 6 56,531
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 7 1,160,000
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 8 0
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 9 0
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 10 1,160,000
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 11 2,103,420
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 140
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 150
Fair Value Measurements Schedule Of Assets At Fair Value 12 $ 2,103,420
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6 Months
EndedSchedule of Property, Plant

and Equipment Estimated
Useful Lives (Details) Nov. 30, 2012

Y
Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment
Estimated Useful Lives 1

3

Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment
Estimated Useful Lives 2

3

Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment
Estimated Useful Lives 3

1

Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment
Estimated Useful Lives 4

3
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6 Months EndedSupplemental Cash Flow
Information (T ables) Nov. 30, 2012

Schedule of Cash Flow, Supplemental
Disclosures [Table Text Block]

Accumulated from
January 5, 2004 (Date

For the Six Months Ended, of Inception) to
November 30, 2012 November 30, 2011 November 30, 2012

Changes in
non-cash
financing and
investing
activities:

Amount
owing
pursuant to
mineral
license
acquisition

agreements
included in
accrued
liabilities $ - $ - $ 250,000

Common
stock issued
to settle
related party
payable - - 619,306

Common
stock
subscribed
for mineral
licenses
acquired - - 2,203,000

Common
stock issued
for
independent
directors\'
compensation40,000 - 40,000

Common
stock issued
for mineral
licenses
acquired - 1,650,000 76,446,750

Common
stock gifted
to the
Company to
settle
liabilities - - 100,000

Investment
securities - - 79,603

Other cash
flow
information:
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Interest
paid $ - $ - $ -

Taxes paid - - -
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6 Months EndedSchedule of Stock Based
Compensation (Details)

(USD $) Nov. 30, 2012

Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Stock Based Compensation 1$ 448,982
Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Stock Based Compensation 2518,546
Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Stock Based Compensation 30
Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Stock Based Compensation 481,158
Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Stock Based Compensation 540,000
Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Stock Based Compensation 60
Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Stock Based Compensation 7488,982
Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Stock Based Compensation 8$ 599,704
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6 Months EndedRestricted Marketable
Securities (Tables) Nov. 30, 2012

Schedule of Restricted Marketable Securities
[Table Text Block]

November 30, 2012 May 31, 2012
Fair Value Other-than- Fair Value
Based On temporary AccumulatedBased On Accumulated
Quoted Impairment Unrealized Quoted Unrealized

Cost Market Price Loss Gain (Loss) Market Price Gain (Loss)
$ $ $ $ $ $

Ruby
Creek
Resources
Inc.,

4,000,000
shares 2,760,000 160,000 (1,600,000) (1,000,000 ) 1,160,000 (1,600,000 )

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
http://www.secdatabase.com


6 Months EndedSchedule of Common Stock
Outstanding (Details) (USD

$) Nov. 30, 2012

Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 1$ 292,416,654
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 2292,417
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 3111,925,974
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 415,000,000
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 515,000
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 61,635,000
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 70
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 80
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 91,728,868
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 10307,416,654
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 11307,417
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 12115,289,842
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 131,000,000
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 141,000
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 1539,000
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 160
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 170
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 18448,982
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 19308,416,654
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 20308,417
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital Schedule Of Common Stock Outstanding 21$ 115,777,824
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6 Months EndedCommon Stock Purchase
Warrants (Narrative)

(Details) (USD $) Nov. 30, 2012

Common Stock Purchase Warrants 120,162,262
Common Stock Purchase Warrants 2300,000
Common Stock Purchase Warrants 3300,000
Common Stock Purchase Warrants 4$ 0.30
Common Stock Purchase Warrants 5$ 81,158
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6 Months EndedRestricted Cash Equivalent
(Narrative) (Details) (USD $) Nov. 30, 2012
Restricted Cash Equivalent 1$ 57,724
Restricted Cash Equivalent 256,531
Restricted Cash Equivalent 3$ 1,193
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6 Months EndedSchedule of Non-Vested
Stock Options (Details) (USD

$) Nov. 30, 2012

Stock Options Schedule Of Non-vested Stock Options 1$ 20,100,000
Stock Options Schedule Of Non-vested Stock Options 20.36
Stock Options Schedule Of Non-vested Stock Options 35,500,000
Stock Options Schedule Of Non-vested Stock Options 40.45
Stock Options Schedule Of Non-vested Stock Options 5(5,920,000)
Stock Options Schedule Of Non-vested Stock Options 60.33
Stock Options Schedule Of Non-vested Stock Options 7(12,990,000)
Stock Options Schedule Of Non-vested Stock Options 80.24
Stock Options Schedule Of Non-vested Stock Options 96,690,000
Stock Options Schedule Of Non-vested Stock Options 100.23
Stock Options Schedule Of Non-vested Stock Options 111,000,000
Stock Options Schedule Of Non-vested Stock Options 120.08
Stock Options Schedule Of Non-vested Stock Options 13(7,690,000)
Stock Options Schedule Of Non-vested Stock Options 140.02
Stock Options Schedule Of Non-vested Stock Options 150
Stock Options Schedule Of Non-vested Stock Options 16$ 0
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6 Months EndedSchedule of Restricted
Marketable Securities

(Details) (USD $) Nov. 30, 2012

Restricted Marketable Securities Schedule Of Restricted Marketable Securities 14,000,000
Restricted Marketable Securities Schedule Of Restricted Marketable Securities 2$ 2,760,000
Restricted Marketable Securities Schedule Of Restricted Marketable Securities 3160,000
Restricted Marketable Securities Schedule Of Restricted Marketable Securities 4(1,600,000)
Restricted Marketable Securities Schedule Of Restricted Marketable Securities 5(1,000,000)
Restricted Marketable Securities Schedule Of Restricted Marketable Securities 61,160,000
Restricted Marketable Securities Schedule Of Restricted Marketable Securities 7$ (1,600,000)
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6 Months EndedPrepaid Expenses and
Deposits Nov. 30, 2012

Prepaid Expenses and Deposits [Text Block]4. Prepaid Expenses and Deposits

The componentsof prepaid expensesand deposits are as
follows:

November 30,May 31,
2012 2012
$ $

Exploration expenses - 44,500
General and administrative 23,791 9,423
Professional fees - 2,066
Rent 122,292 128,670
Travel and investor relations 14,250 5,278

160,333 189,937
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6 Months EndedCommitments and
Contingency (Narrative)

(Details) (USD $)
In Millions, unless otherwise

specified

Nov. 30, 2012
M

unit

Commitments And Contingency 17.00%
Commitments And Contingency 248
Commitments And Contingency 317,757,777
Commitments And Contingency 45,446,667
Commitments And Contingency 512,311,110
Commitments And Contingency 67.00%
Commitments And Contingency 77.00%
Commitments And Contingency 824
Commitments And Contingency 9$ 1
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6 Months Ended
Stock Options (Tables)

Nov. 30, 2012
Schedule of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options,
Activity [Table Text Block]

Weighted
Average

Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Number of Average ContractualIntrinsic
Options Exercise PriceTerm Value
# $ (years) $

Outstanding,
May 31,
2011

36,493,333 0.21 8.93 8,824,000

Granted 6,250,000 0.40 7.61 -
Forfeited (14,443,333) 0.23 6.60 -

Outstanding,
May 31,
2012

28,300,000 0.24 8.53 -

Granted 1,000,000 0.08 9.60 -
Forfeited (600,000 ) 0.20 8.00 -

Outstanding,
November
30, 2012

28,700,000 0.23 8.08 -

Exercisable,
November
30, 2012

28,700,000 0.23 8.08 -

Schedule of Non-Vested Stock Options [Table Text
Block]

Weighted
Non-vested stock options Average

Number of Grant Date
Options Fair Value
# $

Non-vested at May 31, 2011 20,100,000 0.36
Granted 5,500,000 0.45
Forfeited (5,920,000) 0.33
Vested (12,990,000) 0.24

Non-vested at May 31, 2012 6,690,000 0.23
Granted 1,000,000 0.08
Vested (7,690,000) 0.02

Non-vested at November 30, 2012 - -
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6 Months EndedCommon Stock and
Additional Paid-in Capital

(Tables) Nov. 30, 2012

Schedule of Common Stock Outstanding [Table
Text Block]

Common Stock Additional Paid-In
Shares Par Value Capital

# $ $

Balance as at May 31, 2011 292,416,654 292,417 111,925,974

Shares Issued for Mineral
Licenses

15,000,000 15,000 1,635,000

Value Assigned to Options
Granted or Vested

- - 1,728,868

Balance as at May 31, 2012307,416,654 307,417 115,289,842

Shares Issued for
Independent Directors Fees

1,000,000 1,000 39,000

Value Assigned to Options
Granted or Vested

- - 448,982

Balance as at November 30,
2012

308,416,654 308,417 115,777,824
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6 Months
Ended

Schedule of Share-based
Payment Award, Stock

Options, Valuation
Assumptions (Details) (USD

$)
Nov. 30, 2012

Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Share-based Payment Award, Stock Options, Valuation
Assumptions 1

0.00%

Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Share-based Payment Award, Stock Options, Valuation
Assumptions 2

0.00%

Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Share-based Payment Award, Stock Options, Valuation
Assumptions 3

$ 0

Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Share-based Payment Award, Stock Options, Valuation
Assumptions 4

0.00%

Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Share-based Payment Award, Stock Options, Valuation
Assumptions 5

2.32%

Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Share-based Payment Award, Stock Options, Valuation
Assumptions 6

2.18%

Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Share-based Payment Award, Stock Options, Valuation
Assumptions 7

0

Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Share-based Payment Award, Stock Options, Valuation
Assumptions 8

0.20%

Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Share-based Payment Award, Stock Options, Valuation
Assumptions 9

164.00%

Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Share-based Payment Award, Stock Options, Valuation
Assumptions 10

158.00%

Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Share-based Payment Award, Stock Options, Valuation
Assumptions 11

0

Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Share-based Payment Award, Stock Options, Valuation
Assumptions 12

136.00%

Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Share-based Payment Award, Stock Options, Valuation
Assumptions 13

8.89

Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Share-based Payment Award, Stock Options, Valuation
Assumptions 14

5.81

Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Share-based Payment Award, Stock Options, Valuation
Assumptions 15

$ 0

Stock-based Compensation Schedule Of Share-based Payment Award, Stock Options, Valuation
Assumptions 16

1.00

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
http://www.secdatabase.com


6 Months EndedStock-based Compensation
(Narrative) (Details) (USD $) Nov. 30, 2012
Stock-based Compensation 1$ 0.03
Stock-based Compensation 2$ 0.10
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6 Months EndedCommon Stock Purchase
Warrants (Tables) Nov. 30, 2012

Schedule of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, and
Warrants Activity [Table Text Block]

Weighted
Average Weighted Average

Number of Exercise Remaining
Warrants Price Contractual Life
# $ (years)

Balance,
May 31,
2011

53,416,417 0.33 1.68

Issued 300,000 0.30 0.10

Balance,
May 31,
2012

53,716,417 0.33 0.67

Expired (20,162,262) 0.45 -

Balance,
November
30, 2012

33,554,155 0.25 0.40

Schedule of Common Stock Purchase Warrants [Table Text Block] Remaining
Number ofExerciseContractual
Warrants Price Life (years)

# $

20,000,000 0.075 0.11
13,554,155 0.52 0.83

33,554,155 0.40

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
http://www.secdatabase.com


6 Months EndedFair Value Measurements
(Tables) Nov. 30, 2012 May 31, 2012

Schedule of Assets at Fair
Value [Table Text Block]

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
For Identical Observable Unobservable Balance as of
Instruments Inputs Inputs August 31,
(Level 1 ) (Level 2 ) (Level 3 ) 2012

Assets:
Cash and
cash
equivalents

$ 297,001 $ Ð $ Ð $ 297,001

Restricted
cash
equivalent

57,724 Ð Ð 57,724

Restricted
marketable
securities

160,000 Ð Ð 160,000

Total
assets
measured
at fair
value

$ 514,725 $ Ð $ Ð $ 514,725

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
For Identical Observable Unobservable Balance as of
Instruments Inputs Inputs May 31,
(Level 1 ) (Level 2 ) (Level 3 ) 2012

Assets:
Cash and
cash
equivalents

$ 886,889 $ Ð $ Ð $ 886,889

Restricted
cash
equivalent

56,531 Ð Ð 56,531

Restricted
marketable
securities

1,160,000 Ð Ð 1,160,000

Total
assets
measured
at fair
value

$ 2,103,420 $ Ð $ Ð $ 2,103,420
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6 Months EndedRestricted Marketable
Securities Nov. 30, 2012

Restricted Marketable
Securities [Text Block]

3. Restricted Marketable Securities

November 30, 2012 May 31, 2012
Fair Value Other-than- Fair Value
Based On temporary Accumulated Based On Accumulated
Quoted Impairment Unrealized Quoted Unrealized

Cost Market Price Loss Gain (Loss) Market Price Gain (Loss)
$ $ $ $ $ $

Ruby Creek Resources Inc.,
4,000,000 shares 2,760,000 160,000 (1,600,000) (1,000,000 ) 1,160,000 (1,600,000 )

The four million restrictedsharesof commonstockof RubyCreekResourcesInc. (ÒRCRÓ)
wereissuedto theCompanyon December16, 2010aspartial considerationto purchasethe
mineralpropertyinterestsundertheagreementsbetweenRCRandtheCompany. The initial
fair marketvalueof theseshareswas$2,760,000basedon RCRÕs quotedstockpriceon the
issuancedate.Referto Note7b for detailson theagreementswith RCR.As of November30,
2012,thefair marketvalueof theseshareswas$160,000(May 31, 2012:$1,160,000)based
on RCRÕs quotedstockpriceandrecordedasnon-currentassets.As of November30, 2012,
theCompanydeterminedthat$1,600,000of unrealizedlosseswereotherthantemporaryand
wererecognizedasan otherexpensein net lossandwereremovedfrom accumulatedother
comprehensive loss.
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6 Months EndedStock-based Compensation
(Tables) Nov. 30, 2012

Schedule of Share-based Payment Award,
Stock Options, Valuation Assumptions [Table
Text Block]

For Stock Options For Stock Purchase Warrants
Six Months Ended November 30,Six Months Ended November 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Expected
dividend
yield

0% 0% nil 0%

Risk-
free
interest
rate

2.32% 2.18% nil 0.20%

Expected
volatility

164% 158% nil 136%

Expected
option
life (in
years)

8.89 5.81 nil 1.00

Schedule of Stock Based Compensation
[Table Text Block]

Six Months Ended November 30,
2012 2011

Fair value for stock options $ 448,982 $ 518,546
Fair value for stock purchase warrants - 81,158
Fair value for common stock shares
granted to independent directors

40,000 -

Total stock based compensation $ 488,982 $ 599,704
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6 Months EndedCommon Stock and
Additional Paid-in Capital

(Narrative) (Details) (USD $) Nov. 30, 2012

Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital 1500,000,000
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital 2$ 0.001
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital 3200,000
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital 4$ 0.04
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital 51,000,000
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital 6500,000
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital 7150,000
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital 815,000,000
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital 9$ 0.11
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital 101,650,000
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital 1113,814
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital 122,203,000
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital 1350,000
Common Stock And Additional Paid-in Capital 14$ 2,253,000
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6 Months
Ended

Schedule of Share-based
Compensation, Stock

Options, and Warrants
Activity (Details) (USD $) Nov. 30, 2012

Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, And
Warrants Activity 1

$ 53,416,417

Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, And
Warrants Activity 2

0.33

Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, And
Warrants Activity 3

1.68

Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, And
Warrants Activity 4

300,000

Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, And
Warrants Activity 5

0.30

Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, And
Warrants Activity 6

0.10

Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, And
Warrants Activity 7

53,716,417

Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, And
Warrants Activity 8

0.33

Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, And
Warrants Activity 9

0.67

Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, And
Warrants Activity 10

(20,162,262)

Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, And
Warrants Activity 11

0.45

Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, And
Warrants Activity 12

0

Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, And
Warrants Activity 13

$ 33,554,155

Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, And
Warrants Activity 14

0.25

Common Stock Purchase Warrants Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, And
Warrants Activity 15

0.40
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
(USD $)

Nov. 30,
2012

May 31,
2012

Curr ent Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 297,001 $ 886,889
Amounts receivable 667,450 602,286
Prepaid expenses and deposits 160,333 189,937
Total Current Assets 1,124,784 1,679,112
Restricted cash equivalent 57,724 56,531
Restricted marketable securities 160,000 1,160,000
Mineral licenses 1,650,000 1,650,000
Property and equipment, net 345,522 463,521
TOTAL ASSETS 3,338,030 5,009,164
Curr ent Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 75,023 134,066
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - Related Parties 117,045 30,000
Total Current Liabilities 192,068 164,066
Commitments and Contingencies 0 0
Stockholders' Equity
Common stock Authorized: 500,000,000 shares, $0.001 par value Issued and
outstanding: 308,416,654 shares (May 31, 2012 - 307,416,654 shares)

308,417 307,417

Additional paid-in capital 115,777,824 115,289,842
Subscriptions received 650,000 150,000
Donated capital 109,000 109,000
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,000,000) (1,600,000)
Deficit accumulated during the exploration stage (112,699,279)(109,411,161)
Total Stockholders' Equity 3,145,962 4,845,098
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND ST OCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 3,338,030 $ 5,009,164
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6 Months EndedSubsequent Events
(Narrative) (Details) (USD $) Nov. 30, 2012
Subsequent Events 1 $ 720,000
Subsequent Events 1 100,000
Subsequent Events 2 $ 245,683
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6 Months EndedNature of Operations and
Continuance of Business Nov. 30, 2012

Nature of Operations and
Continuance of Business [Text
Block]

1. Nature of Operations and Continuance of Business

The Companywasincorporatedin the Stateof Nevadaon January5, 2004.On February14,
2012,theCompanychangedits namefrom DouglasLakeMineralsInc. to HandeniGold Inc.
(theÒCompanyÓ).TheCompanyis anExplorationStageCompany, asdefinedby Statementof
FinancialAccountingStandardsBoard(ÒFASBÓ)AccountingStandardsCodification(ÒASCÓ)
915, DevelopmentStageEntities . The CompanyÕs principal businessis the acquisitionand
explorationof mineralresourceslocatedin Tanzania,Africa. The Companyhasnot presently
determined whether its properties contain mineral reserves that are economically recoverable.

Theseconsolidatedfinancial statementshavebeenpreparedon a going concernbasis,which
impliestheCompanywill continueto realizeits assetsanddischargeits liabilities in thenormal
courseof business.TheCompanyhasnevergeneratedrevenuessinceinceptionandhasnever
paid any dividendsandis unlikely to pay dividendsor generateearningsin the immediateor
foreseeablefuture. The continuationof the Companyas a going concernis dependentupon
the continuedfinancial supportfrom its shareholders,the ability of the Companyto obtain
necessaryequity financing to continueoperationsand to determinethe existence,discovery
and successfulexploitation of economicallyrecoverablereservesin its resourceproperties,
confirmationof the CompanyÕs interestsin the underlyingproperties,and the attainmentof
profitableoperations.As at November30, 2012,theCompanyhasnot generatedanyrevenues
and hasaccumulatedlossesof $112,699,279sinceinception.Thesefactorsraisesubstantial
doubtregardingtheCompanyÕs ability to continueasa goingconcern.TheCompanyplansto
raiseequityand/or debtfinancingto fundits operations.Theseconsolidatedfinancialstatements
donot includeanyadjustmentsto therecoverabilityandclassificationof recordedassetamounts
and classificationof liabilities that might be necessaryshould the Companybe unable to
continue as a going concern.
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6 Months EndedSchedule of Segment
Reporting Information

(Details) (USD $) Nov. 30, 2012May 31, 2012

Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 1$ 520,345
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 2604,439
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 31,124,784
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 457,724
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 50
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 657,724
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 7160,000
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 80
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 9160,000
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 100
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 111,650,000
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 121,650,000
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 1310,572
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 14334,950
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 15345,522
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 16748,641
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 172,589,389
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 183,338,030
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 1 941,374
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 2 737,738
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 3 1,679,112
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 4 56,531
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 5 0
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 6 56,531
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 7 1,160,000
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 8 0
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 9 1,160,000
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 10 0
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 11 1,650,000
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 12 1,650,000
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 13 10,141
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 14 453,380
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 15 463,521
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 16 2,168,046
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 17 2,841,118
Segment Disclosures Schedule Of Segment Reporting Information 18 $ 5,009,164
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6 Months EndedNature of Operations and
Continuance of Business

(Narrative) (Details) (USD $) Nov. 30, 2012

Nature Of Operations And Continuance Of Business 1$ 112,699,279
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6 Months Ended
Subsequent Events

Nov. 30, 2012
Subsequent Events [Text
Block]

17. Subsequent Event

OnDecember7, 2012,theCompanyenteredinto a facility agreementwith IPPLtd., aprivate
companycontrolledby thechairmanof HandeniGoldInc.Thefacility agreementensuresthat
theCompanywill havesufficient funding for its key explorationactivitiesup to June2013.
The funding will be in the form of an interestfree unsecuredloan to the Companyof up to
$720,000by wayof monthlydrawdownsof amaximumamountof US$100,000percalendar
monthfrom December2012up to andincluding June2013.The total amountdrawndown
by theCompanyis dueto be repaidon or beforeDecember31, 2013.As of thedateof this
report, the Company received a total of $245,683 from IPP Ltd.
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6 Months EndedRestricted Marketable
Securities (Narrative)

(Details) (USD $) Nov. 30, 2012

Restricted Marketable Securities 1$ 2,760,000
Restricted Marketable Securities 2160,000
Restricted Marketable Securities 31,160,000
Restricted Marketable Securities 4$ 1,600,000
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6 Months EndedSummary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Tables) Nov. 30, 2012

Schedule of Property, Plant and Equipment Estimated Useful Lives [Table Text
Block]

Automobiles3 years
Camp and
equipment

3 years

Computer
software

1 year

Office
furniture
and
equipment

3 years
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6 Months EndedSummary of Significant
Accounting Policies Nov. 30, 2012

Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies [Text
Block]

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of Presentation

Theseconsolidatedfinancial statementsand relatednotesarepresentedin accordance
with accountingprinciplesgenerallyacceptedin the United States,and are expressed
in U.S. dollars. Theseconsolidatedfinancial statementsinclude the accountsof the
Company and its subsidiariesdescribedas follows. In June 2011, the Company
incorporatedin Tanzaniaa newwholly-ownedsubsidiary, HG Limited (formerly DLM
TanzaniaLimited),whichundertakesmineralpropertyexplorationactivitiesin Tanzania.
The Companyalsohasa wholly-ownednon-operatingTanzaniansubsidiary(Douglas
Lake Tanzania Limited).

All significant intercompanytransactionsand balanceshave been eliminated. The
CompanyÕs fiscal year-end is May 31.

b) Interim Financial Statements

The interim unauditedfinancial statementshave been preparedin accordancewith
accountingprinciples generally acceptedin the United Statesfor interim financial
informationandwith the instructionsto SecuritiesandExchangeCommission(ÒSECÓ)
Form 10- Q. They do not include all of the information and footnotesrequiredby
generallyacceptedaccountingprinciplesfor completefinancial statements.Therefore,
thesefinancial statementsshouldbe readin conjunctionwith the CompanyÕs audited
consolidatedfinancial statementsand notestheretofor the year endedMay 31, 2012,
includedin theCompanyÕs AnnualReporton Form10-K filed on August27,2012with
the SEC.

The interim financial statementsincludedhereinareunaudited;however, they contain
all normal recurringaccrualsandadjustmentsthat, in the opinion of management,are
necessaryto presentfairly theCompanyÕs financialpositionat November30,2012,and
the resultsof its operationsandcashflows for the interim periodendedNovember30,
2012.Theresultsof operationsfor the threeandsix monthsendedNovember30, 2012
arenot necessarilyindicativeof theresultsto beexpectedfor futurequartersor thefull
year.

c) Use of Estimates

The preparationof consolidatedfinancial statementsin accordancewith United States
generallyacceptedaccountingprinciplesrequiresmanagementto makeestimatesand
assumptionsthat affect the reportedamountsof assetsandliabilities at the dateof the
consolidatedfinancial statementsand the reportedamountsof revenueand expenses
in the reportingperiod. The Companyregularly evaluatesestimatesand assumptions
relatedto the recoverabilityand useful life of long-lived assets,mineral prospecting
licenses,stock-basedcompensation,deferredincometax assetvaluationallowancesand
contingentliabilities. TheCompanybasesits estimatesandassumptionsoncurrentfacts,
historical experienceand variousother factorsthat it believesto be reasonableunder
the circumstances,the resultsof which form the basisfor makingjudgmentsaboutthe
carryingvaluesof assetsand liabilities and the accrualof costsandexpensesthat are
not readilyapparentfrom othersources.Theactualresultsexperiencedby theCompany
maydiffer materiallyandadverselyfrom theCompanyÕs estimates.To theextentthere
are materialdifferencesbetweenthe estimatesand the actualresults,future resultsof
operations will be affected.
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d) Basic and Diluted Net Income (Loss) Per Share

The Companycomputesnet income (loss) per sharein accordancewith ASC 260,
Earningsper Share which requirespresentationof both basicanddiluted earningsper
share(EPS)on thefaceof theincomestatement.BasicEPSis computedby dividing net
income(loss)availableto commonshareholders(numerator)by the weightedaverage
numberof sharesoutstanding(denominator)duringtheperiod.Diluted EPSgiveseffect
to all dilutive potentialcommonsharesoutstandingduringtheperiodusingthetreasury
stock method and convertible preferred stock using the if-converted method. In
computingdiluted EPS,the averagestock price for the period is usedin determining
the numberof sharesassumedto be purchasedfrom the exerciseof stock optionsor
warrants.DilutedEPSexcludesall dilutive potentialsharesif theireffect is anti-dilutive.

e) Comprehensive Income (Loss)

ASC 220, ComprehensiveIncomeestablishesstandardsfor the reportingand display
of comprehensivelossandits componentsin the financial statements.As at November
30, 2012, the CompanyÕs componentsof other comprehensiveincome (loss) and
accumulatedothercomprehensiveincome(loss)areanunrealizedfair valuegain(loss)
on available for sale marketable securities.

f) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cashand cashequivalentsare carriedat fair value and they comprisecashon hand,
depositsheldwith banksandotherhighly liquid investments.Highly liquid investments
arereadilyconvertibleto cashandgenerallyhavematuritiesof threemonthsor lessfrom
the time acquired.TheCompanyplacesits cashandcashequivalentswith high quality
financial institutions which the Company believes limits credit risk.

g) Marketable Securities

TheCompanyreportsinvestmentsin marketableequitysecuritiesat fair valuebasedon
quotedmarketprices.All investmentsecuritiesaredesignatedasavailablefor salewith
unrealizedgainsandlossesincludedin stockholdersÕequity. Unrealizedlossesthat are
otherthantemporaryarerecognizedin earnings.Realizedgainsandlossesareaccounted
for on the specific identification method.

TheCompanyperiodicallyreviewstheseinvestmentsfor other-than-temporarydeclines
in fair valuebasedon thespecificidentificationmethodandwritesdowninvestmentsto
their fair valuewhenan other-than-temporarydeclinehasoccurred.Whendetermining
whethera decline is other-than-temporary, the Companyexamines(i) the length of
time and the extent to which the fair value of an investmenthas been lower than
its carryingvalue: (ii) the financial conditionandnear-term prospectsof the investee,
including any specificeventsthat may influencethe operationsof the investeesuchas
changesin technologythat may impair the earningspotentialof the investee:and(iii)
theCompanyÕs intentandability to retainits investmentin the investeefor a sufficient
period of time to allow for any anticipatedrecoveryin marketvalue. The Company
generallybelievesthatanother-than-temporarydeclinehasoccurredwhenthefair value
of the investmentis below the carrying value for one year, absentof evidenceto the
contrary.

h) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of office equipment,automobilesand computer
software recorded at cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis as follows:

Automobiles 3 years
Camp and equipment 3 years
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Computer software 1 year
Office furniture and equipment 3 years

i) Mineral Property Costs

The Companyhasbeenin the explorationstagesinceits inceptionon January5, 2004
andhasnotyetrealizedanyrevenuesfrom its plannedoperations.It is primarily engaged
in the acquisitionand explorationof mining properties.Mineral propertyexploration
costs are expensedas incurred. Mineral prospectinglicensesand mineral property
acquisitioncostsareinitially capitalized.The Companyassessesthe carryingcostsfor
impairmentunderASC 360,Property, Plant, andEquipmentat eachfiscal quarterend.
When it hasbeendeterminedthat a mineral propertycan be economicallydeveloped
as a result of establishingproven and probablereserves,the costs then incurred to
developsuchproperty, arecapitalized.Suchcostswill beamortizedusingtheunits-of-
productionmethodover theestimatedlife of theprobablereserve.If mineralproperties
are subsequentlyabandonedor impaired, any capitalizedcosts will be charged to
operations.

j) Long-Lived Assets

In accordancewith ASC 360 , PropertyPlant and Equipmentthe Companytestslong-
lived assetsor assetgroupsfor recoverabilitywheneventsor changesin circumstances
indicatethat their carryingamountmaynot berecoverable.Circumstanceswhich could
trigger a review include, but are not limited to: significant decreasesin the market
price of the asset;significantadversechangesin the businessclimateor legal factors;
accumulationof costssignificantly in excessof the amountoriginally expectedfor the
acquisitionor constructionof the asset;currentperiod cashflow or operatinglosses
combinedwith a historyof lossesor a forecastof continuinglossesassociatedwith the
useof theasset;andcurrentexpectationthat theassetwill morelikely thannot besold
or disposedsignificantly beforethe end of its estimateduseful life. Recoverabilityis
assessedbasedon thecarryingamountof theassetandits fair valuewhich is generally
determinedbasedon the sum of the undiscountedcashflows expectedto result from
the useand the eventualdisposalof the asset,as well as specific appraisalin certain
instances.An impairmentlossis recognizedwhenthecarryingamountis notrecoverable
and exceeds fair value.

k) Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company accounts for asset retirement obligations in accordancewith the
provisionsof ASC 440AssetRetirementandEnvironmentalObligationswhich requires
the Companyto recordthe fair valueof an assetretirementobligationasa liability in
theperiodin which it incursa legalobligationassociatedwith theretirementof tangible
long-lived assetsthat result from the acquisition,construction,developmentand/or
normaluseof theassets.TheCompanydid not haveanyassetretirementobligationsas
of November 30, 2012 and May 31, 2012.

l) Financial Instruments

ASC 825, Financial Instrumentsrequiresan entity to maximizethe useof observable
inputs and the fair value of financial instruments,which include cash and cash
equivalents,restrictedcashequivalent,restrictedmarketablesecurities,and accounts
payablewere estimatedto approximatetheir carrying valuesdue to the immediateor
short-term maturities of these financial instruments.

The CompanyÕs operationsare in Canadaand Africa, which results in exposureto
market risks from changesin foreign currencyrates.The financial risk is the risk to
the CompanyÕs operationsthat arise from fluctuationsin foreign exchangeratesand
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the degreeof volatility of theserates.Currently, the Companydoesnot usederivative
instruments to reduce its exposure to foreign currency risk.

m) Income Taxes

The Company accountsfor income taxes using the assetand liability method in
accordancewith ASC 740, IncomeTaxes.The assetandliability methodprovidesthat
deferredtaxassetsandliabilities arerecognizedfor theexpectedfuturetaxconsequences
of temporarydifferencesbetweenthe financial reportingand tax basesof assetsand
liabilities, andfor operatinglossandtax credit carry-forwards.Deferredtax assetsand
liabilities are measuredusing the currently enactedtax ratesand laws that will be in
effect whenthe differencesareexpectedto reverse.The Companyrecordsa valuation
allowanceto reducedeferredtax assetsto the amountthat is believedmorelikely than
not to be realized.

n) Foreign Currency Translation

The functional and reporting currencyof the Companyis the United Statesdollar.
Monetaryassetsandliabilities denominatedin foreigncurrenciesaretranslatedto United
Statesdollars in accordancewith ASC 740 Foreign Currency Translation Matters ,
usingthe exchangerateprevailingat the balancesheetdate.Non-monetaryassetsand
liabilities denominatedin foreigncurrenciesaretranslatedat ratesof exchangein effect
at the date of the transaction. Average rates are used to translate revenues and expenses.

Gainsand lossesarisingon translationor settlementof foreign currencydenominated
transactionsor balancesareincludedin thedeterminationof income.TheCompanyhas
not, to thedateof thesefinancialstatements,enteredinto derivativeinstrumentsto offset
the impact of foreign currency fluctuations.

To the extent that the Companyincurs transactionsthat are not denominatedin its
functional currency, they are undertakenin Canadiandollars (ÒCdn$Ó)and Tanzanian
shillings. The Companyhasnot, to the dateof thesefinancial statements,enteredinto
derivative instruments to offset the impact of foreign currency fluctuations.

o) Stock-based Compensation

The Company records stock-basedcompensationin accordancewith ASC 718,
CompensationÐ StockBasedCompensationand ASC 505, Equity BasedPayments
to Non-Employees, which requiresthe measurementandrecognitionof compensation
expensebasedon estimatedfair valuesfor all share-basedawardsmadeto employees
and directors, including stock options.

ASC 718 requirescompaniesto estimatethe fair value of share-basedawardson the
date of grant using an option-pricing model. The Companyusesthe Black-Scholes
option-pricingmodel as its methodof determiningfair value. This model is affected
by theCompanyÕs stockpriceaswell asassumptionsregardinga numberof subjective
variables.Thesesubjectivevariablesinclude, but are not limited to the CompanyÕs
expectedstock price volatility over the term of the awards,and actualand projected
employeestockoption exercisebehaviours.The valueof the portion of the awardthat
is ultimatelyexpectedto vestis recognizedasanexpensein thestatementof operations
over the requisite service period.

All transactionsin which goods or servicesare the considerationreceivedfor the
issuanceof equity instrumentsare accountedfor basedon the fair value of the
considerationreceivedor the fair value of the equity instrumentissued,whicheveris
more reliably measurable.

p) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
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The Companyhasimplementedall new accountingpronouncementsthat are in effect
andthatmayimpactits consolidatedfinancialstatementsanddoesnot believethatthere
areany othernew accountingpronouncementsthat havebeenissuedthat might havea
material impact on its financial position or results of operations.

q) Reclassification

Certainreclassificationshavebeenmadeto the prior periodÕs financial statementsto
conform to the current periodÕs presentation.
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Statement of Financial
Position (Parenthetical)

(USD $)
Nov. 30, 2012May 31, 2012

Common Stock, Shares Authorized500,000,000 500,000,000
Common Stock, Par Value Per Share$ 0.001 $ 0.001
Common Stock, Shares, Issued 308,416,654 307,416,654
Common Stock, Shares, Outstanding308,416,654 307,416,654
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6 Months EndedCommitments and
Contingency Nov. 30, 2012

Commitments and
Contingency [Text Block]

12. Commitments and Contingency

a) The Companywascommittedto the paymentof a cashfee of 7% within 48 hoursof
the receiptof proceedsfrom the exerciseof any warrantsattachedto the 17,757,777
unitssoldby Rodman& Renshawin theMarch2011 privateplacements.During thesix
monthsendedNovember30, 2012,5,446,667stockpurchasewarrantsrelatedto such
units expired.The remaining12,311,110 stockpurchasewarrantsrelatedto suchunits
are exercisable on or before September 29, 2013.

b) TheCompanyis committedto thepaymentof acashfeeof 7%of thepurchasepriceand
the issuanceof warrantsequalto 7% of the sharesissuedwith respectto any public or
privatefinancingprovidedby investorswhomRodman& Renshawintroduced,directly
or indirectly, in the March 2011 privateplacementswithin 24 monthsof the closingof
the March 2011 private placements.

c) On February8, 2012,RCR filed a lawsuit againsttheCompanyin theSupremeCourt,
Stateof New York, in which RCRallegesthattheCompanyparticipatedin a fraudulent
transferof certain mineral property interestsin Tanzaniathat RCR had the right to
purchase pursuant to a series of agreements with the Company (see Note 7b).

On February23, 2012,theCompanyfiled a lawsuitagainstRCRin theSupremeCourt
of British Columbia,seekingrelief for RCRÕs breachof its paymentobligationsunder
theseagreementsandseekinganorderthatRCRremovetheU.S.restrictivelegendfrom
RCRsharesissuedto theCompany(seeNote3) undertheagreements.As of August31,
2012,RCRis in defaultwith respectto $1.45million in scheduledpaymentsdueto the
Company under the agreements.

The Companyis of the view that RCRÕs allegationsare without merit and intendsto
continueto vigorouslydefendagainsttheRCRlawsuitandto pursueits claimsagainst
RCR.No futurelegalcoststhatmaybeincurredhavebeenaccruedasanexpenseandno
lossor gain from the lawsuitandclaim canbereasonablyestimatedor recordedat this
time.
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6 Months EndedDocument and Entity
Information Nov. 30, 2012 Jan. 08, 2012

Document Type 10-Q
Amendment Flag false
Document Period End Date Nov. 30, 2012
Trading Symbol hndi
Entity Registrant Name HANDENI GOLD INC.
Entity Central Index Key 0001297223
Current Fiscal Year End Date --05-31
Entity Filer Category Smaller Reporting Company
Entity Common Stock, Shares Outstanding 308,416,654
Entity Current Reporting Status Yes
Entity Voluntary Filers No
Entity Well Known Seasoned Issuer No
Document Fiscal Year Focus 2013
Document Fiscal Period Focus Q2
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6 Months Ended
Fair Value Measurements

Nov. 30, 2012
Fair Value Measurements
[Text Block]

13.Fair Value Measurements

ASC 820 requiresan entity to maximizethe useof observableinputs and minimize the use
of unobservableinputswhenmeasuringfair value.ASC 820establishesa fair valuehierarchy
basedon the level of independent,objectiveevidencesurroundingthe inputsusedto measure
fair value.A financial instrumentÕs categorizationwithin thefair valuehierarchyis basedupon
the lowestlevel of input that is significantto the fair valuemeasurement.ASC 820prioritizes
the inputs into three levels that may be used to measure fair value:

Level1 appliesto assetsor liabilities for which therearequotedpricesin activemarkets
for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 applies to assetsor liabilities for which there are inputs other than quoted
prices that are observablefor the assetor liability such as quotedprices for similar
assetsor liabilities in activemarkets;quotedpricesfor identicalassetsor liabilities in
marketswith insufficient volume or infrequenttransactions(less active markets);or
model-derivedvaluationsin which significant inputsareobservableor canbe derived
principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data.
Level 3 appliesto assetsor liabilities for which thereare unobservableinputs to the
valuationmethodologythat aresignificant to the measurementof the fair valueof the
assets or liabilities.

Pursuantto ASC 820, the fair value of our cash and cash equivalents,restrictedcash
equivalentand restrictedmarketablesecuritiesare determinedbasedon ÒLevel1Óinputs,
which consistof quotedpricesin activemarketsfor identicalassets.Managementbelieves
thattherecordedvaluesof all of theCompanyÕsotherfinancialinstrumentsapproximatetheir
current fair values because of their nature and respective maturity dates or durations.

As atNovember30,2012,therewereno liabilities measuredat fair valueonarecurringbasis
presented on the CompanyÕs consolidated balance sheet.

Assetsmeasuredat fair valueon a recurringbasiswerepresentedon theCompanyÕs balance
sheet as of November 30, 2012, as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
For Identical Observable Unobservable Balance as of
Instruments Inputs Inputs August 31,
(Level 1 ) (Level 2 ) (Level 3 ) 2012

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 297,001 $ Ð $ Ð $ 297,001
Restricted cash equivalent 57,724 Ð Ð 57,724
Restricted marketable securities160,000 Ð Ð 160,000

Total assets measured at fair
value

$ 514,725 $ Ð $ Ð $ 514,725

Assetsmeasuredat fair valueon a recurringbasiswerepresentedon theCompanyÕs balance
sheet as of May 31, 2012, as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
For Identical Observable Unobservable Balance as of
Instruments Inputs Inputs May 31,
(Level 1 ) (Level 2 ) (Level 3 ) 2012
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Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 886,889 $ Ð $ Ð $ 886,889
Restricted cash equivalent 56,531 Ð Ð 56,531
Restricted marketable securities1,160,000 Ð Ð 1,160,000

Total assets measured at fair
value

$ 2,103,420 $ Ð $ Ð $ 2,103,420

Managementbelievesthat the recordedvalues of all of our other financial instruments
approximatetheir currentfair valuesbecauseof their natureandrespectivematuritydatesor
durations.
The Companyhasoperationsin Tanzania,which resultsin exposureto marketrisks from
changesin foreigncurrencyrates.The financial risk is therisk to theCompanyÕs operations
that arisefrom fluctuationsin foreign exchangeratesand the degreeof volatility of these
rates.Currently, the Companydoesnot usederivativeinstrumentsto reduceits exposureto
foreign currency risk.
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3 Months Ended 6 Months Ended
107 Months

Ended
Consolidated Statements of

Operations and
Comprehensive Income

(Loss) (USD $)
Nov. 30,

2012
Nov. 30,

2011
Nov. 30,

2012
Nov. 30,

2011
Nov. 30,

2012
Revenue $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Expenses
Consulting fees 209,680 486,478 496,250 958,000 23,971,366
Depreciation 50,839 33,588 102,677 69,582 342,560
Exploration expenses 175,345 2,579,561 406,559 3,301,037 7,803,416
General and administrative 205,321 261,580 459,288 306,145 2,850,445
Impairment of mineral property 0 0 0 0 77,492,074
Professional 29,626 265,065 111,991 496,807 2,480,350
Rent 14,868 39,668 46,157 72,399 393,739
Travel and investor relations 13,052 114,600 65,509 190,688 1,954,795
Total Expenses 698,731 3,780,540 1,688,431 5,394,658 117,288,745
Loss From Operations (698,731) (3,780,540)(1,688,431)(5,394,658)(117,288,745)
Other Income (Expenses)
Gain on write-down of accrued liabilities 0 99,246 0 99,246 458,058
Impairment of marketable securities (1,600,000)0 (1,600,000)0 (1,600,000)
Interest income 245 143 313 143 1,103
Loss on sale of investment securities 0 0 0 0 (57,071)
Loss on write-down of amounts receivable 0 0 0 0 (81,641)
Mineral property option payments received 0 0 0 0 3,616,017
Recovery of mineral property costs for stock
not issuable

0 0 0 0 2,253,000

Total Other Expenses (1,599,755)99,389 (1,599,687)99,389 4,589,466
Net Loss (2,298,486)(3,681,151)(3,288,118) (5,295,269)(112,699,279)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities(420,000) 160,000 (1,000,000)200,000 (1,000,000)
Comprehensive Loss $

(2,718,486)
$
(3,521,151)

$
(4,288,118)

$
(5,095,269)

$
(113,699,279)

Net Loss per Share - Basic and Diluted $ (0.01) $ (0.01) $ (0.01) $ (0.02)
Basic and Diluted Weighted Average Number
of Common Shares Outstanding

308,416,654292,581,489308,121,572292,498,621
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6 Months EndedMineral Pr operties and
Licenses Nov. 30, 2012

Mineral Properties and
Licenses [Text Block]

7. Mineral Pr operties and Licenses

a) Handeni Properties, Tanzania, Africa

On September21, 2010, the Company completeda Mineral Property Acquisition
Agreementwith IPP Gold Limited (ÒIPPGoldÓ),and the Companyacquiredfour
prospectinglicences totalling approximately800 squarekilometres, located in the
HandeniDistrict of Tanzania(theÒHandeniPropertiesÓ).IPPGold retaineda 2.5%net
smelterroyalty (ÒNSRÓ)on theHandeniPropertiesandtheCompanyhastheoption to
reducethe NSR to 1.25%by paying$5,000,000.If the NSR is reducedto 1.25%the
maximumNSR for any yearis cappedat $1,000,000.In any yearthe NSR paymentis
lessthan $1,000,000the differencebetweenthe actualNSR paymentand $1,000,000
will becarriedforwardto subsequentyears.In additionif theLondonspotpricefor gold
is equalto or greaterthan $1,500then the NSR will increasefrom 2.5% to 3%. The
Companyissued133,333,333restrictedsharesof commonstockto IPPGold to acquire
theHandeniPropertiesandnofurtherpaymentsto IPPGold in sharesor cashis required.

On September1, 2010,theCompanyenteredinto a TransactionFeeAgreementwith a
consultantfor servicesrelatedto solicitingoffersfrom andin assistingin thenegotiation
with potentialCompanyfinanciers,purchasers,acquisitiontargetsand/or joint venture
developmentpartners(eachsuchpartybeinga ÒPotentialInvestorÓ).Theinitial termof
theagreementis aperiodof 60daysandautomaticallyrenewsmonthlyunlessotherwise
specificallyrenewedin writing by eachparty or terminatedby the Company. Pursuant
to the agreement,the Companyagreedto pay the consultanta transactionfee for each
completedpropertyacquisitiontransactionin Tanzania(a ÒCompletedTransactionÓ).
The transactionfee is 12.5%of the sharesissuableundereachCompletedTransaction,
payablein restrictedcommonsharesat the lowestpricedsecurityissuableundereach
CompletedTransaction.On September30, 2010, the Company issued 16,666,667
restrictedsharesof commonstockpursuantto theTransactionFeeAgreementin relation
to the acquisition of the Handeni Properties.

The fair value of the 133,333,333sharesof the CompanyÕs commonstock issuedto
IPP Gold pursuantto the Acquisition Agreementand the 16,666,667sharesof the
CompanyÕs commonstock issuedpursuantto the TransactionFeeAgreementtotalled
$60,000,000.

On November30, 2010, the capitalizedacquisitioncostsof the HandeniProperties
were testedfor impairmentby the CompanyÕs managementas requiredby ASC 360.
Managementdeterminedthatno positivecashflows from theHandeniPropertiescould
beidentifiedor supportedanda full impairmentlosswasrecognizedin expensesfor the
$60,000,000 acquisition cost.

On August 5, 2011, the Companyentereda Mineral PropertyAcquisition Agreement
(the Ò2011 Acquisition AgreementÓ)with Handeni ResourcesLimited (ÒHandeni
ResourcesÓ),a limited liability companyregisteredunder the laws of Tanzania.The
Chairmanof the Board of Directorsof the Companyhasan existing ownershipand/
or beneficial interest(s) in Handeni Resources.Pursuantto the 2011 Acquisition
Agreement,the Companyhadan exclusiveoption to acquirefrom HandeniResources
a 100% interest in mineral licensescovering an areaof approximately2.67 square
kilometresto the eastof MagambaziHill, which is adjacentto the areacoveredby
the CompanyÕs four existing prospectinglicenses(totalling approximately800 square
kilometres) in the Handeni District.
On November30, 2011, the Companycompletedthe 2011 Acquisition Agreementand
issued15,000,000restrictedcommonsharesto HandeniResourcesaspayment.As at
November30, 2011, the fair marketprice of the CompanyÕs commonstockwas$0.11
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pershare;accordingly, theCompanyrecordeda total fair marketvalueof $1,650,000as
the mineral licenses acquisition cost.

To comply with the laws andregulationsof the Republicof Tanzaniawherebyforeign
companiesmay not own primary mining licenses(ÒPMLsÓ),on July 19, 2012, the
Companyenteredinto an Addendumagreementto the 2011 Acquisition Agreement
wherebyHandeniResources,on behalfof theCompany, administersthe32 PMLs until

suchtime asa mining licenseon the32 PMLs ( 2.67km 2 ) havebeenallocated.During
this period HandeniResourcesis conductingexplorationand mining activities on the
PMLs as directed by the Company.

b) Mkuvia Alluvial Gold Project, Tanzania, Africa

On June27, 2008, the Companyenteredinto a Joint VentureAgreementthat grants
the Companythe right to explorefor mineralson propertiesin Liwale andNachigwea
Districts of Tanzaniaknown asthe Mkuvia Alluvial Gold Project,in considerationfor
the paymentof $1,000,000(paid) uponsigningthe agreementand$540,000over five
yearsbeginningJuly 15,2008.The$540,000is payablein stageson a quarterlybasisof
which $80,000mustbepaidin thefirst year, and$460,000overthenextfive years.The
holder of the property licenses retains a net smelter royalty return of 3%.

On June5, 2009,theCompanyenteredinto a newjoint venturewhich reducedthearea
coveredby theoriginal agreementto approximately380squarekilometres.Pursuantto
the new joint ventureagreement,the Companywasrequiredto pay $40,000uponthe
signingof the new agreement.In addition, the joint venturepartneris still entitled to
receivea perpetualnet smelterroyalty return of 3% from any product realizedfrom
thepropertyunderlyingtheprospectinglicenses.By enteringinto thenewjoint venture
agreement,the Companyis no longer required to pay the balanceof the $460,000
previouslydueundertheprior joint ventureagreement.Thenewjoint ventureagreement
coversprospectinglicensesNo. 5673/2009, No. 5669/2009, No. 5664/2009, and No.
5662/2009, all of which were renewed on June 12, 2009 for a period of three years.

On November7, 2009,the Companyenteredinto its first agreementwith Ruby Creek
ResourcesInc. (ÒRCRÓ)in which RCR hasthe right to acquirea 70% interestin 125
squarekilometresof the CompanyÕs interestin the 380 squarekilometrescoveredby
the four prospectinglicensesin the Mkuvia Alluvial Gold Projectin considerationfor
$3,000,000 payable as follows:

i) $100,000 within 5 business days of signing the agreement (received).

ii) $150,000 within 15 business days of signing the agreement (received).

iii) $100,000 upon satisfactory completion of RCR due diligence (received).

iv) $400,000 upon closing and receipt the first mining license.

v) $750,000 payable within 12 months of closing.

vi) $750,000 payable within 24 months of closing, and

vii) $750,000payablewithin 36 monthsof closing. This paymentmay be madein
commonsharesof RCR. The shareswill be valuedat the 10 day averagetrading
price of RCRÕs common stock prior to the payment date.

During fiscal 2010theCompanyrecognized$350,000in otherincomefor thereceiptof
option payments.
On May 24, 2010, in a secondagreement(fully executedon June16, 2010) between
RCRandtheCompany, RCRhasto theright to earna70%interestin theremaining255
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squarekilometresof the380squarekilometreMkuvia Alluvial Gold Projectby making
additional payments totalling $6,000,000 to the Company.
The schedule by which RCR is to pay such $6,000,000 to the Company is as follows:
i) $200,000due within sevendaysof executionof the Agreement(received)with

$100,000appliedtowardscostsof environmentalpermittingandthe initial mining
license (applied);

ii) $150,000(received)plus the issuanceof four million restrictedsharesof common
stockof RCR,with anagreeduponvalueof $0.80persharefor adeemedvaluation
of $3,200,000,within 30 daysof the receiptof Certificatesof Acknowledgement
for all underlyingand relatedAgreementsfrom the Commissionerfor Minerals
in Tanzania as required by the Mining Act of Tanzania (Certificates of
AcknowledgementreceivedAugust12,2010).Thefour million restrictedsharesof
commonstockof RCRwereissuedto theCompanyonDecember16,2010andhad
a fair marketvaluetotaling$2,760,000basedon RCRÕs quotedstockpriceon that
date.

iii) $450,000 on June 1, 2011 (unpaid);

iv) $1,000,000 on June 1, 2012 (unpaid); and

v) $1,000,000on June1, 2013(which may be satisfiedby the issuanceof stockby
RCR).

OnJune3, 2010,theCompanyandRCRincorporatedRubyCreekResources(Tanzania)
Limited (ÒRubyCreek TanzaniaÓ)to managethe mining operationsin the Mkuvia
Gold Project in Tanzania.Ruby CreekResources(Tanzania)Limited, a joint venture
company(the ÒJointVentureCompanyÓ),is ownedby Ruby CreekResources( 70%),
the Company ( 25%) and Mr. Mkuvia Maita ( 5%).

During fiscal 2011 the Companyrecognizeda total of $3,110,000in other incomefor
the receipt of the sharesat fair market value and the option payments(i) and (ii).
The Companyhasnot yet receivedthe $450,000option payment(iii) nor receivedthe
$1,000,000option payment(iv) which are overdueand the agreementis in default.
Prospectinglicensesnumbered5664/2009and5669/2009,which form apartof thejoint
venture project, were registered to a third party without the CompanyÕs approval.

RCR filed a lawsuit againstthe Companyin the SupremeCourt, Stateof New York,
on February8, 2012,allegingthe CompanyÕs involvementin a fraudulenttransferand
breachof agreements.The Companyis of the view that suchallegationsare without
merit andintendsto vigorouslycontesttheaction.On February23, 2012,theCompany
filed a lawsuitagainstRCRin theSupremeCourtof British Columbia,seekingrelief for
RCRÕs breachof its paymentobligationsundertheseagreementsandseekingan order
that RCR removethe U.S. restrictivelegendfrom RCR sharesissuedto the Company
under the agreements (see Note 12c).

c) On April 27, 2006, the Companyenteredinto a StrategicAlliance Agreementwith
CanacoResourcesInc. (ÒCanacoÓ),a Canadianpublic company. Under the termsof
theagreement,Canacopaid$350,000(receivedduring fiscal 2007)to theCompany. In
connectionwith this agreement,the Companywasrequiredto issue200,000restricted
sharesof commonstockwith a fair valueof $88,000.As at May 31 andNovember30,
2011, the 200,000shareswerenot issuedand$88,000wasincludedin commonstock
subscribed.During fiscal 2012it wasdeterminedthat the Companyno longerhasany
obligationsunderthis agreement,includingtheobligationto issuesuch200,000shares,
andtherefore$88,000wasrecordedasa recoveryof mineralpropertycostsfor stockno
longer issuable.

d) On November17, 2006,the Companyenteredinto an AssetPurchaseAgreementwith
Atlas to acquire ProspectingLicense No. 3920/2006 known as ÒShinyangaÓor
ÒMagembe,Ówhich coversan areaof approximately46 squarekilometresin Tanzania.
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TheLicensesweretransferredto theCompanyÕs nameon signingtheagreementfor an
aggregatepurchasepriceof $200,000(paid)and4,500,000restrictedsharesof common
stock.TheCompanydeterminedthefair valueof thesharesto be$3,172,500.As atMay
31, 2007,theCompanyissued1,500,000sharesat the fair valueof $1,057,500.During
fiscal 2010,theCompanydecidedto focuson otherpropertiesandhaslet theMagembe
prospectinglicenselapse.As at May 31 2011, theremaining3,000,000sharesat thefair
value of $2,115,000was includedin commonstock subscribed.During fiscal 2012 it
wasdeterminedthat the Companyno longerhasany obligationsunderthis agreement,
includingtheobligationto issuesuch3,000,000shares,andthereforethe$2,115,000was
recordedduring the fiscal yearendedMay 31, 2012asa recoveryof mineralproperty
costs for stock no longer issuable.

e) On November17, 2006,the Companyenteredinto an AssetPurchaseAgreementwith
HydroGeosto acquiresix ProspectingLicenses,whichcoveredanareaof approximately
2,388.79squarekilometresin Tanzania.ProspectingLicenseNo.Õs 3868/2006, 3671/
2005, 3398/2005, 3105/2005, 3211/2005, and 2961/2004 had beentransferredto the
CompanyÕs nameon signingtheagreementfor a thenaggregateandproposedpurchase
price of $600,000(the ÒCashPaymentsÓ)and the proposedissuanceof 4,000,000
restrictedsharesof theCompanyÕscommonstockatafair valueof $2,820,000.An initial
CashPaymentof $150,000was madeon the signing of the agreement,however, no
furtherCashPaymentsweremadeandno commonsharesof theCompanywereissued
dueto thefact thattheunderlyingProspectingLicenseswereallowedto lapseby Hydro
Geos.As at May 31, 2011 andNovember30, 2011, $250,000wasincludedin accrued
liabilities. During fiscal 2012 it was determinedthat the Companyno longer hasany
obligationsunderthis agreement,including the obligation to pay such$250,000,and
thereforetheaccrued$250,000liability waswrittenoff duringthefiscalyearendedMay
31, 2012.
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6 Months Ended
Property and Equipment

Nov. 30, 2012
Property and Equipment [Text Block]6. Property and Equipment

November 30,May 31,
2012 2012

Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value
$ $ $ $

Automobile vehicles 349,283 201,801 147,482 222,528
Camp and equipment 197,011 56,263 140,748 173,583
Office furniture and
equipment

102,824 48,406 54,418 67,283

Software 6,391 3,517 2,874 127

655,509 309,987 345,522 463,521
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6 Months EndedSummary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Policies) Nov. 30, 2012
Basis of Presentation [Policy
Text Block]

a) Basis of Presentation

Theseconsolidatedfinancial statementsand relatednotesarepresentedin accordance
with accountingprinciplesgenerallyacceptedin the United States,and are expressed
in U.S. dollars. Theseconsolidatedfinancial statementsinclude the accountsof the
Company and its subsidiariesdescribedas follows. In June 2011, the Company
incorporatedin Tanzaniaa newwholly-ownedsubsidiary, HG Limited (formerly DLM
TanzaniaLimited),whichundertakesmineralpropertyexplorationactivitiesin Tanzania.
The Companyalsohasa wholly-ownednon-operatingTanzaniansubsidiary(Douglas
Lake Tanzania Limited).

All significant intercompanytransactionsand balanceshave been eliminated. The
CompanyÕs fiscal year-end is May 31.

Interim Financial Statements
[Policy Text Block]

b) Interim Financial Statements

The interim unauditedfinancial statementshave been preparedin accordancewith
accountingprinciples generally acceptedin the United Statesfor interim financial
informationandwith the instructionsto SecuritiesandExchangeCommission(ÒSECÓ)
Form 10- Q. They do not include all of the information and footnotesrequiredby
generallyacceptedaccountingprinciplesfor completefinancial statements.Therefore,
thesefinancial statementsshouldbe readin conjunctionwith the CompanyÕs audited
consolidatedfinancial statementsand notestheretofor the year endedMay 31, 2012,
includedin theCompanyÕs AnnualReporton Form10-K filed on August27,2012with
the SEC.

The interim financial statementsincludedhereinareunaudited;however, they contain
all normal recurringaccrualsandadjustmentsthat, in the opinion of management,are
necessaryto presentfairly theCompanyÕs financialpositionat November30,2012,and
the resultsof its operationsandcashflows for the interim periodendedNovember30,
2012.Theresultsof operationsfor the threeandsix monthsendedNovember30, 2012
arenot necessarilyindicativeof theresultsto beexpectedfor futurequartersor thefull
year.

Use of Estimates [Policy Text
Block]

c) Use of Estimates

The preparationof consolidatedfinancial statementsin accordancewith United States
generallyacceptedaccountingprinciplesrequiresmanagementto makeestimatesand
assumptionsthat affect the reportedamountsof assetsandliabilities at the dateof the
consolidatedfinancial statementsand the reportedamountsof revenueand expenses
in the reportingperiod. The Companyregularly evaluatesestimatesand assumptions
relatedto the recoverabilityand useful life of long-lived assets,mineral prospecting
licenses,stock-basedcompensation,deferredincometax assetvaluationallowancesand
contingentliabilities. TheCompanybasesits estimatesandassumptionsoncurrentfacts,
historical experienceand variousother factorsthat it believesto be reasonableunder
the circumstances,the resultsof which form the basisfor makingjudgmentsaboutthe
carryingvaluesof assetsand liabilities and the accrualof costsandexpensesthat are
not readilyapparentfrom othersources.Theactualresultsexperiencedby theCompany
maydiffer materiallyandadverselyfrom theCompanyÕs estimates.To theextentthere
are materialdifferencesbetweenthe estimatesand the actualresults,future resultsof
operations will be affected.

Basic and Diluted Net Income
(Loss) Per Share [Policy Text
Block]

d) Basic and Diluted Net Income (Loss) Per Share

The Companycomputesnet income (loss) per sharein accordancewith ASC 260,
Earningsper Share which requirespresentationof both basicanddiluted earningsper
share(EPS)on thefaceof theincomestatement.BasicEPSis computedby dividing net
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income(loss)availableto commonshareholders(numerator)by the weightedaverage
numberof sharesoutstanding(denominator)duringtheperiod.Diluted EPSgiveseffect
to all dilutive potentialcommonsharesoutstandingduringtheperiodusingthetreasury
stock method and convertible preferred stock using the if-converted method. In
computingdiluted EPS,the averagestock price for the period is usedin determining
the numberof sharesassumedto be purchasedfrom the exerciseof stock optionsor
warrants.DilutedEPSexcludesall dilutive potentialsharesif theireffect is anti-dilutive.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)
[Policy Text Block]

e) Comprehensive Income (Loss)

ASC 220, ComprehensiveIncomeestablishesstandardsfor the reportingand display
of comprehensivelossandits componentsin the financial statements.As at November
30, 2012, the CompanyÕs componentsof other comprehensiveincome (loss) and
accumulatedothercomprehensiveincome(loss)areanunrealizedfair valuegain(loss)
on available for sale marketable securities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
[Policy Text Block]

f) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cashand cashequivalentsare carriedat fair value and they comprisecashon hand,
depositsheldwith banksandotherhighly liquid investments.Highly liquid investments
arereadilyconvertibleto cashandgenerallyhavematuritiesof threemonthsor lessfrom
the time acquired.TheCompanyplacesits cashandcashequivalentswith high quality
financial institutions which the Company believes limits credit risk.

Marketable Securities [Policy
Text Block]

g) Marketable Securities

TheCompanyreportsinvestmentsin marketableequitysecuritiesat fair valuebasedon
quotedmarketprices.All investmentsecuritiesaredesignatedasavailablefor salewith
unrealizedgainsandlossesincludedin stockholdersÕequity. Unrealizedlossesthat are
otherthantemporaryarerecognizedin earnings.Realizedgainsandlossesareaccounted
for on the specific identification method.

TheCompanyperiodicallyreviewstheseinvestmentsfor other-than-temporarydeclines
in fair valuebasedon thespecificidentificationmethodandwritesdowninvestmentsto
their fair valuewhenan other-than-temporarydeclinehasoccurred.Whendetermining
whethera decline is other-than-temporary, the Companyexamines(i) the length of
time and the extent to which the fair value of an investmenthas been lower than
its carryingvalue: (ii) the financial conditionandnear-term prospectsof the investee,
including any specificeventsthat may influencethe operationsof the investeesuchas
changesin technologythat may impair the earningspotentialof the investee:and(iii)
theCompanyÕs intentandability to retainits investmentin the investeefor a sufficient
period of time to allow for any anticipatedrecoveryin marketvalue. The Company
generallybelievesthatanother-than-temporarydeclinehasoccurredwhenthefair value
of the investmentis below the carrying value for one year, absentof evidenceto the
contrary.

Property and Equipment
[Policy Text Block]

h) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of office equipment,automobilesand computer
software recorded at cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis as follows:

Automobiles 3 years
Camp and equipment 3 years
Computer software 1 year
Office furniture and equipment 3 years

Mineral Property Costs [Policy
Text Block]

i) Mineral Property Costs

The Companyhasbeenin the explorationstagesinceits inceptionon January5, 2004
andhasnotyetrealizedanyrevenuesfrom its plannedoperations.It is primarily engaged
in the acquisitionand explorationof mining properties.Mineral propertyexploration
costs are expensedas incurred. Mineral prospectinglicensesand mineral property
acquisitioncostsareinitially capitalized.The Companyassessesthe carryingcostsfor
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impairmentunderASC 360,Property, Plant, andEquipmentat eachfiscal quarterend.
When it hasbeendeterminedthat a mineral propertycan be economicallydeveloped
as a result of establishingproven and probablereserves,the costs then incurred to
developsuchproperty, arecapitalized.Suchcostswill beamortizedusingtheunits-of-
productionmethodover theestimatedlife of theprobablereserve.If mineralproperties
are subsequentlyabandonedor impaired, any capitalizedcosts will be charged to
operations.

Long-Lived Assets [Policy
Text Block]

j) Long-Lived Assets

In accordancewith ASC 360 , PropertyPlant and Equipmentthe Companytestslong-
lived assetsor assetgroupsfor recoverabilitywheneventsor changesin circumstances
indicatethat their carryingamountmaynot berecoverable.Circumstanceswhich could
trigger a review include, but are not limited to: significant decreasesin the market
price of the asset;significantadversechangesin the businessclimateor legal factors;
accumulationof costssignificantly in excessof the amountoriginally expectedfor the
acquisitionor constructionof the asset;currentperiod cashflow or operatinglosses
combinedwith a historyof lossesor a forecastof continuinglossesassociatedwith the
useof theasset;andcurrentexpectationthat theassetwill morelikely thannot besold
or disposedsignificantly beforethe end of its estimateduseful life. Recoverabilityis
assessedbasedon thecarryingamountof theassetandits fair valuewhich is generally
determinedbasedon the sum of the undiscountedcashflows expectedto result from
the useand the eventualdisposalof the asset,as well as specific appraisalin certain
instances.An impairmentlossis recognizedwhenthecarryingamountis notrecoverable
and exceeds fair value.

Asset Retirement Obligations
[Policy Text Block]

k) Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company accounts for asset retirement obligations in accordancewith the
provisionsof ASC 440AssetRetirementandEnvironmentalObligationswhich requires
the Companyto recordthe fair valueof an assetretirementobligationasa liability in
theperiodin which it incursa legalobligationassociatedwith theretirementof tangible
long-lived assetsthat result from the acquisition,construction,developmentand/or
normaluseof theassets.TheCompanydid not haveanyassetretirementobligationsas
of November 30, 2012 and May 31, 2012.

Financial Instruments [Policy
Text Block]

l) Financial Instruments

ASC 825, Financial Instrumentsrequiresan entity to maximizethe useof observable
inputs and the fair value of financial instruments,which include cash and cash
equivalents,restrictedcashequivalent,restrictedmarketablesecurities,and accounts
payablewere estimatedto approximatetheir carrying valuesdue to the immediateor
short-term maturities of these financial instruments.

The CompanyÕs operationsare in Canadaand Africa, which results in exposureto
market risks from changesin foreign currencyrates.The financial risk is the risk to
the CompanyÕs operationsthat arise from fluctuationsin foreign exchangeratesand
the degreeof volatility of theserates.Currently, the Companydoesnot usederivative
instruments to reduce its exposure to foreign currency risk.

Income Taxes [Policy Text
Block]

m) Income Taxes

The Company accountsfor income taxes using the assetand liability method in
accordancewith ASC 740, IncomeTaxes.The assetandliability methodprovidesthat
deferredtaxassetsandliabilities arerecognizedfor theexpectedfuturetaxconsequences
of temporarydifferencesbetweenthe financial reportingand tax basesof assetsand
liabilities, andfor operatinglossandtax credit carry-forwards.Deferredtax assetsand
liabilities are measuredusing the currently enactedtax ratesand laws that will be in
effect whenthe differencesareexpectedto reverse.The Companyrecordsa valuation
allowanceto reducedeferredtax assetsto the amountthat is believedmorelikely than
not to be realized.
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Foreign Currency Translation
[Policy Text Block]

n) Foreign Currency Translation

The functional and reporting currencyof the Companyis the United Statesdollar.
Monetaryassetsandliabilities denominatedin foreigncurrenciesaretranslatedto United
Statesdollars in accordancewith ASC 740 Foreign Currency Translation Matters ,
usingthe exchangerateprevailingat the balancesheetdate.Non-monetaryassetsand
liabilities denominatedin foreigncurrenciesaretranslatedat ratesof exchangein effect
at the date of the transaction. Average rates are used to translate revenues and expenses.

Gainsand lossesarisingon translationor settlementof foreign currencydenominated
transactionsor balancesareincludedin thedeterminationof income.TheCompanyhas
not, to thedateof thesefinancialstatements,enteredinto derivativeinstrumentsto offset
the impact of foreign currency fluctuations.

To the extent that the Companyincurs transactionsthat are not denominatedin its
functional currency, they are undertakenin Canadiandollars (ÒCdn$Ó)and Tanzanian
shillings. The Companyhasnot, to the dateof thesefinancial statements,enteredinto
derivative instruments to offset the impact of foreign currency fluctuations.

Stock-based Compensation
[Policy Text Block] o) Stock-based Compensation

The Company records stock-basedcompensationin accordancewith ASC 718,
CompensationÐ StockBasedCompensationand ASC 505, Equity BasedPayments
to Non-Employees, which requiresthe measurementandrecognitionof compensation
expensebasedon estimatedfair valuesfor all share-basedawardsmadeto employees
and directors, including stock options.

ASC 718 requirescompaniesto estimatethe fair value of share-basedawardson the
date of grant using an option-pricing model. The Companyusesthe Black-Scholes
option-pricingmodel as its methodof determiningfair value. This model is affected
by theCompanyÕs stockpriceaswell asassumptionsregardinga numberof subjective
variables.Thesesubjectivevariablesinclude, but are not limited to the CompanyÕs
expectedstock price volatility over the term of the awards,and actualand projected
employeestockoption exercisebehaviours.The valueof the portion of the awardthat
is ultimatelyexpectedto vestis recognizedasanexpensein thestatementof operations
over the requisite service period.

All transactionsin which goods or servicesare the considerationreceivedfor the
issuanceof equity instrumentsare accountedfor basedon the fair value of the
considerationreceivedor the fair value of the equity instrumentissued,whicheveris
more reliably measurable.

Recently Issued Accounting
Pronouncements [Policy Text
Block]

p) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

The Companyhasimplementedall new accountingpronouncementsthat are in effect
andthatmayimpactits consolidatedfinancialstatementsanddoesnot believethatthere
areany othernew accountingpronouncementsthat havebeenissuedthat might havea
material impact on its financial position or results of operations.

Reclassification [Policy Text
Block]

q) Reclassification

Certainreclassificationshavebeenmadeto the prior periodÕs financial statementsto
conform to the current periodÕs presentation.
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6 Months Ended
Stock-based Compensation

Nov. 30, 2012
Stock-based Compensation
[Text Block]

14. Stock-based Compensation

Thefair valuesfor stockoptionsgrantedwereestimatedat thedateof grantusingtheBlack-
Scholes option pricing model under the following weighted average assumptions:

For Stock Options For Stock Purchase Warrants
Six Months Ended November 30,Six Months Ended November 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Expected dividend yield 0% 0% nil 0%
Risk-free interest rate 2.32% 2.18% nil 0.20%
Expected volatility 164% 158% nil 136%
Expected option life (in
years)

8.89 5.81 nil 1.00

The weightedaveragefair value of stock optionsgrantedor vestedduring the six months
endedNovember30, 2012 was $0.03 per share(2011 - $0.10). During the six months
endedNovember30, 2012 and 2011, the Companyexpensedthe following stock-based
compensation as consulting fees or general and administrative fees.

Six Months Ended November 30,
2012 2011

Fair value for stock options $ 448,982 $ 518,546
Fair value for stock purchase warrants - 81,158
Fair value for common stock shares granted to independent
directors

40,000 -

Total stock based compensation $ 488,982 $ 599,704
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6 Months Ended
Stock Options

Nov. 30, 2012
Stock Options [Text Block] 10. Stock Options

TheCompanyadoptedanStockOptionPlan,datedNovember29,2010(theÒNovember2010
Stock IncentivePlanÓ),underwhich the Companyis authorizedto grant stock optionsto
acquireup to a total of 40,000,000sharesof commonshares.On July 4, 2012,theCompany
grantedstock optionsto its independentdirectorsto acquirea total of 1,000,000common
sharesat anexercisepriceof $0.08pershareexercisablefor 10 yearsandduring theperiod
endedNovember30,2012,600,000vestedoptionswereforfeited.At November30,2012,the
Companyhad11,300,000sharesof commonstockavailableto beissuedundertheNovember
2010 Stock Incentive Plan.

Therewereno stockoptionsexercisedduringthesix monthsendedNovember30, 2012and
2011, andtherewereno intrinsic valuesof outstandingoptionsat November30, 2012and
May 31,2012.Thetotal intrinsicvalueof stockoptionsexercisedduringthesix monthsended
November 30, 2012 and 2011 was $Nil.

The following table summarizes the continuity of the CompanyÕs stock options:

Weighted
Average

Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Number of Average Contractual Intrinsic
Options Exercise Price Term Value
# $ (years) $

Outstanding, May 31, 2011 36,493,333 0.21 8.93 8,824,000
Granted 6,250,000 0.40 7.61 -
Forfeited (14,443,333) 0.23 6.60 -

Outstanding, May 31, 2012 28,300,000 0.24 8.53 -
Granted 1,000,000 0.08 9.60 -
Forfeited (600,000 ) 0.20 8.00 -

Outstanding, November 30, 201228,700,000 0.23 8.08 -

Exercisable, November 30, 201228,700,000 0.23 8.08 -
The stockoptionsoutstandingareexercisablefor cashor on a cashlessexercisebasisusing
a proratedformulawherebythenumberof sharesissuableis equalto (a) theaverageclosing
pricefor thefive daysprior to exercisedate(ÒACPÓ)in excessof theexerciseprice,divided
by (b) the exerciseprice multiplied by (c) the numberof optionsexercised.During the six
months ended November 30, 2012 and 2011, no cashless stock options were exercised.

As at November30, 2012, all non-vestedstock options were vested.A summaryof the
CompanyÕs non-vestedstock optionschangesduring the six monthsendedNovember30,
2012 and the year ended May 31, 2012 are presented below:

Weighted
Non-vested stock options Average

Number of Grant Date
Options Fair Value
# $

Non-vested at May 31, 2011 20,100,000 0.36
Granted 5,500,000 0.45
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Forfeited (5,920,000) 0.33
Vested (12,990,000) 0.24

Non-vested at May 31, 2012 6,690,000 0.23
Granted 1,000,000 0.08
Vested (7,690,000) 0.02

Non-vested at November 30, 2012 - -
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6 Months EndedRelated Party Transactions
and Balances Nov. 30, 2012

Related Party Transactions and
Balances [Text Block]

8. Related Party Transactions and Balances

a) On August 5, 2011, the Companyentereda Mineral PropertyAcquisition Agreement
(the Ò2011 Acquisition AgreementÓ)with Handeni ResourcesLimited (ÒHandeni
ResourcesÓ),a limited liability companyregisteredunder the laws of Tanzania.The
Chairmanhasanexistingownershipand/or beneficialinterest(s)in HandeniResources.
Pursuantto the 2011 Acquisition Agreement,the Companyhad an exclusiveoption
to acquirefrom HandeniResourcesa 100% interestin mineral licensescoveringan
areaof approximately2.67 squarekilometresto the eastof MagambaziHill, which
is adjacentto the areacoveredby the CompanyÕs four existing prospectinglicenses
(totalling approximately800 squarekilometres)in the HandeniDistrict. On November
30, 2011, the Companycompletedsuchacquisitionand issued15,000,000sharesof
restrictedcommonstockat a fair marketpriceof $0.11 pershareto HandeniResources
in connection with the acquisition (see Note 7a).

b) During the six monthsendedNovember30, 2012,the Companypaid $57,000(2011 -
$72,000)andincurred$15,000payables(2011 - $Nil) of administrationandprofessional
servicesfeesto a director, the currentPresidentandChief ExecutiveOfficer (ÒCEOÓ).
In addition,theCompanypaid$23,000(2011 - $16,000)andincurred$7,000payables
(2011 - $Nil) of geologicaland investor relationsservicefees to a private company
controlled by a person who is related to CEO.

c) During the six monthsendedNovember30, 2012, the Companypaid $48,000(2011
- $90,000)of administrationand consultingfeesand incurred$5,000payables(2011
- $Nil) of director fees to a former Presidentand CEO who resignedeffective on
November22, 2011 and continuedto provide consultingservicesand is presentlya
director.

d) During thesix monthsendedNovember30, 2012,theCompanypaida total of $58,217
(2011 - $30,032)and incurred$12,094payables(2011 - $Nil) of administrationand
professionalservicesfeesplus HST of $1,451to a privatecompanycontrolledby the
CompanyÕs current Chief Financial Officer (ÒCFOÓ).

e) During the six monthsendedNovember30, 2012, the Companypaid consultingfees
of $Nil (2011 - $15,441)to the former CEO who resignedeffective on June21, 2011.
During thesix monthsendedNovember30, 2012,theCompanyalsopaid$Nil (2011 -
$19,926) of investor relations service fees to a person related to the former CEO.

f) During the six monthsendedNovember30, 2012, the Companypaid $Nil (2011 -
$39,720)of consultingfeesto a former CFO who resignedeffective on December12,
2011.

g) During thesix monthsendedNovember30,2011, theCompanypaid$20,092of officer
feesand$25,782of continuingconsultingfeesto a formerCFOwho resignedeffective
on September 22, 2011.

h) During the six monthsendedNovember30, 2012, the Companypaid $54,000(2011
- $Nil) to independentdirectorsfor directorsand meetingattendancefees,of which
$30,000waspaidfor independentdirectorsfeesincurredduringtheyearendedMay 31,
2012.During thesix monthsendedNovember30,2012,theCompanyalsopaid$20,000
annualfeesto the Vice Chairmanof the Boardof Directorsfor the annualservicesto
April 2013. As of November30, 2012, the Companyhad $76,500(May 31, 2012 -
$30,000)of unpaidindependentdirectorsÕfeesrecordedin accountspayableandaccrued
liabilities.
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6 Months EndedCommon Stock and
Additional Paid-in Capital Nov. 30, 2012

Common Stock and Additional
Paid-in Capital [Text Block]

9. Common Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital

Theauthorizedcommonstockof theCompanyconsistsof 500,000,000shares,with $0.001par
value.The following is a summaryof the CompanyÕs issuedandoutstandingcommonstock
during the six months ended November 30, 2012 and the fiscal year ended May 31, 2012:

Common Stock Additional Paid-In
Shares Par Value Capital

# $ $

Balance as at May 31, 2011 292,416,654 292,417 111,925,974

Shares Issued for Mineral Licenses 15,000,000 15,000 1,635,000
Value Assigned to Options Granted or Vested - - 1,728,868
Balance as at May 31, 2012 307,416,654 307,417 115,289,842

Shares Issued for Independent Directors Fees1,000,000 1,000 39,000
Value Assigned to Options Granted or Vested - - 448,982

Balance as at November 30, 2012 308,416,654 308,417 115,777,824
For the Six Months Ended November 30, 2012

Pursuantto the Board of Directors approvedcompensationpackageto its independent
directors(five of theCompanyÕs directors),theCompanygrantedeachindependentdirector
on July 4, 2012,asfully paidandnon-assessable,200,000sharesof theCompanyÕs common
stock with a fair value of $0.04 per sharefor a total of 1,000,000sharesas stock-based
compensation.Such shareswere granted under the CompanyÕs November 2010 Stock
Incentive Plan.

During the six monthsendedNovember30, 2012,the Companyreceived$500,000(for the
yearendedMay 31, 2012:$150,000)for subscriptionsreceivedin advanceof theclosingof
theCompanyÕs privateplacements.As of November30,2012,theseprivateplacementshave
not yet closed.

For the Year Ended May 31, 2012

Pursuantto thetermsof theminerallicenseacquisitionagreementonNovember30,2011, the
Companyissued15,000,000restrictedcommonsharesto HandeniResourcesat a fair market
price of $0.11 per share for a total fair market value of $1,650,000.

During theyearendedMay 31, 2012,theCompanyreceived$13,814from the formerCEO
related to a share issuance during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2011.

During the year endedMay 31, 2012, the Companydeterminedit no longer has any
obligationsto issue$2,203,000in sharesfor lapsedmineralpropertyagreementsand$50,000
in sharesfor anexpiredmineralpropertyconsultingagreement.Therefore,in fiscalyear2012,
a total of $2,253,000was recordedas a recoveryof mineral propertycostsfor stock not
issuable.
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6 Months EndedCommon Stock Purchase
Warrants Nov. 30, 2012

Common Stock Purchase
Warrants [Text Block]

11. Common Stock Purchase Warrants

During the six monthsendedNovember30, 2012, therewere no stock purchasewarrants
granted and 20,162,262 stock purchase warrants expired.

Pursuantto a releaseand indemnificationagreement,the Companygranted300,000stock
purchasewarrantson July 7, 2011 to acquire300,000commonsharesat a priceof $0.30per
shareexercisablefor one year period.The fair value of the grantedwarrantswas $81,158
estimatedat the dateof grantusingthe Black-Scholesoption-pricingmodel.The following
table summarizes the continuity of the CompanyÕs share purchase warrants:

Weighted
Average Weighted Average

Number of Exercise Remaining
Warrants Price Contractual Life
# $ (years)

Balance, May 31, 2011 53,416,417 0.33 1.68
Issued 300,000 0.30 0.10

Balance, May 31, 2012 53,716,417 0.33 0.67
Expired (20,162,262) 0.45 -

Balance, November 30, 2012 33,554,155 0.25 0.40
As at November 30, 2012, the following common share purchase warrants were outstanding:

Remaining
Number of Exercise Contractual
Warrants Price Life (years)

# $

20,000,000 0.075 0.11
13,554,155 0.52 0.83

33,554,155 0.40
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6 Months Ended
Segment Disclosures (Tables)

Nov. 30, 2012 May 31, 2012
Schedule of Segment
Reporting Information [Table
Text Block]

Canada Tanzania, Africa Total
Current

assets
$
520,345

$ 604,439 $
1,124,784

Restricted
cash
equivalent

57,724 - 57,724

Restricted
marketable
securities

160,000 - 160,000

Mineral
licenses

- 1,650,000 1,650,000

Equipment,
net

10,572 334,950 345,522

Total assets,
at
November
30, 2012

$
748,641

$ 2,589,389 $
3,338,030

Canada Tanzania, Africa Total
Current

assets
$ 941,374$ 737,738 $

1,679,112
Restricted

cash
equivalent

56,531 - 56,531

Restricted
marketable
securities

1,160,000 - 1,160,000

Mineral
licenses

- 1,650,000 1,650,000

Equipment,
net

10,141 453,380 463,521

Total assets,
at May 31,
2012

$
2,168,046

$ 2,841,118 $
5,009,164
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6 Months EndedSchedule of Share-based
Compensation, Stock

Options, Activity (Details)
(USD $)

Nov. 30, 2012

Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 1$ 36,493,333
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 20.21
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 38.93
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 48,824,000
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 56,250,000
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 60.40
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 77.61
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 80
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 9(14,443,333)
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 100.23
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 116.60
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 120
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 1328,300,000
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 140.24
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 158.53
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 160
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 171,000,000
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 180.08
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 199.60
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 200
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 21(600,000)
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 220.20
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 238.00
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 240
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 2528,700,000
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 260.23
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 278.08
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 280
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 2928,700,000
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 300.23
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 318.08
Stock Options Schedule Of Share-based Compensation, Stock Options, Activity 32$ 0
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6 Months Ended
Segment Disclosures

Nov. 30, 2012
Segment Disclosures [Text
Block]

16. Segment Disclosures

The Companyoperatesin one reportablesegment,being the acquisitionand exploration
of mineral properties.Segmentedinformation hasbeencompiledbasedon the geographic
regions that the Companyand its subsidiary registeredand performedexploration and
administration activities.

Assets by geographical segment as at November 30, 2012 and May 31, 2012 are as follows:

Canada Tanzania, Africa Total

Current assets $ 520,345 $ 604,439 $
1,124,784

Restricted cash equivalent 57,724 - 57,724
Restricted marketable securities 160,000 - 160,000
Mineral licenses - 1,650,000 1,650,000
Equipment, net 10,572 334,950 345,522

Total assets, at November 30, 2012 $ 748,641 $ 2,589,389 $
3,338,030

Canada Tanzania, Africa Total

Current assets $ 941,374 $ 737,738 $
1,679,112

Restricted cash equivalent 56,531 - 56,531
Restricted marketable securities 1,160,000 - 1,160,000
Mineral licenses - 1,650,000 1,650,000
Equipment, net 10,141 453,380 463,521

Total assets, at May 31, 2012 $
2,168,046

$ 2,841,118 $
5,009,164
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6 Months EndedPrepaid Expenses and
Deposits (Tables) Nov. 30, 2012

Schedule of Prepaid Expenses and Deposits [Table Text Block] November 30,May 31,
2012 2012
$ $

Exploration expenses- 44,500
General and
administrative

23,791 9,423

Professional fees - 2,066
Rent 122,292 128,670
Travel and investor
relations

14,250 5,278

160,333 189,937
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6 Months EndedSchedule of Property, Plant
and Equipment (Details)

(USD $) Nov. 30, 2012

Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 1$ 349,283
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 2201,801
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 3147,482
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 4222,528
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 5197,011
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 656,263
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 7140,748
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 8173,583
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 9102,824
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 1048,406
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 1154,418
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 1267,283
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 136,391
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 143,517
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 152,874
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 16127
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 17655,509
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 18309,987
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 19345,522
Property And Equipment Schedule Of Property, Plant And Equipment 20$ 463,521

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
http://www.secdatabase.com


6 Months Ended
Stock Options (Narrative)

(Details) (USD $)
Nov. 30, 2012

Y
option

Stock Options 1 40,000,000
Stock Options 2 1,000,000
Stock Options 3 $ 0.08
Stock Options 4 10
Stock Options 5 600,000
Stock Options 6 11,300,000
Stock Options 7 $ 0
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6 Months Ended
107 Months

EndedConsolidated Statements of
Cash Flows (USD $) Nov. 30,

2012
Nov. 30,

2011
Nov. 30, 2012

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
Operating Activities:
Net loss $

(3,288,118)
$
(5,295,269)

$
(112,699,279)

Adjustments for non-cash items in net loss:
Depreciation 102,677 69,582 342,560
Donated services and rent 0 0 9,000
Impairment of marketable securities 1,600,000 0 1,600,000
Impairment of mineral property acquisition costs 0 0 77,492,074
Loss on sale of investment securities 0 0 57,071
Mineral property option payments 0 0 (156,017)
Stock-based compensation 488,982 599,704 20,275,633
Gain on unrealized foreign exchange (1,193) 0 (1,193)
Gain on write-down of accrued liabilities 0 (99,246) (458,058)
Loss on write-down of amounts receivable 0 0 81,641
Loss on disposal or write-down of equipment 2,687 6,741 21,740
Recovery of mineral property costs for stock not issuable 0 0 (2,253,000)
Shares received from mineral property option payment 0 0 (2,760,000)
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:
Amount receivable (65,164) 409,334 (749,091)
Prepaid expenses and deposits 29,604 1,555,993 (160,333)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (59,043) 735,046 (165,877)
Due to related parties 87,045 (1,112) 970,988
Cash Used in Operating Activities (1,102,523)(2,019,227)(18,552,141)
Investing Activities:
Mineral property acquisition costs 0 0 (697,677)
Proceeds from mineral property options 0 0 600,000
Proceeds from disposal of equipment 21,578 0 21,578
Purchase of restricted cash equivalent 0 (27,853) (56,531)
Purchase of property and equipment (8,943) (144,278) (731,400)
Cash Provided (Used) in Investing Activities 12,635 (172,131) (864,030)
Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 0 0 20,384,363
Proceeds from stock subscriptions 500,000 13,814 650,000
Share issuance costs 0 0 (1,321,191)
Cash Provided by Financing Activities 500,000 13,814 19,713,172
(Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equivalents (589,888) (2,177,544)297,001
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of the period 886,889 6,795,474 0
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of the period

$ 297,001
$
4,617,930

$ 297,001
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6 Months Ended
Restricted Cash Equivalent

Nov. 30, 2012
Restricted Cash Equivalent
[Text Block]

5. Restricted Cash Equivalent

As of November30, 2012, the Companyhaspledgeda $57,724of GICs (May 31, 2012:
$56,531)assecurityheldon corporatecreditcards.The$1,193differencecomparedto May
31, 2012 was gain on unrealized Canadian dollar exchange.
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6 Months EndedSchedule of Cash Flow,
Supplemental Disclosures

(Details) (USD $) Nov. 30, 2012

Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 1$ 0
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 20
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 3250,000
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 40
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 50
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 6619,306
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 70
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 80
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 92,203,000
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 1040,000
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 110
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 1240,000
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 130
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 141,650,000
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 1576,446,750
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 160
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 170
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 18100,000
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 190
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 200
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 2179,603
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 220
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 230
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 240
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 250
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 260
Supplemental Cash Flow Information Schedule Of Cash Flow, Supplemental Disclosures 27$ 0
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6 Months EndedProperty and Equipment
(Tables) Nov. 30, 2012

Schedule of Property, Plant and Equipment [Table
Text Block]

November 30,May 31,
2012 2012

AccumulatedNet Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value
$ $ $ $

Automobile
vehicles

349,283201,801 147,482 222,528

Camp and
equipment

197,011 56,263 140,748 173,583

Office furniture
and equipment

102,82448,406 54,418 67,283

Software 6,391 3,517 2,874 127

655,509309,987 345,522 463,521
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6 Months Ended
Mineral Pr operties and

Licenses (Narrative)
(Details) (USD $)

Nov. 30, 2012
D
M
km

Mineral Properties And Licenses 1800
Mineral Properties And Licenses 22.50%
Mineral Properties And Licenses 31.25%
Mineral Properties And Licenses 4$ 5,000,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 51.25%
Mineral Properties And Licenses 61,000,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 71,000,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 81,000,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 91,500
Mineral Properties And Licenses 102.50%
Mineral Properties And Licenses 11 3.00%
Mineral Properties And Licenses 12133,333,333
Mineral Properties And Licenses 1360
Mineral Properties And Licenses 1412.50%
Mineral Properties And Licenses 1516,666,667
Mineral Properties And Licenses 16133,333,333
Mineral Properties And Licenses 1716,666,667
Mineral Properties And Licenses 1860,000,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 1960,000,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 20100.00%
Mineral Properties And Licenses 212.67
Mineral Properties And Licenses 22800
Mineral Properties And Licenses 2315,000,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 24$ 0.11
Mineral Properties And Licenses 251,650,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 2632
Mineral Properties And Licenses 2732
Mineral Properties And Licenses 282.67
Mineral Properties And Licenses 292
Mineral Properties And Licenses 301,000,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 31540,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 32540,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 3380,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 34460,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 353.00%
Mineral Properties And Licenses 36380
Mineral Properties And Licenses 3740,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 383.00%
Mineral Properties And Licenses 39460,000
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Mineral Properties And Licenses 4070.00%
Mineral Properties And Licenses 41125
Mineral Properties And Licenses 42380
Mineral Properties And Licenses 433,000,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 44100,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 455
Mineral Properties And Licenses 46150,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 4715
Mineral Properties And Licenses 48100,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 49400,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 50750,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 5112
Mineral Properties And Licenses 52750,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 5324
Mineral Properties And Licenses 54750,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 5536
Mineral Properties And Licenses 5610
Mineral Properties And Licenses 57350,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 5870.00%
Mineral Properties And Licenses 59255
Mineral Properties And Licenses 60380
Mineral Properties And Licenses 616,000,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 626,000,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 63200,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 64100,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 65150,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 66$ 0.80
Mineral Properties And Licenses 673,200,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 6830
Mineral Properties And Licenses 692,760,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 70450,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 711,000,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 721,000,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 7370.00%
Mineral Properties And Licenses 7425.00%
Mineral Properties And Licenses 755.00%
Mineral Properties And Licenses 763,110,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 77450,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 781,000,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 795,669
Mineral Properties And Licenses 80350,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 81200,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 8288,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 83200,000
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Mineral Properties And Licenses 8488,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 85200,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 8688,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 8746
Mineral Properties And Licenses 88200,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 894,500,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 903,172,500
Mineral Properties And Licenses 911,500,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 921,057,500
Mineral Properties And Licenses 933,000,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 942,115,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 953,000,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 962,115,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 972,388.79
Mineral Properties And Licenses 103600,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 1044,000,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 1052,820,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 106150,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 107250,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 108250,000
Mineral Properties And Licenses 109$ 250,000
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6 Months EndedSupplemental Cash Flow
Information Nov. 30, 2012

Supplemental Cash Flow
Information [Text Block]

15. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Investingandfinancingactivitiesthatdo not havea direct impacton currentcashflows are
excludedfrom thecashflow statements.A summaryof non-cashtransactionsandothercash
informationfor theaccumulatedfrom January5, 2004,thedateof inception,to November30,
2012, and for the six months ended November 30, 2012 and 2011 is as follow:

Accumulated from
January 5, 2004 (Date

For the Six Months Ended, of Inception) to
November 30, 2012 November 30, 2011 November 30, 2012

Changes in non-cash
financing and investing
activities:

Amount owing pursuant
to mineral license
acquisition

agreements included in
accrued liabilities $ - $ - $ 250,000

Common stock issued to
settle related party payable- - 619,306

Common stock subscribed
for mineral licenses
acquired - - 2,203,000

Common stock issued for
independent directors'
compensation 40,000 - 40,000

Common stock issued for
mineral licenses acquired - 1,650,000 76,446,750

Common stock gifted to
the Company to settle
liabilities - - 100,000

Investment securities - - 79,603

Other cash flow
information:

Interest paid $ - $ - $ -
Taxes paid - - -
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